
  

 

Meeting of the  

 

EXTRAORDINARY  

LICENSING SUB 
COMMITTEE 

__________________________________ 
 

Tuesday, 4 February 2014 at 2.00 p.m. 
_______________________________________ 

 
A G E N D A 

______________________________________ 
 

VENUE 
The Council Chamber, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, 

London, E14 2BG 
 
 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, please contact: 
 
Simmi Yesmin, Democratic Services,  
 
Tel: 020 7364 4120, E-mail: simmi.yesmin@towerhamlets.gov.uk  

 
 
 



 
 

Public Information 
Attendance at meetings. 
The public are welcome to attend meetings of the Committee. However seating is limited 
and offered on a first come first served basis.  
 
Audio/Visual recording of meetings.  
No photography or recording without advanced permission.  

 
Mobile telephones 
Please switch your mobile telephone on to silent mode whilst in the meeting.  

 
Access information for the Town Hall, Mulberry Place.      

 
Bus: Routes: 15, 277, 108, D6, D7, D8 all stop 
near the Town Hall.  
Docklands Light Railway: Nearest stations are 
East India: Head across the bridge and then 
through the complex to the Town Hall, Mulberry 
Place  
Blackwall station: Across the bus station then turn 
right to the back of the Town Hall complex, 
through the gates and archway to the Town Hall.  
Tube: The closest tube stations are Canning 
Town and Canary Wharf  
Car Parking: There is limited visitor pay and 

display parking at the Town Hall (free from 6pm) 

If you are viewing this on line:(http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/content_pages/contact_us.aspx)  

Meeting access/special requirements.  
The Town Hall is accessible to people with special needs. There are accessible toilets, lifts 
to venues. Disabled parking bays and an induction loop system for people with hearing 
difficulties are available.  Documents can be made available in large print, Braille or audio 
version. For further information, contact the Officers shown on the front of the agenda  

     
Fire alarm 
If the fire alarm sounds please leave the building immediately by the nearest available fire 
exit without deviating to collect belongings. Fire wardens will direct you to the exits and to 
the fire assembly point. If you are unable to use the stairs, a member of staff will direct you 
to a safe area. The meeting will reconvene if it is safe to do so, otherwise it will stand 
adjourned. 

Electronic agendas reports and minutes. 
Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be 
found on our website from day of publication.   
 
To access this, click www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee and search for 
the relevant committee and meeting date.  
 

Agendas are available at the Town Hall, Libraries, Idea Centres and One 
Stop Shops and on the Mod.Gov, iPad and Android apps.   

 
QR code for 
smart phone 
users. 

 
 



 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 4 February 2014 

 
2.00 p.m. 

 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST  (Pages 1 - 
4) 

 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting 

Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Monitoring Officer. 
 
 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

3. RULES OF PROCEDURE  5 - 16  

 To note the rules of procedure which are attached for 
information. 

  

4. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION    

4 .1 Application for a New Premises Licence for Subway, 
222 Brick Lane, London, E1 6SA   

17 - 76 Weavers 

4 .2 Application for a Review of a Premises Licence for JB 
Food Store, 97b Brick Lane, London, E1 6SE   

77 - 164 Weavers 

4 .3 Application for a Review of a Premises Licence for 
Cost Price, 41 Brick Lane, London, E1 6PU   

165 - 246 Spitalfields 
& 

Banglatown 

4 .4 Application for a Review of a Premises Licence at Low 
Cost Food and Wine, 34 White Church Lane, London, 
E1 7QR   

247 - 376 Whitechapel 



5. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC    

 In view of the contents of the remaining items on the 
agenda the Committee is recommended to adopt the 
following motion: 
 

“That, under the provisions of Section 100A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, the press 
and public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting 
for the consideration of the Section Two business on the 
grounds that it contains information defined as Exempt in 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act, 
1972.” 
 

EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL SECTION (Pink Papers) 
 

The exempt committee papers in the agenda will contain 
information, which is commercially, legally or personally 
sensitive and should not be divulged to third parties.  If you 
do not wish to retain these papers after the meeting, please 
hand them to the Committee Officer present. 

 

  

6. EXEMPT ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION    

6 .1 Application for a Variation of Designated Premises 
Supervisor for Low Cost Food and Wine, 34 White 
Church Lane, London, E1 7QR   

377 - 420 Whitechapel 

 
 



DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE MONITORING OFFICER 
 
 

This note is for guidance only.  For further details please consult the Members’ Code of Conduct 
at Part 5.1 of the Council’s Constitution.    
 
Please note that the question of whether a Member has an interest in any matter, and whether or 
not that interest is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, is for that Member to decide.  Advice is 
available from officers as listed below but they cannot make the decision for the Member.  If in 
doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to attending a meeting.   
 
 
Interests and Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) 
 
You have an interest in any business of the authority where that business relates to or is likely to 
affect any of the persons, bodies or matters listed in section 4.1 (a) of the Code of Conduct; and 
might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-being or financial position of yourself, a 
member of your family or a person with whom you have a close association, to a greater extent 
than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward affected. 
 
You must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of any such interest, for inclusion in the Register 
of Members’ Interests which is available for public inspection and on the Council’s Website. 
 
Once you have recorded an interest in the Register, you are not then required to declare that 
interest at each meeting where the business is discussed, unless the interest is a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest (DPI). 
 
A DPI is defined in Regulations as a pecuniary interest of any of the descriptions listed at 
Appendix A overleaf.  Please note that a Member’s DPIs include his/her own relevant interests 
and also those of his/her spouse or civil partner; or a person with whom the Member is living as 
husband and wife; or a person with whom the Member is living as if they were civil partners; if the 
Member is aware that that other person has the interest.    
 
 
Effect of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest on participation at meetings 
 
Where you have a DPI in any business of the Council you must, unless you have obtained a 
dispensation from the authority's Monitoring Officer following consideration by the Dispensations 
Sub-Committee of the Standards Advisory Committee:- 

- not seek to improperly influence a decision about that business; and 
- not exercise executive functions in relation to that business. 

 
If you are present at a meeting where that business is discussed, you must:- 

- Disclose to the meeting  the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting 
or when the interest becomes apparent, if later; and  

- Leave the room (including any public viewing area) for the duration of consideration and 
decision on the item and not seek to influence the debate or decision  

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



When declaring a DPI, Members should specify the nature of the interest and the agenda item to 
which the interest relates.  This procedure is designed to assist the public’s understanding of the 
meeting and to enable a full record to be made in the minutes of the meeting.   
 
Where you have a DPI in any business of the authority which is not included in the Member’s 
register of interests and you attend a meeting of the authority at which the business is 
considered, in addition to disclosing the interest to that meeting, you must also within 28 days 
notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest for inclusion in the Register.  
 
 
Further advice 
 
For further advice please contact:- 

Meic Sullivan-Gould, Monitoring Officer, Telephone Number: 020 7364 4801 
 

Page 2



APPENDIX A:  Definition of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
 
(Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, Reg 2 and Schedule) 
 

Subject Prescribed description 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vacation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on 
for profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other 
than from the relevant authority) made or provided within the 
relevant period in respect of any expenses incurred by the 
Member in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the 
election expenses of the Member. 

This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union 
within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a 
body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and 
the relevant authority— 

(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works 
are to be executed; and 

(b) which has not been fully discharged. 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the 
relevant authority. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the Member’s knowledge)— 

(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and 

(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest. 
 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where— 

(a) that body (to the Member’s knowledge) has a place of 
business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and 

(b) either— 
 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or 
 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the 
total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth 
of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 

RRUULLEESS  OOFF  PPRROOCCEEDDUURREE  

GGOOVVEERRNNIINNGG  AAPPPPLLIICCAATTIIOONNSS  FFOORR  

PPRREEMMIISSEESS  LLIICCEENNCCEESS    

AANNDD  OOTTHHEERR  PPEERRMMIISSSSIIOONNSS  

UUNNDDEERR  TTHHEE  LLIICCEENNSSIINNGG  AACCTT  22000033  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

 

1. Interpretation 
 
1.1 These Procedures describe the way in which hearings will be conducted under 

the Licensing Act 2003, as set out in the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 
Regulations 2005 (as amended). The Procedures take into account the 
Licensing Act (Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates) Regulations 
2005.  The Procedures also include the time limits within which a hearing must 
commence (see Appendix A) and will be used by the Licensing Committee and 
Licensing Sub-Committee when conducting hearings. 

 
1.2 The Hearings Regulations provide (Regulation 21) that a Licensing Authority 

shall, subject to the provisions of those Regulations, determine for itself the 
procedure to be followed at a hearing. 

 
1.3 These Procedures, therefore, set out the way in which Licensing Sub-

Committee Meetings will be conducted under the Licensing Act 2003, following 
the requirements of the Hearings Regulations. Wherever appropriate they have 
included the procedures followed successfully when determining licence 
applications under previous legislation. 

 
1.4 Proceedings will not be rendered void only as the result of failure to comply 

with any provision of the Hearings Regulations (Regulation 31). 
 
 
2. Composition of Sub-Committee 
 
2.1 The Sub-Committee will consist of no less than three members and no 

business shall be transacted unless at least three members of the Licensing 
Committee are present and able to form a properly constituted Licensing Sub-
Committee.  In such cases the Chair shall have a second or casting vote. The 
Councillor for the ward in which the applicant's premises are situated, or where 
either the applicant or the objector resides, shall not normally form part of the 
Sub-Committee for that item on the agenda. 

 
 
3. Timescales 
 
3.1  Most hearings must take place within 20 working days from the last date for  

representations to be made with the following exceptions: 
 

Within 10 working days from the last date for the police to object to: 
- conversion of an existing licence; 
- conversion of an existing club certificate; 
- an application for a personal licence by an existing justices licence holder; 

and 
 
Within 10 working days from the date the Licensing Authority receives the 
notice for a review of the premises licence following a closure order. 
Within 7 working days from the last date for the police to object to: 
- a temporary event notice. 

Page 6



 

 

 
Within 5 working days from the last date for the police to object to: 
- an interim authority notice (Note: the police must give notice of their 

objection within 48 hours of being given a copy of the notice). 
 
Note: Where a hearing is likely to take longer than one day, the Authority 

must arrange for the hearing to take place on consecutive days. 
 

3.2 Timescale for notice of hearings to be given 
 
 
In most cases, the Authority shall give notice of a hearing no later than 10 
working days before the first day on which the hearing is to be held. The 
following are exceptions to that rule: 

 
 At least five working days notice must be given to the parties of the date of a 

hearing for determination of: 
 

- conversion of an existing licence 
- conversion of an existing club certificate 
- application for a personal licence by the holder of a justices licence 
- review of a premises licence following a closure order 

 
At least two days notice must be given to the parties to a hearing for 
determination of: 

 
- police objection to an interim authority notice 
- police objection to a temporary event notice  

 
3.3 Persons who must be notified of a hearing 
 

The persons who must be notified of a hearing are set out below as a 
summary:  
 
- any applicant for any licence or certificate or a temporary event notice. 

 
- any person who has made relevant representations about an application 

for a licence or for review of a licence (note for any representations 
deemed frivolous, vexatious or repetitious under Section 18(7)(c) or 
similar sections of the Licensing Act 2003 the objector must be notified of 
the Authority’s decision as soon as possible and in any event before any 
hearing). 

• a person specified as a Designated Premises Supervisor 

• an interim authority 

• transfer of a premises licence 

• a temporary event notice 

• a personal licence 
 
 

Page 7



 

 

- Any holder of a premises licence or club premises certificate where: 

• application is made for review 
 

Note:  Anyone given notice of a hearing is a party and that is how that 
expression is used in these Rules of Procedure. 

 
3.4  Information to be provided in a notice of hearing 
 

The information that must be included in a notice of hearing includes:  
- The procedure to be followed at the hearing; 
- The right of the party to attend and to be assisted or represented by any 

person whether legally qualified or not; 
- The ability to give further information in support of their application where 

the Authority has sought clarification; 
- The right to question any other party if given permission by the Authority; 
- The right to address the Authority; 
- Notice of any particular points on which the Authority will want clarification 

at the hearing; 
- The consequences if a party does not attend or is not represented at the 

hearing; 
- For certain hearings particular documents must accompany the notice 

which is sent to parties informing them of the hearing.  Reference must be 
made to Schedule 3 of the Hearings Regulations for this purpose. 

 
3.5  Failure of Parties to Attend the Hearing 
 

If a party has informed the Authority that they will not be attending or be 
represented at the hearing, it may proceed in their absence. 
 
If a party does not give notice that they will not be attending but fails to attend 
and is not represented, the Authority may either: 

 
a) adjourn the hearing if it considers it to be necessary in the public interest 

or 
b) hold the hearing in the party’s absence 

 
If the Authority holds the hearing in the absence of a party, it will consider at the 
hearing the application, representation or notice given by the party. 
 
If the Authority adjourns the hearing to a specified date it must forthwith the  
parties of the date, time and place to which the hearing has been adjourned. 
 
 
Note: Transition hearings cannot be adjourned to a date beyond the date that 

which causes an application to deemed as determined by default. 
 
[ 
 
 

Page 8



 

 

4. Procedure at the Hearing 
 
4.1 The usual order of proceedings will be as set out below. The Sub-Committee 

will allow the parties an equal maximum time period in which to give further 
information in support of their application, representation or response. Where 
the Authority has given notice that it will seek clarification on that point at the 
hearing or where permission has been given to call any further persons to 
give supporting evidence, the Sub-Committee may allow the parties to 
question any other party and to address the Licensing Sub-Committee. The 
Sub-Committee will seek, in all cases, to avoid repetition of points (whether 
included in written material or otherwise), irrelevancy, or any abuse of the 
procedure. 

 
At the beginning of the hearing the procedure to be followed will be explained 
to the parties. The hearing will, so far as is possible, take the form of a 
discussion, led by the Sub-Committee. Cross-examination will not be permitted 
unless the Sub-Committee considers it necessary. 

 
i) The Chair will begin by explaining how the proceedings will be 

conducted, and indicate any time limits that may apply to the parties to 
the application. 

 
ii) The report will be briefly introduced by an Officer of the Licensing 

Section summarising the application. 
 

iii) The Sub-Committee will then consider any requests by a party for any 
other person to be heard at the hearing in accordance with the 
Regulations. Permission will not be unreasonably withheld provided 
proper notice has been given. 

 
iv) A summary of the nature and extent of the application by the applicant or 

their representative. This should be brief, avoid repetition of material 
already available to the Committee in the Officer’s report or otherwise, 
and include any reasons why an exception should be made to the 
Council’s Licensing Policy, where appropriate. The submission may be 
followed by the evidence of any person who has been given permission 
by the Committee to give supporting evidence on behalf of the applicant. 

 
v) A summary of the reasons for making representations about the 

application by any interested party. This should be brief and avoid any 
repetition of information already made available to the Committee either 
in the Officer’s report or otherwise.  That will be followed by the evidence 
of any person who has been given permission by the Panel to give 
supporting evidence on behalf of the objectors. 

 
vi) A summary of the reasons for making representations by or on behalf of 

any Responsible Authority. This should be brief and avoid any repetition 
of information already made available to the Licensing Sub-Committee 
either in the Officer’s report or otherwise. That will be followed by the 

Page 9



 

 

evidence of any person who has been given permission by the Panel to 
give supporting evidence on behalf of the Responsible Authority. 

 
vii) Members of the Sub-Committee may ask any questions of any party or 

other person appearing at the hearing. 
 
4.2 The following requirements of the Hearing Regulations will also be followed by 

the Licensing Sub-Committee:  
 

a) The Sub-Committee will be guided by legal principles in determining 
whether evidence is relevant and fairly admissible. In particular, hearsay 
evidence may be admitted before the Sub-Committee but consideration 
will always be given to the degree of weight, if any, to be attached to such 
evidence in all the relevant circumstances. 

 
b) The Sub-Committee may impose a time limit on the oral representations 

to be made by any party. In considering whether to do so, and in 
considering the length of any such time limit, the Sub-Committee will take 
into account the importance of ensuring that all parties receive a fair 
hearing, and the importance of ensuring that all applications are 
determined expeditiously and without undue delay. 

 
c) In considering the time limits referred to in (b) above, regard must be had 

to the requirement to allow each party an equal amount of time. 
 
4.3  When considering any representations or notice made by a party, the Authority 

may take into account documentary or other information produced by a party in 
support of their application, representation or notice, either: 

 
a) before the hearing, or 
 
b) with the consent of all other parties, by the Sub-Committee at the hearing  

 
The Authority will disregard any information given by a party, or any other 
person appearing at the hearing, which is not relevant to: 

 
a) their application, representation or notice; and 
 
b) the promotion of the licensing objectives or the crime prevention objective 

where notice has been given by the police. 
 
4.4 All hearings shall take place in public save that: 

 
a) The Licensing Sub-Committee may exclude the public from all or part of a 

hearing where it considers that, on balance, it is in the public interest to do 
so. 

 
b) The parties and any person representing them may be excluded in the 

same way as another member of the public 

Page 10



 

 

c) The Licensing Sub-Committee may require any person attending the 
hearing who in their opinion is behaving in a disruptive manner to leave 
the hearing and may: 

 
- refuse to permit the person to return; or 
- allow them to return only on such conditions as the authority may 

specify. 
 
4.5 Any person so excluded may, before the end of the hearing, submit to the 

Authority in writing, any information which, they would have been entitled to 
give orally had they not been required to leave. Where there are a number of 
items on the agenda, the adjournment of that item for a short period, whilst 
another item is heard, may allow this process to be carried out effectively. 

 
 
5. Determination of Application – Time Limits 
 
5.1 The Licensing Sub-Committee must make its determination at the conclusion of 

the hearing where the application is for: 
 

a) Conversion or variation of an existing licence during transition 
b) Conversion or variation of an existing club certificate during transition 
c) A review of a premises licence following a closure order 
d) A personal licence by the holder of a justices licence 
e) A counter notice following police objection to a temporary event notice 
 

5.2 In any other case the Authority must make its determination within the period of 
five working days, beginning with the day, or the last day, on which the hearing 
was held. 

 
5.3 Where a hearing has been dispensed with because all of the parties have 

agreed that a hearing is unnecessary (and the Authority has agreed, giving 
notice to the parties in writing), then the Authority must make its determination 
within 10 working days beginning with the day the authority gives such notices 
to the parties. The Team Leader (Licensing) shall be authorised to make the 
determination on behalf of the Authority. 

 
 
6. Record of Proceedings 
 
6.1 The Authority must arrange for a record to be taken of the hearing in a 

permanent and intelligible form and for that record to be kept for six years from 
the date of determination.  Where an appeal is brought against a determination 
by the Authority, the record must be kept for six years from the date of disposal 
of the appeal. 

Page 11



 

 

 
7. Irregularities 
 
7.1 Proceedings will not be rendered void only as the result of failure to comply with 

any provision of the Hearings Regulations 
 

7.2 Clerical mistakes in any document recording a determination of the Authority, or 
errors arising in such a document as the result of an accidental slip or omission, 
may be corrected by the Authority. 

 
 

8. Notices 
 

8.1 In accordance with the Regulations, any notices must be given in writing. Such 
a notice may be sent electronically, providing: 
 
a) it can be accessed by the recipient in a legible form; 
b) it is capable of being reproduced as a document for future reference; 
c) the recipient has agreed in advance to receive it in such form;  
d) a copy is sent in documentary form forthwith to the recipient. 

 
9. Appeals 
 
9.1 Either those who have made an application or those who have made 

representations on an application may appeal to the Magistrates Court. 
 
Note: An appeal must be commenced within twenty one days beginning with 

the day on which the appellant was notified by the Licensing Authority 
of their decision.  

 
 
 

Page 12



 

 

APPENDIX A 
 

Application Type Period of Time within 
which Hearing to be Held 
(after reps have closed) 

Notice 
Period of 
Hearing 

Notice Sent To Attendee 
Reply 
Form 
Back In 
 

Section 18 (3)(a) (determination of 
application for premises license) 

20 working days 10 working 
days 

Applicant; 
People who have made representations 

5 working 
days 

Section 35(3)(a) (determination of 
application to vary premises 
licence). 

20 working days 10 working 
days 

Applicant; 
People who have made representations 

5 working 
days 

Section 39(3)(a) (determination of 
application to vary premises licence to 
specify individual as premises 
supervisor). 

20 working days 10 working 
days 

Applicant (premises holder); 
Chief Officer of Police who has given notice; 
The proposed premises supervisor 

5 working 
days 

Section 44(5)(a) (determination of 
application for transfer of premises 
licence). 

20 working days 10 working 
days 

Applicant; 
Chief Officer of Police who has given Notice; 
The present holder of the premises licence  

5 working 
days 

Section 52(2) (determination of 
application for review of premises 
licence). 

20 working days 10 working 
days 

The holder of the premises licence of where 
application applies; 
People who have made representations; 
Applicant 

5 working 
days 

Section 120(7)(a) (determination of 
application for grant of personal 
licence). 

20 working days 10 working 
days 

Applicant; 
Chief Officer of Police who has given Notice 

5 working 
days 

Section 121(6)(a) (determination of 
application for the renewal of 
personal licence). 

20 working days 10 working 
days 

Applicant; 
Chief Officer of Police who has given Notice 

5 working 
days 

Section 124(4)(a) (convictions 
coming to light after grant or 
renewal of personal licence). 

20 working days 10 working 
days 

The holder of the licence; 
Chief Officer of Police who has given Notice 

5 working 
days 

Paragraph 26(3)(a) of Schedule 8 
(determination of application by 
holder of a justices’ licence for 
grant of personal licence). 

10 working days 5 working 
days  

Applicant; 
Chief Officer of Police who has given Notice 

2 working 
days 

P
age 13



 

 

Application Type Period of Time within 
which Hearing to be Held 
(after reps have closed) 

Notice 
Period of 
Hearing 

Notice Sent To Attendee 
Reply 
Form 
Back In 
 

Section 31(3)(a) (determination of 
application for a provisional 
statement). 

20 working days 10 working 
days 

Applicant; 
People who have made representations 

5 working 
days 

Section 48(3)(a) (cancellation of 
interim authority notice following 
police objection). 

5 working days 2 working 
days 

The person who has given Notice; 
Chief Officer of Police who has given Notice 

1 working 
day 

Section 72(3)(a) (determination of 
application for club premises 
certificate). 

20 working days 10 working 
days 

Applicant (club); 
People who have made representations 

5 working 
days 

Section 85(3) (determination of 
application to vary club premises 
certificate). 

20 working days 10 working 
days 

Applicant (club); 
People who have made representations 

5 working 
days 

Section 88(2) (determination of 
application for review of club 
premises certificate). 

20 working days 10 working 
days 

Club that holds club premises certificate; 
People who have made representations; 
Applicant 
 

5 working 
days 

Section 105(2)(a) (counter notice 
following police objection to 
temporary event notice) 
. 

7 working days 2 working 
days 

The premises user; 
Chief Officer who has given Notice 

1 working 
day 

Section 167(5)(a) (review of 
premises licence following closure 
order). 

10 working days 5 working 
days 

The holder of the premises licence; 
People who have made representations 

2 working 
days 

Paragraph 4(3)(a) of Schedule 8 
(determination of application for 
conversion of existing licence). 

10 working days 5 working 
days 

Applicant; 
Chief Officer of Police who has given Notice 

2 working 
days 

Paragraph 16(3)(a) of Schedule 8 
(determination of application for 
conversion of existing club 
certificate). 

10 working days 5 working 
days 

Applicant (club) 
 
Chief Officer who has given Notice 

2 working 
days 

P
age 14



 

 

APPENDIX B 
 
 

Regulation 8 
 
 
 Action Following receipt of notice of hearing 

 
1. 
 

A party shall give to the authority within the period of time provided for in the 
following provisions of this regulation a notice stating: 

(a)
. 

whether he intends to attend or be represented at the hearing; 

(b)
. 

whether he considers a hearing to be unnecessary. 

2. 
 
 
 
 
 

In a case where a party wishes any other person (other than the person he 
intends to represent him at the hearing) to appear at the hearing, the notice 
referred to in paragraph (1) shall contain a request for permission for such 
other person to appear at the hearing accompanied by details of the name of 
that person and a brief description of the point or points on which that 
person may be able to assist the authority in relation to the application, 
representations or notice of the party making the request. 
 

3. In the case of a hearing under: 
(a)
. 

section 48(3)(a) (cancellation of interim authority notice following police 
objection), or 

(b)
. 

section 105(2)(a) (counter notice following police objection to temporary 
event notice), 

 the party shall give the notice no later than one working day before the day 
or the first day on 
which the hearing is to be held. 
 

4. In the case of a hearing under: 
(a)
. 

section 167(5)(a) (review of premises licence following closure order), 

(b)
. 

paragraph 4(3)(a) of Schedule 8 (determination of application for conversion 
of existing licence), 

(c)
. 

paragraph 16(3)(a) of Schedule 8 (determination of application for 
conversion of existing club certificate), or 

(d)
. 

paragraph 26(3)(a) of Schedule 8 (determination of application by holder of 
justices’ licence for grant of personal licence), 

 the party shall give the notice no later than two working days before the day 
or the first day on which the hearing is to be held. 

5. In any other case, the party shall give the notice no later than five working 
days before the day or the first day on which the hearing is to be held. 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee : 

 
Licensing Sub Committee 
 

Date  
 

04 February 2014 

Classification 

 
Unrestricted 

Report No. 
 

LSC 57/134 

Agenda Item 
No. 

 

Report of  David Tolley 
Head of Consumer and Business Regulation 
Services  

 

Originating Officer:  
Alexander Lisowski 
Licensing Officer 

 

Title  Licensing Act 2003  
Application for a New Premises Licence for 
Subway, 222 Brick Lane,  
London, E1 6SA. 
 
Ward affected  
Weavers 
 

 

 
1.0 Summary 
 

Applicant:  
 

Bluebell UK Ltd 

Name and  
 

Subway 

Address of Premises: 222 Brick Lane, 
London, E1 6SA 
 

Licence sought: 
 

Licensing Act 2003 Application for a new 
premises licence for:  

• Late Night Refreshment  
 

Objectors:  
The Metropolitan Police 
 

 
 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 That the Licensing Committee considers the application and objections 

then adjudicate accordingly. 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT  2000 (Section 97) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE DRAFTING OF THIS REPORT 

   
   
Brief description of "background paper" Tick if copy supplied for 

register 
 

If not supplied, name and telephone 
number of holder 

 
File Only 
 

  
Alexander Lisowski 
020 7364 7446  

Page 17

Agenda Item 4.1



3.0  Background 
 
3.1 This is an application for a new premises licence to allow the provision 

of late night refreshment at Subway, 222  Brick Lane, London,  
           E1 6SA.     

 
The premises is a fast food restaurant.  As well as operating as a  
“take-away” restaurant, it also offers seating for customers to eat their 
food inside the restaurant.  At present the restaurant is open during the 
day and in the evening prior to 23.00pm. 
 
The premises is within the Brick Lane Cumulative Impact Zone. 
See Appendix 10.  
 

3.2 A copy of the application is enclosed as Appendix 1. 
 

The hours applied for are: 
 

The Provision of Late Night Refreshment 

• Friday and Saturday, 23.00pm to 04.00am the next day. 
 

The Opening Hours of The Premises 

• Monday to Thursday, 07.00am to 23.00pm. 

• Friday , 07.00am to 04.00am the next day. 

• Saturday, 09.00am to 04.00am the next day. 

• Sunday, 09.00am to 22.00pm  
 

3.3 Maps showing the area around the venue are included as Appendix 2.  
 
4.0 Policy and Government Advice 
 
4.1 The Council has adopted a licensing policy and this is available from 

the Licensing Section, and at the hearing. The revised policy came into 
effect on the 1st November, 2013. 

 
4.2 Relevant Sections of the policy are brought to the attention of Members 

within the Licensing Officers report.  
 
4.3 The Home Secretary has issued Guidance under Section 182 of the 

Licensing Act 2003. This is available on the Government’s website, 
www.homeoffice.gov.uk. It was last revised in June, 2013. 

 
4.4 Relevant Sections of this advice are brought to Members attention 

within the Licensing Officers report. Members should note however, 
than in some areas Tower Hamlets, after a proper consideration of 
local circumstances, has not followed the Government’s advice, or has 
developed it further. 

 
 
 

Page 18



5.0 Representations 
 
5.1 All representations have to meet basic legal and administrative 

requirements.  If they fail to do so they cannot be accepted.  When 
rejected the person sending in the representation must be written to, 
and an explanation for rejection given in writing. 

 
5.2 A responsible authority or other person can make a representation. 

There are two tests for other persons and only one for a responsible 
authority. The two tests are contained in Section 18 of the Act. 

 
5.3 All representations must be “about the likely effect of the grant of the 

premises licence on the promotion of the licensing objectives.” Likely 
means something that will probably happen, i.e. on balance more likely 
than not. 

 
5.4 The Home Office recommends that in borderline cases, the benefit of 

the doubt should be given to the interested party making the 
representation. 

 
5.5 Section 182 Advice by the Home Office concerning relevant, vexatious 

and frivolous representations is attached as Appendix 4. 
 
5.6 All the representations in this report have been considered by the 

relevant officer (Trading Standards and Licensing Manager) and 
determined to have met the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003. 

 
5.7 This hearing is required by the Licensing Act 2003, because relevant 

representations have been made by the following: 

• Metropolitan Police 
 
See Appendix 3 
 

5.8 All of the responsible authorities have been consulted about this 
application.  They are as follows:     

 
The Licensing Authority 
The Metropolitan Police 
The LFEPA (the London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority 
Planning 
Health and Safety 
Noise (Environmental Health) 
Trading Standards 
Child Protection 
Primary Care Trust 

 
5.9 In addition the application was required to be advertised in a local 

newspaper and by a blue poster. Only objections that relate to the 
following licensing objectives are relevant: 

• the prevention of crime and disorder 

Page 19



• public safety 

• the prevention of public nuisance 

• the protection of children from harm  
 

5.10 The objections cover allegations of  

• Crime and public disorder 

• Public nuisance 
 
5.11 There are strict time limits to any representations. The time limits 

contained in The Licensing Act, 2003 (Premises licences and club 
premises certificates) Regulations 2005. 

 
 
6.0 Licensing Officer Comments 
 
6.1 The following is intended to advise Members of the relevant aspects of 

the Boroughs Licensing Policy, guidance from the Secretary of State, 
legislation and good practice. Members may depart from the Council’s 
Licensing Policy and/or Government advice, provide they consider it 
appropriate to do so, and have clear reasons for their decision. 

 
6.2 Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 
 

v  As stated in the guidance it is “provided for licensing authorities 
carrying out their functions.”  It is a key medium for promoting best 
practice, ensuring consistent application and promoting fairness 
equal treatment and proportionality(1.7). 

 
v  Also “so long as the guidance has been properly and carefully 

understood and considered, licensing authorities may depart from it 
if they have reason to do so.”  When doing so licensing authorities 
will need to give full reasons for their actions (1.9). 

 
v  Also Members should note “A Licensing Authority may depart from 

its own policy if the individual circumstances of any case merit such 
a decision in the interests of the promotion of the licensing 
objectives.” (1.12) 

 
v  Conditions may not be imposed for the purpose other than the 

licensing objectives.   
 
v  Necessary conditions should emerge from a risk assessment by 

the applicant, which should then be reflected in the operating 
schedule (10.7).  

 
v  The Licensing Authority may only impose such conditions as are 

necessary for meeting the licensing objectives. 
 

Page 20



v  It is Government policy that facilities for people and performers with 
disabilities should be provided at places of entertainment. (S. 
10.24).  
 

v  The Government has stated “there is no general presumption in 
favour of lengthening licensing hours and the four licensing 
objectives should be paramount at all times. Where there are 
objections to an application and the committee believes that 
changing the licensing hours would undermine the licensing 
objectives, they may reject the application or grant it with 
appropriate conditions and/or different hours from those 
requested.”  (10.20) 

 
v  Mandatory conditions must be imposed (10.43) and censorship 

avoided (10.31). 
 
v  Routine conditions about drink promotions are not permitted but 

can be imposed in an appropriate circumstances (10.38). The 
Office of Fair Trading’s Advice also needs to be considered, 
namely that minimum prices setting is not permitted.  

 
6.3 The Licensing Act 2003 permits children of any age to be on the 

premises which primarily sells alcohol providing they are accompanied 
by an adult. It is not necessary to make this a condition. 

  
6.4 In all cases the Members should make their decision on the civil burden 

of proof, that is “the balance of probability.” 
 
6.5 In all cases Members should consider whether or not primary 

legislation is the appropriate method of regulation and should only 
consider licence conditions when the circumstances in their view are 
not already adequately covered elsewhere. 

 
6.6 The Government has advised that “In the context of preventing public 

nuisance it is again essential that conditions are focused on measures 
within the direct control of the licence holder. Conditions relating to 
public nuisance caused by anti-social behaviour of customers once 
they are beyond the control of the licence holder or premises 
management cannot be justified and will not serve the licensing 
objectives.” (2.38)  

 
6.7 The Council’s Licensing Policy generally expects applicants to to 

address the licensing objectives and discuss how to do this with the 
relevant responsible authorities. 

 
6.8 In Appendices 5-9 Members are given general advice, and also have 

explanations of the Council’s Licensing Policy, Government advice and 
other legislation relating to the matters previously identified. 

 
 

Page 21



7.0 Exemptions   
 
7.1 There are a number of statutory exemptions from the operation of the 

Licensing Act 2003, and Members need to bear these in mind. 
 
7.2 Schedule 1 Part 2 of the Act states that entertainment in churches, 

Morris dancing (and accompanying music if live and unamplified) and 
incidental music are not licensable activities-that is no conditions can be 
set for them. 

 
7.3 Acts of religious worship, wherever performed are not licensable. 
 
7.4 Section 177, (1) and (2) of the Act provides that where a premises (or 

club) is licensed for alcohol consumption on the premises and is 
primarily thus used, and the permitted capacity does not exceed 200, 
additional conditions relating to the music should only relate to public 
safety or the prevention of crime (or both). That is they should not relate 
to any “noise nuisance.” 

 
7.5 Section 177 (4) provides that where a premises licence (or club) has a 

capacity of not more than 200 and the only music is unamplified live 
music between 08 00 hrs and midnight, no additional conditions should 
be set relating to the music. 

 
7.6 Section 177 can be disapplied on a licence review if it is proportionate to 

do so. 
 
 
8.0 Legal Comments 
 
8.1 The Council’s legal officer will give advice at the hearing. 
 
 

9.0 Finance Comments 
 
9.1 There are no financial implications in this report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



 
10.0 Appendices 
 
 

Appendix 1 A copy of the application for a new premises licence.  
 

Appendix 2    Maps of the area surrounding the premises. 
 

Appendix 3    Representations of The Metropolitan Police.   
 
Appendix 4 Guidance for reviews, issued under Section 182 by the 

Home Office. 
 

Appendix 5 Licensing officer comments on anti-social behaviour on 
the premises. 

 
Appendix 6 Licensing officer comments on anti-social behaviour 

patrons leaving the premises.   
 

Appendix 7 Access and egress problems. 
 

Appendix 8 Planning. 
 

Appendix 9 Licensing Policy relating to hours of trading. 
 
Appendix 10   Brick Lane Cumulative Impact Zone 

 
 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 Appendix 1 

Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Si
te

 L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

S
c

a
le

:
D

a
te

:
D

ra
w

n
 B

y
:

C
h

e
c

k
e

d
 B

y
:

0
m

0
.5

m
1
m

2
m

4
m

N
o

 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 is

 a
c

c
e

p
te

d
 t

o
 a

n
y
 t

h
ird

 p
a

rt
y

re
ly

in
g

 o
n

 n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 c

o
n

ta
in

e
d

 in
 t

h
is

d
ra

w
in

g
.

C
o

n
tr

a
c

to
rs

 m
u

st
 v

e
rif

y
 a

ll 
d

im
e

n
si
o

n
s 

o
n

si
te

 b
e

fo
re

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r 

sh
o

p
d

ra
w

in
g

s.

2
2
2
 B

ric
k
 L

a
n

e
P

M
1
3
/0

0
1

1
:1

0
0
 @

 A
3

0
3
 N

o
v
 2

0
1
3

M
A

S
B

2
2

2
 B

ri
c

k
 L

a
n

e

P
re

m
is

e
s 

Li
c

e
n

c
e

G
ro

u
n

d
 f

lo
o

r 
a

n
d

 b
a

se
m

e
n

t 
p

la
n

G
ro

u
n

d
 f

lo
o

r 
p

la
n

B
a

se
m

e
n

 p
la

n

S
e

rv
in

g
 c

o
u

n
te

r

D
is

a
b

le
d

 t
o

ile
ts

D
ri
n

k
s 

st
a

n
d

D
rin

k
s

fr
id

g
e

C
ri
sp

ra
c

k

B
o

ile
r

C
u

st
o

m
e

r 
a

re
a

Fo
o

d
p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

st
o

ra
g

e
 a

re
a

C
u

st
o

m
e

r 
a

re
a

To
ile

ts

A
re

a
 n

o
t 

in
 u

se

A
re

a
 n

o
t 

in
 u

se

Fo
o

d
st

o
ra

g
e

c
a

b
in

e
t

Fo
o

d
 s

to
ra

g
e

 r
e

fr
ig

e
ra

to
r

Fo
o

d
 p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 c

o
u

n
te

r

P
re

m
is

e
s 

lic
e

n
c

e
 a

re
a

N
o

te
:

P
re

m
is

e
s 

lic
e

n
c

e
 is

 o
n

ly
 s

o
u

g
h

t 
fo

r
g

ro
u

n
d

 f
lo

o
r 

a
re

a
 id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 in

 r
e

d
.

Th
e

 b
a

se
m

e
n

t 
c

u
st

o
m

e
r 

se
a

ti
n

g
 a

re
a

w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

st
ri
c

te
d

 t
o

 c
u

st
o

m
e

rs
 f

ro
m

2
3
:0

0
 t

o
 0

7
:0

0
.

Page 45



Appendix 2 
             

        
 

         
 
 
 
 

Page 46



Subway

222 Brick Lane

Page 47



Subway

222 Brick Lane

Page 48



      Appendix 3 
 
 
 
 

Page 49



Author: PC 291HT Brendan O’Rourke, Licensing Officer, Metropolitan Police Service, Limehouse Police Station, 27, West India Dock Road, London E14 8EZ       Page 1 of 6 

 

Tower Hamlets Borough 

Licensing Team 

  
   
John McCrohan 
London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
Licensing Section 
Mulberry Place  
5 Clove Crescent 
London  
E14 2BG 
 
  

 
Limehouse Police Station,  
27, West India Dock Road,  
London,  
E14 8EZ  
 
Office: 020 7275 4950/4911 
Mobile:  
 
Email:  
 
Your ref:   
 
 
2nd December 2013 

 
 
Dear Mr McCrohan,  
 

Re: Application for a Premises Licence 
Subway, 222 Brick Lane, E1 6SA 

 

I write with reference regarding the above application� Please accept this letter as 

notification that the police as a responsible authority wish to object to this application on the 

following two licensing objectives� 

 

The prevention of crime and disorder  

The prevention of public nuisance 

 

The applicant has applied for late night refreshments on Friday and Saturday from ��   !

 "   

 

LBTH has recently adopted a Saturation Policy & Cumulative Impact Policy for the Brick 

Lane Area�  This policy was adopted due to the concerns about the number of licensed 

Page 50



 

Re: Subway, 222, Brick Lane, London E1 6SA 

Author PC 291HT Brendan O’Rourke, Licensing Officer, Metropolitan Police Service, Limehouse Police Station, 27, West India Dock Road, London E14 8EZ        Page 2 of 6 

premises in such a small area and the resulting number of ASB calls and the potential for 

disorder� 

With regards to this policy+ the licensing authority will normally refuse any new applications 

or any variation of these in the cumulative impact zone- unless the applicant can 

demonstrate there will be no negative cumulative impact on one or more of the 

licensing objectives�  

 

 Brick Lane has become a “destination venue” for the night time economy in Tower 

Hamlets� There has been a steady increase in bars+ restaurants and fast food premises�  

One more late night opening venue will only compound the problems at the top end of Brick 

Lane� It has been suggested at a separate hearing for a TEN application by the applicant+ 

that there are already two nearby shops open throughout the night and the opening of this 

Subway venue will ease the congestion� 

I said at the time+ that if these two premises were to apply today for late night refreshments 

until 3am+ we would oppose it� 

This top end of Brick Lane is already busy+ with people hanging around the bagel shops� 

The availability of alcohol and food at these late hours keeps people in the Brick Lane area 

for a longer period of time+ contributing to ASB and the potential for violence� 

Can the applicant provide evidence that the operation of the premises will not add to the 

negative cumulative impact already being experienced in this area5 

 

Page 51



 

Re: Subway, 222, Brick Lane, London E1 6SA 

Author PC 291HT Brendan O’Rourke, Licensing Officer, Metropolitan Police Service, Limehouse Police Station, 27, West India Dock Road, London E14 8EZ        Page 3 of 6 

Can they reassure the committee that they will not contribute to ASB when their patrons 

leave the venue whether it is standing in the street drinking or shouting at the top of their 

voices5  

 

This area suffers from a high amount of anti!social behaviour+ to the extent that police 

statistics show that between ��6   hours on Friday and  �6   hours on Monday the 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets is second only to Westminster 8West 

End&Soho&Covent Garden: for Anti!Social Behaviour 8ASB: calls to Police in London�  

 

The premises also falls within the ‘Shoreditch Triangle’+ which comprises of the tri!borough 

wards of Haggerston ward 8Hackney:+ Weavers and Spitalfields = Banglatown wards 

8Tower Hamlets: and Bunhill Ward 8Islington: are four wards which are high crime 

generators for their respective boroughs especially around Theft Person and the Night Time 

Economy� Tower Hamlets wards contribute �>? of all Theft Person Offences� 

 

Peak times are between Friday � 6   hours to Saturday  "6   hours and Saturday � 6   

hours to Sunday  "6   hours and these @A hours are responsible for �@? of all the 

offences�  

 

Page 52



 

Re: Subway, 222, Brick Lane, London E1 6SA 

Author PC 291HT Brendan O’Rourke, Licensing Officer, Metropolitan Police Service, Limehouse Police Station, 27, West India Dock Road, London E14 8EZ        Page 4 of 6 

�3? of all crime in Spitalfields and Banglatown ward is committed between � 6   hours to 

 �6   hours Friday to Sunday� � ? of all crime in Weavers ward is committed between 

� 6   hours to  �6   hours Friday to Sunday� 

I am hoping to include a statement from Weavers NPT in regards to this area� 

 

 

The hours applied for falls into the above peak hours�  

In relation to Subway itself+ I refer the committee to part of a TEN objection submitted by 

my licensing colleague+ PC O’Rourke� 

 

“At present, the venue does not hold a premises licence and therefore cannot open 

between 23:00 hours and 05:00 hours to sell hot food or drinks. 

 

On Sunday, 27/10/13 at 00:10 hours, PC 291HT O'Rourke attended the premises and 

witnessed the sale of hot food and drink, in a statement dated 27/10/13 he states:  

 

“At approximately 00:10 I attended the premises and saw that a male had just bought 

a sandwich with melted cheese on it. A female came in and bought a hot tea. Two 

other males then bought meatball sandwiches, which were steaming hot”. 

 

PC O’ROURKE then spoke the manager who identified himself as Mr. Mohammed 

ALAM, DOB 10/02/1983, who told him that he also ran the Subway in Whitechapel on 

Mile End Road. 

In short Mr. ALAM led PC O’ROURKE to believe that there was a mix up in that Mr. 

ALAM understood the planning permission granted to the premises as ‘A1 no 

restriction’, meant he could open whenever he wanted and that he had emails from the 

Council confirming this” 

Mr. Alam was reported for unauthorized sales by PC O’Rourke 

Page 53



 

Re: Subway, 222, Brick Lane, London E1 6SA 

Author PC 291HT Brendan O’Rourke, Licensing Officer, Metropolitan Police Service, Limehouse Police Station, 27, West India Dock Road, London E14 8EZ        Page 5 of 6 

PC O’Rourke later obtained a statement from Mr. Alex Lisowski of LBTH Licensing. In 

it, he states: 

  

“On Monday, 29th April 2013, I received a complaint from a neighbour that Subway, 

Unit 2, 6-25, Mile End Road, London E1 4TP, was providing late night refreshment 

without a premises licence. I checked my department records, Subway did not have a 

premises licence. As part of my investigation of this complaint I wrote a letter for the 

owner of the Subway at Unit 2, advising him of the law about the provision of late night 

refreshment. On Thursday, 2nd May 2013 at 16:30 hours I went to Subway, Unit 2 to 

deliver the letter and asked to speak to the manager. The person I spoke to told me he 

was the owner and subsequently gave his name as Mohammed ALAM. I explained to 

him that I was investigating a complaint and I gave him the letter”. 

(Please see the statement in full) 

 

I am concerned that Mr. ALAM either chose to ignore the advice in the letter or that he 

failed to open the letter, when a responsible business operator would consider this to 

be important. 

Did he get advice from the Subway franchise on how to operate lawfully?  

I acknowledge that he has operated under the TEN system without any reported 

incidents but there is a difference between operating on a limited number of TENs and 

an all year round business. 

 

To reiterate, the top end of Brick Lane is now as busy as any part of the CIZ. 

  I therefore ask the committee to refuse this application as it falls within the CIZ� I 

understand however that each application is scrutinized by the committee on an individual 

basis� 

 

If they are to consider granting a licence+ I would ask that the following CCTV condition� 

 

 

Install / maintain CCTV 

 

CCTV   

Page 54



 

Re: Subway, 222, Brick Lane, London E1 6SA 

Author PC 291HT Brendan O’Rourke, Licensing Officer, Metropolitan Police Service, Limehouse Police Station, 27, West India Dock Road, London E14 8EZ        Page 6 of 6 

    The CCTV system shall incorporate a recording facility and any recordings shall be 

retained and stored in a suitable and secure manner for a minimum of �@ days� A system 

shall be in place to maintain the quality of the recorded image and a complete audit trail 

maintained� The system will comply with other essential legislation+ and all signs as 

required will be clearly displayed� The system will be maintained and fully operational 

throughout the hours that the premises are open for any licensable activity� There must also 

be someone on the premises+ who can download the images and present them on request 

by a police officer or other responsible authority+ 

 

 8Can one camera be placed o&s the entrance and on entry: 

 

 

Alan Cruickshank PC @>FHT 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



      Appendix 4 
 
 
 
 

Page 58



Section 182 Advice by the Home Office 

Updated 201

Relevant, vexatious and frivolous representations 

9.4  A representation is “relevant” if it relates to the likely effect of the grant of 
the licence on the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives. 
For example, a representation from a local businessperson about the 
commercial damage caused by competition from new licensed premises 
would not be relevant. On the other hand, a representation by a 
businessperson that nuisance caused by new premises would deter 
customers from entering the local area, and the steps proposed by the 
applicant to prevent that nuisance were inadequate, would be relevant. 
In other words, representations should relate to the impact of licensable 
activities carried on from premises on the objectives. For representations 
in relation to variations to be relevant, they should be confined to the 
subject matter of the variation. There is no requirement for a responsible 
authority or other person to produce a recorded history of problems at 
premises to support their representations, and in fact this would not be 
possible for new premises. 

9.5  It is for the licensing authority to determine whether a representation 
(other than a representation from responsible authority) is frivolous or 
vexatious on the basis of what might ordinarily be considered to be 
vexatious or frivolous. A representation may be considered to be 
vexatious if it appears to be intended to cause aggravation or 
annoyance, whether to a competitor or other person, without reasonable 
cause or justification. Vexatious circumstances may arise because of 
disputes between rival businesses and local knowledge will therefore be 
invaluable in considering such matters. Licensing authorities can 
consider the main effect of the representation, and whether any 
inconvenience or expense caused by it could reasonably be considered 
to be proportionate. 

9.6  Frivolous representations would be essentially categorised by a lack of 
seriousness. Frivolous representations would concern issues which, at 
most, are minor and in relation to which no remedial steps would be 
warranted or proportionate. 

9.7  Any person who is aggrieved by a rejection of their representations on 
either of these grounds may lodge a complaint through the local 
authority’s corporate complaints procedure. A person may also 
challenge the authority’s decision by way of judicial review. 

9.8  Licensing authorities should not take decisions about whether 
representations are frivolous, vexatious or relevant to the licensing 
objectives on the basis of any political judgement. This may be difficult 
for councillors who receive complaints from residents within their own 
wards. If consideration is not to be delegated, contrary to the 

Page 59



recommendation in this Guidance, an assessment should be prepared 
by officials for consideration by the sub- committee before any decision 
is taken that necessitates a hearing. Any councillor who considers that 
their own interests are such that they are unable to consider the matter 
independently should disqualify themselves. 

9.9  It is recommended that, in borderline cases, the benefit of the doubt 
about any aspect of a representation should be given to the person 
making that representation. The subsequent hearing would then provide 
an opportunity for the person or body making the representation to 
amplify and clarify it. 

9.10 Licensing authorities should consider providing advice on their websites 
about how any person can make representations to them. 

Page 60



Appendix 5 
 
 
 
 

Page 61



  
Crime and Disorder on the Premises  
 
 
Licensing Policy 
 
The Licensing Authority expects the applicant to have addressed all crime and 
disorder issues relating to the premises in their operating schedule and to 
have sought appropriate advice. (See Sections 5.2. of the Licensing Policy) 
 
The Licensing Authority will consider attaching conditions to deter crime and 
disorder and these may include conditions drawn from the Model Pool of 
Conditions relating to Crime and Disorder. (See Appendix 2 Annex D of the 
Licensing Policy). In particular Members may wish to consider (this list is not 
exhaustive): 
• Methods of management communication 
• Use of registered Door Supervisors 
• Bottle Bans 
• Plastic containers 
• CCTV 
• Restrictions on open containers for “off sales” 
• Restrictions on drinking areas 
• Capacity  
• Proof of Age scheme 
• Crime prevention notices 
• Drinks promotions-aimed at stopping irresponsible promotions 
• Signage 
• Seating plans 
• Capacity 
 
If Members believe that there is a substantial problem of anti-social behaviour 
and it cannot be proportionately addressed by licensing conditions they 
should refuse the application. 
 
Police Powers 
 
The Licensing Act 2003, Part 8 gives a senior police officer the power to close 
a premises for up to 24 hours where the officer believes there is, or is likely to 
be disorder on or in the vicinity and closure is necessary in the interests of 
public safety. 
 
Guidance Issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 
The pool of conditions, adopted by the council is recommended (Annexe D). 
 
The key role of the police is acknowledged (2.2).   
Conditions attached to licences cannot seek to manage the behaviour of 
customers once they are beyond the direct management of the licence holder 
and their staff or agents, but can directly impact on the behaviour of 

Page 62



customers on, or in the immediate vicinity of the premises as they seek entry 
or leave (2.4).  
 
Conditions are best targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder 
(S.2.6) communication, CCTV, police liaison, no glasses, capacity limits are 
all relevant (S.2.7-2.11). 
 
Guidance Issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 
 
Conditions can be imposed for large capacity “vertical consumption” premises 
(10.43). 
 
Guidance Issued by the Office of Fair Trading 
This relates to attempts to control minimum prices 
 
 
Other Legislation 
 
The Council has a duty under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
to do all it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder. 

Page 63



Appendix 6 
 
 
 
 

Page 64



  
 
Crime and Disorder From Patrons Leaving The Premises  
 
 
General Advice 
 
Members need to bear in mind that once patrons have left a premises they 
are no longer under direct control. Members will need to be satisfied that there 
is a link between the way the premises is operating and the behaviour that is 
complained of. An example of this would be that irresponsible drinking is 
being encouraged.  Before deciding that any particular licensing conditions 
are proportionate, Members will also need to be satisfied that other legislation 
is not a more effective route.  For example, if the problem is drinking in the 
street it may be that the Council should designate the area as a place where 
alcohol cannot be consumed in public. 
 
Members may also wish to consider whether the hours of opening relate to 
any problems of anti-social behaviour.  
 
If Members believe that there is a substantial problem of anti-social behaviour 
and it cannot be proportionately addressed by licensing conditions they 
should refuse the application.  
 
 
Licensing Policy 
 
The policy recognises that other legislation or measures may be more 
appropriate but also states that licensing laws are “a key aspect of such 
control and will always be part of an overall approach to the management of 
the evening and night time economy.” Other controls need to be bourne in 
mind. (See Section 4.10 and 4.11 of the Licensing Policy). 
 
• The Licensing Authority will consider attaching conditions to deter crime 

and disorder and these may include Conditions drawn from the Model Poll 
of Conditions relating to Crime and Disorder. (See Appendix 2 Annex D 
of the Licensing Policy. 

 
Police Powers 
 
The Licensing Act 2003, Part 8 gives a senior police officer the power to close 
a premises for up to 24 hours where the officer believes there is, or is likely to 
be disorder on or in the vicinity and closure is necessary in the interests of 
public. 
 
Guidance Issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 
The pool of conditions, adopted by the council is recommended (Annexe D). 
The key role of the police is acknowledged (2.2).   
Conditions attached to licences cannot seek to manage the behaviour of 
customers once they are beyond the direct management of the licence holder 

Page 65



and their staff or agents, but can directly impact on the behaviour of 
customers on, or in the immediate vicinity of the premises as they seek entry 
or leave (2.4).  
Conditions are best targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder 
(S.2.6) communication, CCTV, police liaison, no glasses, capacity limits are 
all relevant (S.2.7-2.11). 
Conditions can be imposed for large capacity “vertical consumption” premises 
(10.43). 
 
There is also guidance issued around the heading of “public nuisance as 
follows 
The pool of conditions, adopted by the council is recommended (Annexe G). 
Licence conditions should not duplicate other legislation (1.16). 
Necessary and appropriate conditions should normally focus on the most 
sensitive periods and may address disturbance as customers enter or leave 
the premises (2.36) but it is essential that conditions are focused on measures 
within the direct control of the licence holder” (2.38). Conditions relating to 
behaviour once they are beyond the control of the licence holder cannot be 
justified. (2.38) 
 
Other Legislation 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
The Council has a duty under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
to do all it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder. 
 
The Act also introduced a wide range of measures designed to address anti-
social behaviour committed by adults and young people. These include: 
• Anti-Social Behaviour Orders 
• Child Curfew Schemes 
• Truancy 
• Parenting Orders 
• Reparation Orders 
• Tackling Racism 
 

Page 66



Appendix 7 
 
 
 
 

Page 67



 
Access and Egress problems 
 
Such as: 
Disturbance from patrons arriving/leaving the premises on foot 
Disturbance from patrons arriving/leaving the premises by car 
Lack of adequate car parking facilities 
Close proximity to residential properties 
 
Comment 
 
The above have been grouped together as egress problems.  Of course the 
particular facts will be different for each alleged problem. 
 
General Advice 
 
In considering concerns relating to disturbance from egress, Members need to 
be satisfied that the premises under consideration has been identified as the 
source of the actual or potential disturbance. If they are satisfied that this is a 
problem, then proportionate conditions should be considered. 
 
The hours of operation also need to be considered. 
 
If Members believe that there is a substantial problem concerning egress and 
it cannot be proportionately addressed by licensing conditions, they should 
refuse the application. 
 
Licensing Policy 
 
The policy recognises that noise nuisance can be an issue, especially if a 
premises is open late at night. (See Sections 8.1 of the Licensing Policy). 
 
The Licensing Authority expects the applicant to have addressed all nuisance 
issues relating to the premises in their operating schedule and to have sought 
appropriate advice from the Council’s Environmental Health Officers. (See 
Section 8.2 of the Licensing Policy).  
 
However, while all applications will be considered on their merits, 
consideration will be given to imposing stricter conditions in respect of noise 
control where premises are situated close to local residents. (See Section 
12.10)  
 
The Licensing Authority will consider attaching conditions to prevent nuisance 
and these may include Conditions drawn from the Model Poll of Conditions 
relating to the prevention of Public Nuisance. (See Appendix 2 Annex G of 
the Licensing Policy). In particular Members may wish to consider (this list is 
not exhaustive): 

• hours of opening (this needs to be balanced against potential disorder 
caused by artificially early closing times 

Page 68



• Whether certain parts should close earlier than the rest (for example a 
“beer garden”, or restricted in their use   

• Whether or not certain activities should have to close at an early hour, 
for example live music 

• Conditions controlling noise or vibration (for example, noise limiters, 
keeping doors and windows closed). 

• Prominent clear and legible notices at all exits requesting the public to 
respect the needs of local residents and leave the premises and area 
quietly 

 
Guidance Issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003  
The pool of conditions, adopted by the council is recommended (Annex G). 
The prevention of public nuisance could include low-level nuisance, perhaps 
affecting a few people living locally as well as major disturbance affecting the 
whole community. (2.33). 
Licence conditions should not duplicate other legislation (1.16). 
Necessary and appropriate conditions should normally focus on the most 
sensitive periods and may address disturbance as customers enter or leave 
the premises (2.36) but it is essential that conditions are focused on measures 
within the direct control of the licence holder” (2.38). 
In certain circumstances conditions relating to noise in the immediate vicinity 
of the premises may also prove necessary to address any disturbance 
anticipated as customers enter and leave (2.36).  
However, it is essential that conditions are focused on measures within the 
direct control of the licence holder. Conditions relating to behaviour once they 
are beyond the control of the licence holder cannot be justified. (2.38)  
 

Page 69



Appendix 8 
 
 
 
 

Page 70



 
  

Planning 

An application for a Premises Licence can be made in respect of a premises 
even where the premises does not have relevant Planning Permission.  
That application has to be considered and Members can only refuse the 
application where the application itself does not promote one of more of the 
Licensing Objectives.  Members cannot refuse just because there is no 
planning permission.  Where a Premises Licence is granted and which 
exceeds what is allowed by the Planning Permission and that Premises then 
operates in breach of planning then the operator would be liable to 
enforcement by Planning. 
 
 
 

Page 71



Appendix 9 
 
 
 
 

Page 72



  
Licensing Policy relating to hours of trading   
 
All applications have to be considered on their own merits.      
 
The Council has however adopted a set of framework hours as follows 
Monday to Thursday  06:00 hrs to 23:30 hrs 
Friday and Saturday 06:00 hrs to midnight 
Sunday   06:00 hrs to 22:30 hrs 
 
(see 12.8 0f the licensing policy) 
 
In considering the applicability of frame work hours to any particular 
application regard should be had to the following 

• Location 
• Proposed hours of regulated activities, and the proposed hours the 

premises are open to the public 
• The adequacy of the applicants proposals to deal with issues of crime 

and disorder and public nuisance 
• Previous history 
• Access to public transport 
• Proximity to other licensed premises, and their hours 

(see 12.8 of the licensing policy) 
 
Subject to any representations to the contrary in individual cases the following 
premises are not generally considered to contribute to late night anti-social 
behaviour and will therefore generally have greater freedom 

• Theatres 
• Cinemas 
• Premises with club premises certificates 
• Premises licensed for off sales only 
 

 

Page 73



Appendix 10 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 74



Licensing Policy 

8 Special Cumulative Impact Policy for the Brick Lane Area 

8.1  As with many other London Borough’s the majority of late night licensed 
premises are concentrated within one area of the Borough. Following guidance 
issued under the Licensing Act 2003 a cumulative impact policy was adopted 
on 18th September 2013 by the Council.  

8.2  After consultation the Council recognises that because of the number and 
density of licensed premises selling alcohol, on and off the premises and the 
provision of late night refreshment (sale of hot food after 11pm) within the Brick 
Lane Area as defined in Figure One, there might be exceptional problems of 
nuisance, disturbance and/or disorder outside or away from those licensed 
premises as a result of their combined effect.  

8.3  The Licensing Authority is now of the view that the number, type and density of 
premises selling alcohol for consumption on and off the premises and/or the 
provision of late night refreshment in the area highlighted in Figure One is 
having a cumulative impact on the licensing objectives and has therefore 
declared a cumulative impact zone. 

8.4 The effect of this Special Cumulative Impact Policy is to create a rebuttable 
presumption for applications in respect of the sale or supply of alcohol on or off 
the premises and/or late Night Refreshment for new Premises Licences, Club 
Premises Certificates or Provisional Statements and applications for variations 
of existing Premises Licences, Club Premises Certificates (where the 
modifications are relevant to the issue of cumulative impact for example 
increases in hours or capacity). Where the premises are situated in the 
cumulative impact zone and a representation is received, the licence will be 
refused. To rebut this presumption the applicant would be expected to show 
through the operating schedule and where appropriate with supporting 
evidence that the operation of the premises will not add to the cumulative 
impact already being experienced. This policy does not act as an absolute 
prohibition on granting/varying new licences in the Cumulative Impact Zone.  

8.5  The Special Cumulative Impact policy will not be used to revoke an existing 
licence or certificate and will not be applicable during the review of existing 
licences.  

Page 75



Figure One  
The Cumulative Impact Zone in the Brick Lane area 
The Cumulative Impact Zone is detailed in the map below. The map shows all of the 

premises (dots) currently licensed under the Licensing Act 2003 in the Brick Lane 

Area. The Cumulative Impact Zone is defined by the dark line. 

Page 76



 

Committee: 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

Date:  
 

04 February 2014 

Classification: 

 

UNRESTRICTED 

Report No. 
 

LSC 58/134 

Agenda 
Item No. 

 

Report of : 

David Tolley 
Head of Consumer and Business 
Relations 
 
Originating Officer:  

Andrew Heron 
Licensing Officer 
 

Title: 

Licensing Act 2003 Application for a 
Review of a Premises Licence at JB Food 
Store, 97b Brick Lane, London, E1 6SE 
 
Ward affected:  

Weavers 
 

 

 
1.0 Summary 

 
Name and   JB Food Store 
 
Address of premises:  97b Brick Lane 
     London 

E1 6SE  
 
Licence under review: Licensing Act 2003  

§ Sale by retail of alcohol 
 

Representations:  -Trading Standards 
  - Police 
  - Director of Public Health 
  - Local Residents 
   
 

 

 

2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 That the Licensing Committee considers the application for review and 

then adjudicates accordingly. 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT  2000 (Section 97) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE DRAFTING OF THIS REPORT 

   
   
Brief description of "background paper" Tick if copy supplied for 

register 
 

If not supplied, name and telephone 
number of holder 

• Guidance Issued under Section 182 
of the Licensing Act 2003  

• Tower Hamlets Licensing Policy 

• File  

 Andrew Heron 
020 7364 2665 

Page 77

Agenda Item 4.2



Review Application 
 
2.2 This is an application for a review of the premises licence for JB Food 

Store, 97b Brick Lane, London, E1 6SE. The review was triggered by Mr 
John McCrohan of Tower Hamlets Trading Standards. 

 
2.3 A copy of the review application is attached in Appendix 1. 
 

 

3.0 The Premises 
 
3.1 The premises licence was issued on 10th March 2006. A copy of the 

current licence is contained in Appendix 2. 
 

3.2 Maps showing the premises, surrounding area and vicinity of local 
residents are included in Appendix 3. 

 
 
4.0 Representations 
 
4.1 This hearing is required by the Licensing Act 2003, because a review 

has been triggered byMr John McCrohan of Tower Hamlets Trading 
Standards.  

 
4.2 This Service respectfully refers the Licensing sub-committee to the 

Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 by the 
Home Office.  In particular the Service requests that you consider 
paragraphs 11.23 to 11.28, Reviews arising in connection with crime, 
making reference to paragraph 11.26.  Paragraph 11.26 states that there 
is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed 
premises, which the Secretary of State considers should be treated 
particularly seriously.  These are the use of the licensed premises for, 
amongst other things, the sale of smuggled tobacco.  In paragraph 11.27 
the guidance advises that revocation of the licence should seriously be 
considered, even at first instance.  
 

4.3 The review is also supported by local residents: 
 

• Prof KarimBrohi 

• Alex Gordon Shute 

• Jane Curtis and Keith Bowler 

• Sandy Critchley- Vice-Chairman, Spitalfields Society 

• SelinaMisfud - Spitalfields Community Group 

• Jon Shapiro – resident, Chair of the Spitalfields & Banglatown 
Police Ward Panel and Chair of SPIRE (Spitalfields Residents) 

• Paul Hutchison 

Page 78



 
4.4 Please see Appendices 4-10for the individual representations. 

 
4.5 The review is further supported by Dr Somen Banerjee, the Director of 

Public Health for Tower Hamlets.  Please see Appendix 11. 
 

4.6 The review is further supported by PC Perry of the Metropolitan Police. 
Please see Appendix 12. 
 

4.7 Only representations that relate to the following licensing objectives are 
relevant: 

• the prevention of crime and disorder 

• public safety 

• the prevention of public nuisance 

• the protection of children from harm  
 
4.8 In the view of the interested party and the responsible authorities it is 

necessary to achieve the licensing objectives of the prevention of public 
nuisance and prevention of crime & disorder. 
 

 
5.0 Review Explained 

 
5.1 The Licensing Act 2003 was described by the Government at the time as 

“light touch” but as Baroness Blackstone stated in the Lords at the time 
of the second reading (26 Nov 2002) “Local residents and businesses  
as well as expert bodies, will have the power to request that the licensing 
authority review existing licences where problems arise. Such a review 
could result in the modification of the licence, its suspension, or 
ultimately, revocation.” 

 

5.2 The Home Office has issued guidance under Section 182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 in relation to reviews and that is contained in 
Appendix 13. It is available on the Government’s website, 
www.homeoffice.gov.uk.It was last revised in October 2010. 

 
5.3 Members are particularly asked to note the comments in relation Crime 

and Disorder. In particular the home office advice is that “The role of the 
licensing authority when determining such a review is not therefore to 
establish the guilt or innocence of any individual but to ensure that the 
crime prevention objective is promoted.” 

Page 79



5.4 In relation to its advice on representations the home office has also 
advised that “there is no requirement for an interested party or 
responsible authority to produce a recorded history of problems at a 
premises to support their representations.” It has also issued revised 
guidance about Crime and Disorder, and the pool of conditions which 
might be considered in relation to any identified problems. See 
Appendix 14. 
 

5.5 Members should also note the Council’s Licensing Policy in relation to 
Crime and Disorder, the relevant parts of which are contained in 
Appendix 15. The Pool Conditions in the Policy are the same as the 
Government’s. 

 

5.6 TheHome Office has also issued guidance about the prevention of public 
nuisance and the pool of conditions which might be considered in 
relation to any identified problems is contained in Appendix 16. 
 

5.7 The Council’s Licensing Policy in relation to Public Nuisance is 
contained in Appendix 17. 
 

5.8 TheHome Office has advised that in relation to reviews “It is important to 
recognise that the promotion of licensing objectives relies heavily on a 
partnership between licence holders, authorised persons, interested 
parties and responsible authorities in pursuit of common aims. It is 
therefore equally important that reviews are not used to drive a wedge 
between those groups in a way that would undermine the benefits of co-
operation. It would be good practice for authorised persons and 
responsible authorities to give licenceholders early warning of their 
concerns about problems identified at the premises concerned and of 
the need for improvement. It is expected that a failure to respond to such 
warnings would lead to a decision to request a review.” 

 

5.9 The licensing authority itself cannot trigger a review; that can only be 
done by a responsible authority or an interested party (local resident, 
businessor member of the Licensing Authority). 

 

5.10 An interested party or a responsible authority can trigger a review at any 
time, but the grounds must be relevant to the licensing objectives. The 
form of the application, and the advertisement of the review are the 
subject of regulations (The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and 
Club Premises Certificate) Regulations 2005). In addition, the licensing 
authority has to satisfy itself of certain matters in relation to the Licensing 
Act 2003. The Licensing Services Manager Ms Jacqueline Randallis the 
delegated officer who deals with this on behalf of the licensing authority. 
All the matters stated in 5.0.were considered before any representations 
were accepted for inclusion in this report. 

 

Page 80



5.11 The Licensing Act 2003 requires that the Licensing Authority satisfies 
itself that it should reject the grounds for a review because: 

• The ground is not relevant to one or more of the licensing 
objectives 

• In the case of an application by a local resident that the 
application is frivolous, vexatious or repetitious.  

 

 

6.0 Review Advertisement 
 

6.1 The review was advertised by a blue poster, next to the premises, by the 
Licensing Section. This was periodically monitored by the Section to 
ensure it was on continuous display, and replaced as necessary. It was 
also advertised at Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, LondonE14 2BG. 

 

6.2 The party that triggers the review must notify the licence holder and 
responsible authorities. The review documents were sent to the licence 
holders. 

 

6.3 The procedure for a review can be summarised as follows: 

• A review is triggered by a responsible authority or interested party 

• Consultation is conducted for 28 full days 

• Other responsible authorities or interested parties may join in the 
review 

• Members conduct a hearing 

• Members make a determination 

• All the parties to the review have the right of appeal to the 
magistrates court (i.e. the licence holder, the person who triggered 
the review and those who have made a representation).  

 

 

7.0 Licensing Officer Comments 
 
7.1 Members must consider all the evidence and then decide from the 

following alternatives: 
 

• Take no further action as they do not consider it proportionate to do 
so 

 

• Impose conditions (including altering existing permissions) that 
relate to problems which they consider have been identified and 
which are necessary and proportionate to ensure that the licensing 
objectives are met 

 

• Suspend the licence for a period 
 

• Revoke the licence completely 
 

Page 81



7.2 The licence should only be suspended or revoked if Members believe 
that alterations to the existing licence, including imposing new conditions 
does not have a reasonable prospect of ensuring that the licensing 
objectives are met.   

 
7.3 Members should bear in mind that conditions may not be imposed for 

any purpose other than to meet the licensing objectives. 
 
7.4 In all cases the Members should make their decision on the civil burden 

of proof that is “the balance of probability.” 
 
7.5 In all cases Members should consider whether or not primary legislation 

is the appropriate method of regulation and should only consider licence 
conditions when the circumstances in their view are not already 
adequately covered elsewhere.  

 
 
8.0 Legal Comments 
 
8.1 The Council’s legal officer will give advice at the hearing. 
 
 
9.0 Finance Comments 
 
9.1 There are no financial implications in this report. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 82



10.0 Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 Copy of the review application 
 

Appendix 2 Current Premises Licence 
 

Appendix 3 Maps of the premises and surrounding area 
 

Appendix 4 Representation from local resident  Prof Karim Brohi 
 

Appendix 5  Representation from local resident Alex Gordon Shute 
 

Appendix 6 Representation from local resident Jane Curtis and Keith 
Bowler 
 

Appendix 7 Representation from local resident Sandy Critchley- Vice-
Chairman, Spitalfields Society 
 

Appendix 8 Representation from local resident Selina Misfud - 
Spitalfields Community Group 
 

Appendix 9 Representation from local resident Jon Shapiro – resident, 
Chair of the Spitalfields & Banglatown Police Ward Panel 
and Chair of SPIRE (Spitalfields Residents) 
 

Appendix 10 Representation from local resident Paul Hutchison 
 

Appendix 11 Representation from Dr Somen Banerjee, the Director of 
Public Health for Tower Hamlets 
 

Appendix 12 Representation from PC Perry of the Metropolitan Police 
 

Appendix 13 Guidance issued under Section 182 by the Home Office for 
reviews 
 

Appendix 14 Guidance Issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of 
the Licensing Act 2003 concerning Crime and Disorder 
 

Appendix 15 London Borough of Tower Hamlets Licensing Policy 
 

Appendix 16 Guidance Issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of 
the Licensing Act 2003 concerning Public Nuisance 
 

Appendix 17 London Borough of Tower Hamlets Policy in relation to the 
prevention of Public Nuisance 
 

 

 

 

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



 Appendix 1 

Page 85



Application for the review of a premises licence or club 
premises certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. 
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all 
cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use 
additional sheets if necessary. 
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records. 

I John Patrick McCrohan 
(Insert name of applicant) 

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below (delete as applicable) 

Part 1 - Premises or club premises details 

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description 
97 Brick Lane 

Post town Post code (if known) E16SE 

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if 
known) 
JB Food Store Limited 

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known 
13125 

Part 2 • Applicant details 
lam 

1) an interested party {please complete (A) or (B) below) 
Please tick yes 

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises 0 

b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises 0 

c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises 0 

d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the 0 
premises 

2) a responsible authority {please complete (C) below) 

Page 86



3) a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A) D 
below) 

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable) 

Please tick 
Mr D Mrs D 

Surname 

I am 18 years old or over 

Current postal n/a 
address if 
different from 
premises 
address 

Post town In/a 

Miss D 

Daytime contact telephone number 

(optional) 

Ms D Other title 
(for example, Rev) 

First names 

I n/a 

Please tick yes 

D 

Post Code I n/a 

I n/a 

E-mail address I n/a 

L---------------------------------------~ 

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT 

Name and address 
n/a 

Telephone number (if any) 
n/a 

E-mail address (optional) 
n/a 

2 
Page 87



(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT 

Name and address 
John McCrohan 
Licensing Authority 
Trading Standards and Licensing Service 
London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
Mulberry Place (AH) 
PO Box 55739 
5 Clove Crescent 
London, 
E141BY 

Telephone number (if any) 
 

E-mail address (optional) 
 

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s) 

1 ) the prevention of crime and disorder 
2) public safety 
3) the prevention of public nuisance 
4) the protection of children from harm 

Please tick one or more boxes 
18] 
D 
18] 
D 

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 1) 
Please refer to attached document. 

3 
Page 88



Please provide as much information as possible to support the application 
(please read guidance note 2) 

Please refer to attached document. 

4 Page 89



Please tick yes 
Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before D 

If yes please state the date of that application 
Day Month Year 

I I I I I I I I 

If you have made representations before relating to this premises please state 
what they were and when you made them 
n/a 

5 Page 90



Please tick yes 
• I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible [81 

authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club 
premises certificate, as appropriate 

• I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements 181 
my application will be rejected 

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON 
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
APPLICATION 

Part 3- Signatures (please read guidance note 3) 

Signature of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent 
(See guidance note 4).1f signing on behalf ofthe applicant please state in what 
capacity.

Date 

Capacity TRADING STANDARDS AND LICENSING MANAGER 

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for 
correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 5) 

Post town I Post Code 

Telephone number (if any) 

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-
mail address (optional) 

Notes for Guidance 

1. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives. 
2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems 

which are included in the grounds for review if available. 
3. The application form must be signed. 
4. An applicant's agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf 

provided that they have actual authority to do so. 
5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this 

application. 

6 Page 91



London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

97 Brick Lane London E1 6SE 

Licence No 13125 (Licence Holder - JB Food Store Limited) 

Application for the Review of the Premises Licence under Section 51 of the 

Licensing Act 2003 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets- Licensing Authority 

REPRESENTATIONS 

1. The Licensing Authority is designated a 'responsible authority' for the purposes of 

the Act and it is raising this Review in relation to the prevention of Crime and 

Disorder licensing objective, and public nuisance licensing objective. 

2. The premises at 97 Brick Lane, holds a Premises Licence under the Licensing 

Act 2003, numbered 13125 

3. The Premises Licence Holder is JB Food Store Limited. 

4. The Designated Premises Supervisor at the premises is Mr Abdul Halim. 

Drinking control zone 

m:\tradstan\word97\community safety\alcohol\reviews\j b food store ltd 97b brick lane\jb 
food store ltd licensing review pro forma.docx 

Page 92



5. The Council has introduced Designated Public Place Orders (DPPO)," a drinking 

control zone" across the Borough having been satisfied that there was an alcohol 

related nuisance or annoyance to the public in the Borough. 

Saturation policy 

6. The Premises is within the cumulative impact policy zone (saturation policy) that 

is currently in the progress of being implemented. The justification for a 

saturation policy in Brick Lane can be summarised as:-

A) There are already over 207 Licensed Premises within this small 

area; 

b) The continuing high levels of violent I alcohol related in the 

Brick Lane 

Area (2011 Violent Crime 30% of all Alcohol Related Crime); 

c). It is responsible for 8% of all crime within Tower Hamlets; 

d) . It is responsible for the highest level of complaints about street 

drinking; 

e) . 22% of all police calls to licensed premises are in the Brick 

Lane Area; 

f.) There are clear demonstrable links between violence against 

the person offences and alcohol related violence in the Brick Lane 

Area; 

g) . LBTH has the second highest level of ASB in London; 

h) . The highest rates of ASB in the Borough are in the Brick Lane 

Area; 

m:\tradstan\word97\community safety\alcohol\reviews\j b food store ltd 97b brick lane\jb 
food store ltd licensing review pro forma.docx Page 93



i) . ASB is now decreasing in the Borough and Brick Lane Area 

but it still is at levels that continues to give rise to complaints from local 

residents; 

j) . LBTH has significantly worse alcohol related harm indicators 

compared with regional and national averages; 

k) . There is a steady increase in ambulance call outs in the Brick 

Lane Area; 

I) . The Brick Lane Area has a vibrant and expanding night time 

economy which has led to a sizeable and steady increase in visitors to 

the area; 

m) . Considerable tensions have been built up because of the 

conflicting demands of the night time economy and the local residents. 

Brick lane - Shoreditch ASB/crime hot spot 

7. The Licensing Authority understands that the Brick Lane/Shoreditch triangle that 

runs across Islington, Hackney and Tower Hamlets is flagged as a crime and 

disorder hotspot of the similar magnitude as Westminster. To address this, the 

Metropolitan Police is extending its Operation Trafalgar to include Brick lane and 

the Shoreditch area. 

Crime and disorder 

Two Under age sales of alcohol 

m:\tradstan\word97\community safety\alcohol\reviews\j b food store ltd 97b brick lane\jb 
food store ltd licensing review pro fonna.docx 

Page 94



8. On 251h October 2010, a sale of alcohol was made to an under-age test 

purchaser. 

9. On 141h December 2010, a sale of alcohol was made to an under-age test 

purchaser. 

10. Two test purchases using an under age test purchaser were conducted at the 

premises in 2011 and 2012, and in both cases, the sale was refused 

Seizure of smuggled wine 

11 . On 121h September 2012t a quantity 28 bottles smuggled wine was seized by Her 

Majesty's Revenue and Customs (HMRC) during a partnership visit with the 

Police and Trading Standards. 

Test purchase 00:40 on Saturday 17th August 2013- opened bottle of 

Becks Beer 

12.At around 00:40 on Saturday 11'h August 2013 a smoke free Technical officer 

entered JB Food Store, 97 Brick Lane, London, E1 6SE accompanied by an 

Environmental Health Officer (EHO). The EHO observed that the_shop was open 

and trading. She witness her colleague select a bottle of Becks beer, who then 

approached the counter where she witnessed him purchase the alcohol and ask 

the cashier could he open it for him. The cashier used a bottle opener which 

m:\tradstan\word97\community safety\alcohol\reviews~ b food store ltd 97b brick lane\jb 
food store ltd licensing review pro forma.docx Page 95



appeared to be attached to the counter with a chain and opened the bottle of 

beer. 

13. The Licensing Authority is of the view that the test purchase on 17th August 2013 

shows that the premises is facilitating the immediate consumption of the alcohol in 

the public areas in and around Brick Lane. The Public consumption of alcohol in 

the Brick Lane area in the early hours of a weekend increases the risk crime and 

disorder and public nuisance. 

Public nuisance 

Hostels nearby - homeless medical centre 

14. The Licensing Authority has been advised by the Public Health, Education, 

Social Care & Wellbeing Directorate that the premises is in the proximity to the 

following three hostels: 

• Hopetown Hostel, 60 Old Montague Street, London, E1 5NG 

• Dellow Centre, 82 Wentworth Street Dellow Centre London, E1 7SA 

• Booth House, 153-175 Whitechapel Road, London, E1 1DN 

15.Aiso, the premises is also in the proximity of Health E1, 9-11 Brick Lane London 

E1 6PU, and a homeless medical centre. 

m:\tradstan\word97\community safety\alcohol\reviews\j b food store ltd 97b brick lane\jb 
food store ltd licensing review pro forma.docx 

Page 96



16.1t is the Licensing Authority's contention that the because of lack of management 

control of the business, there is a foreseeable risk that sales of alcohol will be 

made to vulnerable adults, leading to public nuisance. 

Licensing authority concerns • management of premises in hot spot 

area 

17. The Licensing Authority has serious concerns regarding the general management 

of the premises as a result of the above. In particular because of the nature of 

the area and concerns about crime and disordert protection of children and public 

nuisance, the Licensing Authority needs to have confidence that licensed 

premises in the Brick Lane area are managed in way to ensure the Licensing 

objectives are met. The licensing Authority does not have confidence that the 

management of the premises by the Premises Licence holder will ensure that the 

Licensing objectives are met. 

18. This Service respectfully refers the Licensing sub-committee to the Guidance 

issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 by the HOME OFFICE In 

particular the Service requests that you consider paragraphs 11.24 to 11.28, 

Reviews arising in connection with crime, making reference to paragraph 11.25. 

Paragraph 11 .27 states that there is certain criminal activity that may arise in 

connection with licensed premises, which the Secretary of State considers should 

be treated particularly seriously. These are the use of licensed premises for, 

amongst other things, the sale of smuggled tobacco and alcohol. In paragraph 

11 .28 the guidance advises that revocation of the licence should seriously be 

considered, even at first instance. 

m:\tradstan\word97\comrnunity safety\alcohol\reviews\j b food store ltd 97b brick lane\jb 
food store ltd licensing review pro fonna.docx Page 97



19. The Licensing Authority respectfully requests that the Licensing sub-committee; 

in order to improve the management of the premises in accordance with the 

Council's Licensing Policy and concerns about crime and disorder, and public 

nuisance, changes the starting time and terminal hour and adds the conditions as 

follows to the premises licence. 

Change to earlier terminal hour and later starting time 

20. The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities are 

changed as follows:-

"The sale by retail of alcohol, Monday to Sunday 08 00 hrs to 23:00" 

Conditions 

21. Conditions:-

1) The premises will not sell any beer, larger or cider that exceeds the 

strength of 5.6%abv or higher unless 3 or more bottles/cans are purchased 

together; 

2) During a sale of alcohol, the premises will not supply drinking 

containers, such as plastic cups, 

3) During a sale of alcohol, the premises will not open any container the 

alcohol is contained in; 

m:\tradstan\word97\community safety\alcohol\reviews\j b food store ltd 97b brick lane\jb 
food store ltd licensing review pro forma.docx 

Page 98



4) The premises licence holder and any other persons responsible for the 

purchase of stock shall not purchase any goods from door-to-door sellers 

other than from established traders who provide full receipts at the time of 

delivery. 

5) The premises licence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods 

bought include the following details: 

I. Seller's name and address 

II. Seller's company details, if applicable 

Il l. Seller's VAT details, if applicable 

IV. Vehicle registration detail, if applicable 

v. 

6) Legible copies of the documents referred to in 2) shall be retained on 

the premises and made available to officers on request. 

7) The trader shall obtain and use a UV detection device to verify that 

duty stamps are valid. 

8) Where the trader becomes aware that any alcohol may be not duty 

paid they shall inform the Police of this immediately. " 

9) The designated premises supervisor or a Personal Licence Holder 

must be present when all alcohol sales are made. 

m:\tradstan\word97\community safety\alcohol\reviews\j b food store ltd 97b brick lane\jb 
food store ltd licensing review pro forma.docx Page 99



John Patrick McCrohan 

Trading Standards and Licensing Manager 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

m:\tradstan\word97\community safety\alcohol\reviews\j b food store ltd 97b brick lane\jb 
food store ltd licensing review pro forma.docx 

Page 100



Prosecution reference number: 003254 

PROSECUTION DETAILS 

PROSECUTION NUMBER: 003254 LA REFERENCE: 

UNIT: 
OFFICER: 
OPEN DATE: 
DATE CLOSED: 

TS - Trading Standards 
IDM - Ian Moseley 
05/11/2010 
19/11/2010 

ACTION: 
FEE: 

T34 - Underage alcohol enforcement 
0.00 

PAYMENT RECEIVED: No 

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENCE 

Sale of alcohol to person under the age of 18 
Police PND issued 

DEFENDANT 1 S DETAILS 

PREMISES REF: F155TH97BB/1 

NAME: JB Food Store Ltd 
ADDRESS: 97B Brick Lane 

London 
E1 6SE 

TEL NO:  
UPRN/USRN:6002630 
EASTING: 533868.0 
NORTHING: 182117.0 
TRADE: off - licence 

ASSOCIATED NAMES AND ADDRESSES 

OFFENCE DETAILS 

l!!..:. DESCRIPTION ~ 

L22 Llcenaln9 Act 200l 1\!AS H6/lt 146 

COURT DETAILS 

OPEN DATE: 
DATE OF OFFENCE : 
DATE CLOSED: 

~ lli !B! 
1 F 

05/11/2010 
25/10/2010 
19/11/2010 

AREA: Tower Hamlets 
WARD: Weavers 

FINE ~ .MALrST PROSEctrrE P\!ROIASE WITNESS 
80.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 . 00 

Page 101



Prosecution; 003254 (Cont) Record: 1 Page: 2 

ITEM EVENT DESCRIPTION SCH. DATE ACT. DATE OFF 

FURTHER ACTION 

ACTION TYPE: T34 - Underage alcohol enforcement 
Action record initiated under record number 218244 
ITEM EVENT DESCRIPTION SCH. DATE ACT. DATE OFF 

1 T04 TS - witness statement 05/11/2010 05/11/2010 IDM 
Police witness 

2 T04 TS - witness statement 05/11/2010 05/11/2010 IDM 
volunteer 

3 T04 TS - witness statement 05/11/2010 05/11/2010 IDM 
Police ref Penalty Notice 

4 T01 TS file review 19/11/2010 19/11/2010 IDM 

Page 102



Prosecution reference number: 003390 

PROSECUTION DETAILS 

PROSECUTION NUMBER: 003390 LA REFERENCE: 

UNIT: 
OFFICER: 
OPEN DATE: 
DATE CLOSED: 
ACTION: 
FEE: 
PAYMENT RECEIVED: 

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENCE 

TS - Trading Standards 
IDM - Ian Moseley 
15/12/2010 
17/04/2012 
T34 - Underage alcohol enforcement 
0.00 
No 

A sale of can of Fosters lager to volunteer police cadet age 16 
sealed as N00555729 

DEFENDANT'S DETAILS 

PREMISES REF: F155TH97BB/1 

NAME: JB Food Store Ltd 
ADDRESS: 97B Brick Lane 

London 
E1 6SE 

TEL NO:  
UPRN/USRN:6002630 
EASTING: 533868.0 
NORTHING: 182117.0 

ASSOCIATED NAMES AND ADDRESSES 

OFFENCE DETAILS 

l!L. DESC!tlPTIOtl 
1.:2 l. lceruolng Act 2003 (UAS lH/14 146 

COURT DETAILS 

OPEN DATE: 
DATE OF OFFENCE: 
DATE CLOSED: 

FURTHER ACTION 

~liES!!!! 
0 

15/12/2010 
14/12/2010 
17/04/2012 

AREA: Tower Hamlets 
WARD: Weavers 

.!:!!!! ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 
o.oo o.oo 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 103



Prosecution: 003390 (Cant) Record : 1 Page: 2 

ITEM EVENT DESCRIPTION SCH. DATE ACT. DATE OFF 

ACTION TYPE: T34 - Underage alcohol enforcement 
Action record initiated under record number 222405 
ITEM EVENT DESCRIPTION SCH. DATE ACT. DATE OFF 

1 T01 TS file review 15/12/2010 15/12/2010 IDM 
Volunteer A 

2 T01 TS file review 15/12/2010 15/12/2010 IDM 
Volunteer B 

3 T01 TS file review 15/12/2010 15/12/2010 IDM 
visit sheet 

4 T05 TS Obtain Witness Stat 22/12/2010 22/12/2010 IDM 

5 T05 TS Obtain Witness Stat 22/12/2010 22/12/2010 IDM 
police2 

6 T05 TS Obtain Witness Stat 22/12/2010 22/12/2010 IDM 
police1 

7 T04 TS - witness statement 22/12/2010 22/12/2010 IDM 

8 T01 TS file review 17/04/2012 17/04/2012 IDM 

Page 104



Prosecution reference number: 005953 

PROSECUTION DETAILS 

PROSECUTION NUMBER: 005953 LA REFERENCE: 

UNIT: 
OFFICER: 
OPEN DATE: 
DATE CLOSED: 

TS - Trading Standards 
KVM - Kevin Maple 
12/09/2012 
12/09/2012 

ACTION: YAA - Investigation started 
FEE: 0.00 
PAYMENT RECEIVED: No 

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENCE 

28 bottles of non - dury paid wine seized 

DEFENDANT'S DETAILS 

PREMISES REF: F155TH97BB/1 

NAME: JB Food Store Ltd 
ADDRESS: 97B Brick Lane 

London 
E1 6SE 

TEL NO:  
UPRN/USRN : 6002630 
EASTING : 533868 . 0 
NORTHING: 182117 . 0 

ASSOCIATED NAMES AND ADDRESSES 

OFFENCE DETAILS 

2!.:_ CESCRII'TICII ~ 

Lll Llcenalng Act 2003 lS.,~ggle<l 1 

COURT DETAILS 

OPEN DATE : 
DATE OF OFFENCE: 
DATE CLOSED: 

FURTHER ACTION 

~ill~ 
0 

12/09/2012 
12/09/2012 
12/09/2 012 

AREA: Tower Hamlets 
WARD: Weavers 

!:!!!! ~ ~ PROSEC'U'rE ~ ~ 
0 . 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 105



Prosecution~ 005953 (Cant) Record: 1 Page: 2 

ITEM EVENT DESCRIPTION SCH. DATE ACT. DATE OFF 

ACTION TYPE: YAA - Investigation started 
Action record initiated under record number 303617 
ITEM EVENT DESCRIPTION SCH. DATE ACT. DATE OFF 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

****YAA - INVESTIGATION STARTED**** 

****YAA • INVESTIGATION STARTED**** 

YAA Decision taken to commence an 
investigation 

YAB RIPA used 

YAC Invite to PACE interview ** 

YAD PACE interview undertaken 

YB9 PACE transcript attached 

YAE Witness statement (lead officer) * * 

YAF Witness statement (others)** 

YAH Decision to prosecute checklist ** 

11 IF YES Load template YAB 
IF NO Load tamplate YAC 

12 T64 TS visit to trader 

13 T96 HMRC smuggled goods seizure 

12/10/2012 

12/10/2012 

12/10/2012 

10/01/2013 

10/01/2013 

10/01/2013 

10/01/2013 

10/01/2013 

12/09/2012 KVM 

12/09/2012 KVM 

Page 106



RESTRICTED- FOR LICENSING AND PROSECUTION ONLY 
(when complete) 

WITNESS STATEMENT 

(CJ Act 1967, s.9; MC Act 1980, ss.5A(3) (a) and 5B; MC Rules 1981, r.70) 

MG Jl 

URN I I I I l 
Statement of: Alison Flynn ............................................................................................................................. ....... . 

Age if under 18: Over 18 ............... (if over 18 insert 'over 18') Occupation: ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH OFFICER 

This statement (consisting of page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief 
and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated 
anything in it, which I know to be false, or do not believe to be true. 

Signature: ....................................................................................................... . Date .................................... .. 

Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded (supply witness details on rear) 

I am ALISON FLYNN and I am employed as an Environmental Health Officer by the London 

Borough of Tower Hamlets Environmental Health Service. 

On Friday 16th August 2013 I was working with my colleague Simon Chorley {Environmental 

Health - Smokefree Technical Officer). We were carrying out late-night visits to a number of 

premises throughout the Borough, taking us into the early hours of Saturday morning of 17th 

August 2013. 

JB Food Store, 97 Brick Lane, London, E1 6SE 

At around 00:40 on Saturday 17th August 2013, Officer CHORLEY and I entered JB Food 

Store, 97 Brick Lane, London, E1 6SE further to information received that the retail shop 

was encouraging drinking on the street. 

The shop was open and trading. The shop is a retail premises. We approached the display 

chiller and Officer CHORLEY selected a bottle of Becks beer. We approached the counter and 

I witnessed Officer CHORLEY purchase the alcohol and ask the cashier could he open it for 

Signature: Signature witnessed by: 

2004(1) 
Page 107



RESTRICTED- FOR TRADING STANDARDS AND 
PROSECUTION ONLY 

(when complete) 

CONTINUATION OF STATEMENT OF WITNESS 
(Criminal Procedure Rules r27.1(1): Criminal Justice Act 1967, 

S.9; Magistrates Courts Act 1980 58 

Gil 

him. The cashier used a bottle opener which appeared to be attached to the counter with a 

chain and opened the bottle of beer. 

Officer CHORLEY introduced himself as an officer of the London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

and advised the cashier that to open the bottle was in breach of their licence. He asked the 

cashier for his name and the cashier stated it was Mr Abdul Hamif and that he was a new 

employee. The manager, Mr Miemtinz Hussain, was on site at the time and stated the bottle 

opener was kept behind the counter to open soft drink bottles only. I checked that the 

premises licence was on display and saw that it was. 

We departed the premises with the bottle of beer at approx. 00:50 hours. 

Page 108



Appendix 2 

Page 109



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\BrickLane97.doc 1

See the attached licence for the licence conditions 

Signed by John Cruse ____________________ 
Team Leader Licensing 

Date: 10th March 2006 

(JB Food Store Limited) 
97 Brick Lane 
London 
E1 6SE 

Licensable Activities authorised by the licence 

The sale by retail of alcohol 

Page 110



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\BrickLane97.doc 2

Part A - Format of premises licence 

Premises licence number 13125 

Part 1 - Premises details 
Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description  

97 Brick Lane 

Post town 
London 

Post code 
E1 6SE 

Telephone number 
 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 

Not applicable 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 

The sale by retail of alcohol 

Page 111



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\BrickLane97.doc 3

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 

Alcohol 
• Monday to Sunday, 07:00 hrs to 01:00 hrs

The opening hours of the premises 

• Monday to Sunday, 07:00 hrs to 01:00 hrs

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies 

Off sales 

Page 112



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\BrickLane97.doc 4

Part 2 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises 
licence  

JB Food Store Limited 
97 Brick Lane 
London 
E1 6SE 

Tel:  

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable) 

Company 
Registered number: 6705803 

Name, address and  telephone number of designated premises supervisor 
where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol 

Mr Abdul Halim 
 

 
 

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by 
designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the 
supply of alcohol 

Mr Abdul Halim 
Personal Licence Number:  
Issuing Authority:  

Page 113



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\BrickLane97.doc 5

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions 
4.  

(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder 
shall ensure that an age verification policy applies to the premises 
in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.  

(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible 
person to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be 
specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served 
alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a 
holographic mark. 

No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence- 

a) at a time where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the 
premises licence, or 

b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal
licence or his personal licence is suspended 

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a 
person who holds a personal licence  

Times 
Alcohol 

• Monday to Sunday, 07:00 hrs to 01:00 hrs

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 
1. Maintain CCTV systems covering both inside and outside of the premises
2. Admission to an unaccompanied child after midnight will be refused. Request

Proof of identity from any person who appears to be under the age of 18 when
selling alcohol.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
N/A 

Annex 4 - Plans  

The plans are those submitted to the licensing authority on the following date: 

24 November 2005 

Page 114



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\BrickLane97.doc 6

Part B - Premises licence summary 

Premises licence number 13125 

Premises details 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

97 Brick Lane 

Post town 
London 

Post code 
E1 6SE 

Telephone number 
 

Where the licence is time limited 
the dates N/a 

Licensable activities authorised 
by the licence  The sale by retail of alcohol 

Licensing Act 2003 

Page 115



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\BrickLane97.doc 7

The times the licence authorises 
the carrying out of licensable 
activities 

Alcohol 
• Monday to Sunday, 07:00 hrs to 01:00 hrs

The opening hours of the 
premises 

• Monday to Sunday, 07:00 hrs to 01:00 hrs

Name, (registered) address of holder 
of premises licence JB Food Store Limited 

97 Brick Lane 
London 
E1 6SE 

Where the licence authorises supplies 
of alcohol whether these are on and / 
or off supplies 

Off sales 

Registered number of holder, for 
example company number, charity 
number (where applicable) 

Company 
Registered number: 6705803 

Name of designated premises 
supervisor where the premises licence 
authorises for the supply of alcohol 

Mr Abdul Halim 

State whether access to the premises 
by children is restricted or prohibited Admission to an unaccompanied child after 

midnight will be refused  

Page 116



Appendix 3 

Page 117



97 Brick Lane

Map 1

Page 118



97 Brick Lane

Map 2

Page 119



Appendix 4 

Page 120



Statement of Objection to Licence Application 

97 Brick Lane 

12th November 2013 

Prof Karim Brohi 
 

Re: 97 Brick Lance License Application 

Dear Mr Heron, Licensing Team, 

I wish to object to the license application for sale of alcohol at 97 Brick Lane on the grounds of public 
disorder, antisocial behaviour and threats to public safety.  This off-licence, along with others along 
Brick Lane, fuels the antisocial behaviour experienced by business and residents along the whole 
length of the high street.  This is especially true out of hours (after 11pm) where the off-licences 
become venues for street drinking parties, especially of students and tourists.  These disturb 
businesses and residents with shouting, screaming and singing and then deteriorate into violence 
and antisocial behaviour including urination and vomiting in the street.  They are also focuses for 
local gangs and drug dealers who use the crowds for their illegal activities and target vulnerable 
people.   

As the council has identified, the Brick Lane area is saturated with premises that sell and deliver 
alcohol.  Many of these off-licenses operate outside the bounds of their licence or actively breach 
the regulations of the licensing act on a regular basis.  These premises must have their licenses 
revoked if Brick Lane is to become a safe and enjoyable place for businesses, residents and visitors.  

Off-licences that operate beyond 11pm serve no useful purpose to the neighbourhood and only fuel 
crime, public disorder and antisocial behaviour.  Those premises that have not broken the law or 
regulations should still have their hours limited to 11pm.  Only in this way can some order be 
returned to a neighbourhood that is out of control. 

Yours sincerely 

Page 121



Appendix 5 

Page 122



1

Andrew Heron

From: Alex Gordon Shute 

Sent: 10 November 2013 20:53

To: Andrew Heron; Licensing

Subject: Alcohol Licence Review for 97 Brick Lane

Dear Andrew Heron and Licensing Officers, 

My Partner (Dick Tyler) and I live at 36 Princelet Street, just off Brick Lane and we wanted to register our objection 

to the licence to sell alcohol already in operation at 97 Brick Lane, London E1 

This off licence is the closest to the Truman Brewery and has a history of selling alcohol which fuels significant 

drunken and unruly behaviour from Truman’s patrons.  The urination, fights, shouting and other forms of assault in 

the Brick Lane area from these patrons causes significant stress, upset and nuisance to the residents of Brick Lane 

and the surrounding streets.   I also understand that LBTH Licensing have made test purchases at this establishment 

and are in the process of taking enforcement action.  

There are significantly more off-licences in Brick Lane than are needed for the customers of the curry houses and 97 

Brick Lane in particular is notorious for breaching the licensing laws and fuelling anti-social behaviour which impacts 

on the local community.  I therefore ask the Licensing Sub-Committee to revoke this licence. 

Best wishes, 

Alex Gordon Shute 

 

 

Page 123



Appendix 6 

Page 124



1

Andrew Heron

From: Jane Curtis 

Sent: 09 November 2013 19:14

To: Andrew Heron; Licensing

Subject: Review of 97 Brick Lane E1

Dear Andrew Heron 

Review of Premises Licence for 97 Brick Lane, E1 

We would like to support the review of the premises licence for 41 Brick Lane, London E1.  These premises are 
incapable of upholding the licensing objectives in particular: 

• the prevention of crime and disorder

• the prevention of public nuisance

As a long term residents of Spitalfields we have seen the availability of alcohol from off licences, including 41 
Brick Lane, lead to an intolerable increase in anti social behaviour and street drinking, which has made living in 
the area very challenging.  The problem of alcohol abuse  in Spitalfields is well documented. We ask the 
licensing department to revoke this licence and support all sections of this diverse community in feeling safe in 
their homes.     

There are many off-licences in Brick Lane, far more than are currently needed to provide wine and beer to 
customers of the curry houses. Licences should only be given to licence holders who have proved that they 
respect the licensing laws and who are willing to uphold the licensing objectives at all times. 

Yours sincerely, 

Jane Curtis 

Keith Bowler 

 

Page 125



Appendix 7 

Page 126



1

Andrew Heron

From: Critchley 

Sent: 09 November 2013 10:55

To: Andrew Heron; Licensing

Cc:

Subject: Premises Licence at 97 Brick Lane, E1

Dear Andrew Heron, Licensing Officers, 

Review of Premises Licence for 97 Brick Lane, E1 

The Committee of the Spitalfields Society has asked me to express our objection to the licence to sell alcohol already 

in operation at 97 Brick Lane, London E1. 

We consider the operation of this licence  very unlikely to satisfy the objectives of the Licensing Act 2003 in relation 

to Crime and Disorder and Public Nuisance, in that the off-sales of alcohol  made from these premises are certain to 

fuel acts of drunken and unruly behaviour from their patrons, contributing significantly to the high levels of anti-

social behaviour resulting from indiscriminate alcohol consumption in the locality that cause residents endless stress 

and nuisance and sometimes lead to fights and other forms of assault in the streets.   

We believe that LBTH Licensing have made test purchases at this establishment and are in the process of taking 

enforcement action.  

There are far too many off-licences in Brick Lane, far more than are currently needed to provide wine and beer to 

customers of the curry houses,  and they are notorious for breaches of the licensing laws and for causing extreme 

anxiety and disturbance among those living nearby.  Therefore we ask the Licensing Sub-Committee to revoke this 

licence. 

Yours sincerely, 

Sandy Critchley 

Vice-Chairman, Spitalfields Society 

 

 

Page 127



Appendix 8 

Page 128



1

Andrew Heron

From: Spitalfields Community Group 

Sent: 07 November 2013 20:57

To: Licensing

Cc: Alan Cruickshank

Subject: application to review the premises licence at 97 Brick Lane E1

Dear Sir/Madam, 

Spitalfields Community Group supports the application to review the premises licence at 97 Brick Lane E1 
on the grounds of prevention of crime and public disorder. 

Spitalfields Community Group (SCG) was formed in September 2011 with the aim of promoting and 
protecting the quality of life of people living and working in the ward of Spitalfields and Banglatown.  We 
have over 200 members and are growing.  Our current survey, conducted to identify priorities for action, 
highlighted the growing problems faced by locals as a result of the existing dense concentration of licensed 
premises in the area, exacerbating the negative impact on us of the night time economy.  In accordance with 
this focus, SCG has recently supported the adoption of a cumulative impact zone for the Brick Lane area, 
within which the premises at 97 is situated. 

ASB caused by excessive alcohol consumption in the Brick Lane area is well documented, with many recent 
reports by residents of problems caused by drunken patrons at night and throughout the weekend.  These 
problems include noise nuisance (screaming, shouting, swearing, singing, playing music etc) litter and 
vandalism to cars and homes, street urination and defecation, vomiting, and aggressive and intimidating 
behaviour.  Patrons leaving Brick Lane for transport hubs on Bishopsgate and Commercial Street pass along 
residential streets causing unwanted mayhem and misery. 

Recently there has been a particular issue with large groups of revellers buying alcohol from off licences in 
Brick Lane and sitting outside through the night drinking and causing a disturbance.  The premises at 97 
Brick Lane has no doubt facilitated this.  Residents in surrounding streets, including Hanbury Street, 
Princelet Street and Woodseer Street, have all reported an upsurge in noise nuisance and litter, as well as 
street urination, over the recent year.  The high crime incident rate in the Brick Lane area is fuelled, at least 
in part, by off licences with late licences.  The strain on police and public health resources is unacceptable. 

For the reasons above Spitalfields Community Group supports the application for licence review of the 
premises at 97 Brick Lane, E1. 

From and on behalf of the Spitalfields Community Group 

c/o Selina Mifsud,  

Page 129



Appendix 9 

Page 130



1

Andrew Heron

From: Jon Shapiro 

Sent: 08 November 2013 16:01

To: Licensing

Cc:

Subject: Review of the Alcohol Licence of 97 Brick Lane, Spitalfields

Dear Sir or Madam, 

I believe that LBTH Licensing Department is carrying out a review of the licence to sell alcohol as an “off-licence” of 
97 Brick Lane, Spitalfields. 

I would like to take this opportunity to request any Licensing Hearing to completely revoke the alcohol licence for this 
retail establishment on the grounds of endangering Public Safety. 

97 Brick Lane is located literally 50 yards away from Daniel Gilbert House which is a Hostel for the homeless that 
houses many highly vulnerable members of society. I believe it is wholly inappropriate for any retail outlet to be 
allowed to sell alcohol over the counter so close to so many vulnerable people. 

On these grounds I urgently request that any alcohol licence should be wholly revoked. 

I am raising this objection (if I may) in three capacities; 
1) As a resident of Spitalfields
2) As Chair of the Spitalfields & Banglatown Police Ward Panel
3) As Chair of SPIRE (the ASB Working Group) – an umbrella organisation representing over 600 households in

the Brick Lane area who are members of the six major local community groups.

Please would you acknowledge receipt of this email. 

Yours faithfully, 
Jon Shapiro. 

 
 

 
 

   

Page 131



Appendix 10 

Page 132



To whom it may concern, 

Paul Hutchison 
 
 
 

I would be grateful if you took the following comments into account when reviewing the 

alcohol license for the general store/off-license at 97 Brick Lane (and more generally, all off

licenses in Brick Lane). 

I have lived round the corner from this shop since 2008. During that time I have been 

alarmed at the sheer amount of alcohol the shop sells, aU-day-every-day, to almost anyone, 

regardless of the state the customer might already be in. Especially (but not only) at the 

weekends, the shop is a like a magnet for a variety of people (e.g., clubbers, alcoholics, 

homeless people, people clearly suffering from long-term mental health problem, young 

people who like to 'hang out' in a street where they get away with almost anything). Many of 

these people use the shop more like a public house: they buy their alcohol inside then stand 

outside the shop or sit on the window ledges of the neighbouring shops drinking it, and 

causing a nuisance to residents and passers-by. 

Like most people passing the shop, especially (but not only) in the evening, I am 

constantly approached by drunks who stand outside begging until they have enough money to 

go inside to make their next purchase, and who then urinate in the alleyways opposite and 

round the corner at the entrance to Sheba Place, where I live. They throw their bottles and 

cans on the street then start all over again. There is never any attempt on the part of the 

shopkeepers to move them on (this is who they make their money from, after all). 

The shopkeepers also seem to have no concerns about serving the same people multiple 

times regardless of their current state. I am not suggesting that the shopkeepers should be 

policing the streets, but should they be serving alcohol to customers who are clearly 

intoxicated, who stand outside drinking, begging, being aggressive, urinating in the streets, 

throwing their empty cans and bottles on the street, and so on? Do they not think of the 

potential consequences of selling the same people litres of cheap cider and cans of super

strength lager first thing in the morning, then at regular intervals throughout the day? 

The argument could be made that the customers that cause so much hassle for residents 

and passers-by would simply move to other nearby shops if this one lost its license. However, 

I regularly see stores such as Tesco (in Commercial Street, Bethnal Green Road, and 

Page 133



Whitechapel High Street) refuse to sell alcohol to people who look like they are already under 

the influence. In addition, Tesco always asks for proof of age from anyone that looks around or 

younger than 30 years old. Moreover, although in an ideal world all such off-licenses in Brick 

Lane would lose their licenses, at least the smaller ones towards the southern end of Brick 

Lane are mostly located between restaurants, and, as anyone who spends time in the area 

knows, the curry touts are very quick to move drunks away from their premises, meaning that 

they are not able to hang around harassing passers-by, as they currently do at the shop at 97 

Brick Lane. 

There is also the issue of the toilet habits of the shop's customers. As already mentioned, 

the shop sells a considerable amount of alcohol, all-day-every-day, but especially at the 

weekends. They are constantly stocking the fridges and shelves, and crates of beer and cheap 

cider are continuously being ofHoaded into the shop from vans at the rear of the shop: a truly 

staggering amount of alcohol. The customers are not taking this alcohol home to consume; 

they are drinking it in the streets. The lack of public toilets in the area means that many of the 

shop's customers urinate in the streets around Brick Lane. I regularly have to cover my face 

when entering and leaving my house at the weekends due to the smell of urine. The streets 

are also constantly littered with empty bottles and cans, most of which seems to have been 

bought in this and similar shops in Brick Lane. 

When deciding whether or not to withdraw this shop's license, I suggest you compile 

two lists. Firstly, list all the positives for the neighbourhood and the local residents of allowing 

this shop to carry on as normal. Then list all the negatives. I think it is clear which list will be 

longer! Indeed, if I were asked to name a single act that would help reduce the drunken, anti

social behaviour that we have all become used to in this area, it would be to withdraw this 

shop's alcohol license. The very last thing we need in this area is a shop that sells very cheap 

alcohol, aU-day-every-day, to almost anyone, regardless of the state they are already in, and 

regardless of where they go and what they do once they have made their purchases. 

There have been several important changes initiated by THC in recent years that have 

improved the quality of life of residents in and around Brick Lane, as well as the experiences 

of the many visitors to the area. This includes the removal of the many unsightly and filthy 

rubbish skips that used to line the street, the displacement of the most drunkenfanti

socialfcriminal sellers on market day, and the 'taming' of the most aggressive touts outside 

the restaurants (although the latter remains a serious problem). Removing this shop's license 

would be another significant step in the right direction. An even better plan would be to do 

Page 134



the same to all of the unscrupulous licensees in the street: there are numerous Tesco stores in 

the area should people want alcohol, who adopt a much more responsible attitude than the 

shopkeepers in Brick Lane. 

Finally, it is disappointing that the only way residents could have become aware of the 

license reviews is via small signs attached to lampposts outside the shops in question. For the 

reasons stated above, many residents avoid the shop at 97 Brick Lane, and so will not have 

read the announcement. I am sure that had the review been more widely publicized, more 

comments would be forthcoming. It is also disappointing that the sign at this particular shop 

was quickly removed, replaced again after I reported that it was missing, but was then 

missing again an hour or so later. When I reported that the sign was missing, the person who 

contacted me said that several other premises in Brick Lane were also having their licenses 

reviewed. So, on Saturday 2nd November I walked from one end ofthe street to the other 

(twice) to look for any signs indicating which premises this referred to, but saw only one. I 

was, however, offered numerous free bottles of wine and rounds of beer from at least 15 

restaurants during my journey! This typifies the priorities of the many parasitic traders who 

have been allowed to prosper in this area over the years, at the residents' expense. Be bold: let 

them know that the party is over! 

Regards, 

--Paul Hutchi

Page 135



Appendix 11 

Page 136



1 

12
th

 November 2013 

Public Health, Education, Social Care & 
Wellbeing Directorate 
Commissioning & Health 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
5 Clove Crescent 
Mulberry Place, 4th Floor 
London, E14 2BG 

 

 

www.towerhamlets.gov.uk 

Dear Mr McCrohan, 

Re: Representation from the Director of Public Health 

As the responsible body for health the Director of Public Health would like to make a representation on the 

licensing review application for the premises at 97, Brick Lane. 

Grounds for representation:  

The location of the premises poses a high risk of public nuisance and public safety through the inappropriate 

and unregulated alcohol consumption among vulnerable adults.  

The premises is in the proximity to the following two hostels and medical practice (within 5 minutes walking 

distance):  

• Hopetown Hostel, 60 Old Montague Street, London, E1 5NG

• Dellow Centre, 82 Wentworth Street Dellow Centre London, E1 7SA

• Health E1, 9-11 Brick Lane London E1 6PU, a homeless medical centre

The majority of residents and patients of these services are considered to be vulnerable adults due to mental 

health problems and factors such as homelessness and substance misuse which can lead to them being 

unable to take care of themselves or protect themselves without help.  

The misuse of alcohol – whether as chronically heavy drinking, binge-drinking or even moderate drinking 

among vulnerable people –poses a threat to the health and wellbeing of the drinker and also poses a risk to 

the community through problems such as noise nuisance, anti-social behaviour and street loitering.  

Alcohol problems are more common among people with mental health problems and consumption can 

reveal or intensify underlying feelings of anger, anxiety or worthlessness, causing people to become 

aggressive when they become intoxicated. The impact of alcohol is heightened among vulnerable adults and 

therefore can increase the risk of public nuisance and potentially crime and disorder in the community. To 

reduce the risk of this wider social harm it is particularly important to regulate alcohol consumption among 

this target group.  

Page 137



2 

Recommendations: 

The location of this premises poses a higher risk of public nuisance and concerns for public safety due to 

inappropriate and unregulated alcohol supply among vulnerable adults.  

In a motion to avoid the risk of public nuisance and address concerns for public safety, the DPH would 

recommend that due consideration is given to the following restrictions. The premises:  

• Only supply alcohol between 12:00 until 22:00, Sunday to Saturday

• Given the offences outlined in the A&Y Wines application for the review of a premises licence

(prepared by John P. McCrohan -Trading Standards and Licencing Manager) which includes selling

alcohol to a drunken person, supply of cup with alcohol purchase and drinking from plastic cups

outside the premises, the DPH is supportive of the other restrictions proposed such as the named

licensee must be on premises at all times.

Yours sincerely, 

Dr Somen Banerjee 

Director of Public Health  

Education, Social Care and Wellbeing Directorate 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

Page 138



Appendix 12 

Page 139



HT - Tower Hamlets Borough 
HH - Limehouse Police Station 
 Licensing Unit at Old Cad Room 
Limehouse Police Station 
27 West India Dock Road 
E14 8EZ 

Telephone:  
 

19 October 2013 

Tower Hamlets Police support the review by Tower Hamlets Council of JB Food Store 97 
Brick Lane, on the grounds of Crime and Disorder.  

Brick Lane an Overview 

Between 10pm on Friday night and 2:00am Monday morning Tower Hamlets is second only 
to the West End for ASB calls to Police in London, this is shown on Page 1 of the appendix. 
Brick Lane is a Hot Spot for alcohol related anti-social behaviour, noise, inconsiderate 
behaviour and overall anti-social behaviour, as shown in pages 2 - 6 of the appendix. This is 
due in large part to the number of licensed premises in and around Brick Lane. 

While the larger licensed premises such as Café 1001, Vibe Bar, Big Chill and others attract 
people to the area and can be described as “destination venues”, the off licenses like JB 
Food Stores are places where people go to purchase alcohol to drink in the Brick Lane area 
before they enter the larger venues. Many of those people consuming alcohol in Brick lane 
having purchased them from the local off licenses, are responsible for a large proportion of 
the anti-social behaviour reported to both the Police and Tower Hamlets Council. Many of 
these people have usually already consumed alcohol prior to entering Brick Lane.  

They stand around the off licenses or in the immediate vicinity, usually in small groups and 
as they drink more alcohol their voices become louder and their behaviour more 
inconsiderate to people around them.  As they are loitering in Brick Lane drinking the alcohol 
they have bought from the local off licenses they attract people who want to sell them Nitrous 
Oxide (laughing gas) from balloons, and also people who want to sell them drugs.  

Page 140



Many of the Off licenses are open after these larger venues close, and people then purchase 
more alcohol from them as they leave Brick Lane to go on to venues that are still open. This 
contributes to a “double hit” of alcohol related crime and antisocial behaviour caused by 
customers of the night time economy as they come into, and then leave the Brick lane area. 
As the table on page 7 of the appendix shows over 25% of all crime in Sptalfields and 
Banglatown ward is committed between 8:00pm to 2:00am Friday to Sunday. The table on 
page 8 of the appendix  shows that 20% of all crime in Weavers ward is committed between 
8:00pm to 2:00am Friday to Sunday 

All the off licenses and indeed all the licensed premises in and around Brick Lane have been 
made aware by the Police that encouraging people to consume alcohol in the Brick Lane 
area only contributes to the level of anti-social behaviour and crime. They have been asked 
not to sell plastic or paper cups, not to open containers of alcohol for customers, all of which 
contribute to the alcohol related anti-social behaviour in the area. 

The negative effects of the “Night Time Economy” are also demonstrated in the data 
provided by the Director of Public Health data which was provided to Full Licensing 
Committee in October 2013. The data in table 1 that Spitalfields and Banglatown ward and 
Weavers ward, both of which cover Brick Lane have higher than average ambulance calls 
out to binge drinking. 

Table 1: London Ambulance Service call outs to binge drinking 

Ward 
No of Incidents 
2011/12 

No of Incidents 
2012/13 

% Change over 
2011/12 to 2012/13 

Spitalfields & Banglatown 145 175 + 21% 

Weavers 82 89 +21% 

Tower Hamlets ward 
average 

57 71 +25% 

Table 2 shows that both wards are considerably higher than the national average for alcohol 
related hospital admissions. 

Table 2: Alcohol Attributable Admission Rates 2011/2012 

Ward Rate per 100,000 

Spitalfields & Banglatown 3170 

Weavers 2718 

England Average 1974 

Page 141



JB Food Store 

I have conducted numerous patrols in Brick Lane, and on many of those patrols I have seen 
people outside JB Food Stores consuming alcohol either standing directly outside the store, 
or a few meters away. These people are usually in groups of about 5 or 6 and sometimes 
many more. Their voices are loud and their behaviour is often anti-social due to their loud 
voices and drunken antics.  

The fact that JB Food Stores has a bottle opener on a chain at the desk indicates to me that 
they regularly open alcoholic containers for customers, who then consume the alcohol 
outside the shop. This then attracts more people to the shop who purchase alcohol and then 
consume it outside, and contribute to the anti-social behaviour in the area. Brick Lane is part 
of the “Drinking Control Zone” so by opening drinks containers for customers, the shop is in 
my opinion encouraging and assisting its customers to breach Tower Hamlets own policy. 

I am also concerned that the shop only keeps CCTV for such a short time, making it very 
difficult to identify and catch perpetrators of crime (please see incident 4th July listed below) 

JB Food Store is known to Police for the following crimes over the last 8 months which are 
listed below.  

Thursday 22nd August 2013 at about 10:45pm - Threatening person 

A call to Police stating that a male keeps coming into the shop asking the caller to open his 
bottle, if he refuses he will blow up the store. The informant later called back to say that the 
person had left the shop. When Police tried to contact the caller again he would not answer 
the phone. 

Sunday 4th August 2013 at about 11:17pm - Fight at JB Food Store 

A worker at the shop contacted Police as there was a male and female customer fighting at 
the store. The male was drunk on police arrival, and the female had left the area. No 
allegations were made and the drunk male left the area. 

Thursday 4th July 2013 at about 10:30pm - Theft from customer of JB Food Store 

A female customer had her mobile phone taken from her bag by two people while she was in 
the shop. On the 9th of July Police attended to collect the CCTV only to be told that the shop 
only had CCTV going back to the 5th of July and anything prior to that would have been 
recorded over. As there was no CCTV therefore the investigation could not be progressed, 
and the case was closed. 

Page 142



On Friday 15th March 2013 at about 8:00pm - Assault opposite JB Food Store 

Two people had been drinking in a small alleyway opposite JB Food Store. They had been 
drinking there for approximately thirty minutes. The victim of this assault stated that they had 
both had a few cans of beer before they met, and stated that he did not know the other 
person until they started drinking that night. The victim stated that all of a sudden he was 
punched in the face, with enough force that he fell to the floor, and that he was holding his 
mobile phone in his hand, however whilst he was on the floor the suspect has taken the 
mobile phone off of him and run off. The victim did not wish to pursue any action against the 
suspect. 

On Sunday 16th September 2012 

At about 9:10pm Pc Cruickshank observed that there were approximately 16 people outside 
the shop drinking alcohol. PC Cruickshank approached the venue where he saw a white 
male, was at the front door stopping people from getting in. On speaking to this male it was 
obvious he was drunk. PC Cruickshank produced his warrant card asked to be let in the 
shop. This male refused. PC Cruickshank then repeated his request informing him that if he 
kept obstructing him he was making himself liable to arrest. The male said that there were 
too many people in the shop and he could let PC Cruickshank in because of fire regulations. 

PC Cruickshank then walked to the other side of the road to make notes. A male from a flat 
above him to his left leaned out of the window and shouted to Pc Cruickshank "Close down 
this place" indicating JB Food Stores. 

Later PC Cruickshank then asked two uniform officers who were on patrol to assist him. They 
then spoke to the man who continued to be aggressive and agitated towards them. 

PC Cruickshank then went into the shop and spoke with an Abdul SAMAD, a member of 
staff. He was informed that he should not be employing drunks as a security guard. Mr 
Samad replied he was just a neighbor helping out. PC Cruickshank replied that this was 
contrary to the licensing objectives.  

On returning outside the male was still remonstrating with the Police officers. 

The officers calmed the situation and asked the male to leave the area. He quickly returned 
to the shop and after a few seconds PC Cruickshank saw him walking out of the shop with a 
tin of Stella Artois lager. 

Page 143



Given the evidence from Tower Hamlets Licensing and our own evidence Tower Hamlets 
Police fully support the review, which we believe will help reduce crime and disorder in the 
area. In addition to the conditions sought by Tower Hamlets Council, we also ask for the 
following condition to be added to the License: 

1) A Refusals Book to be kept and maintained at the shop, and available for inspection upon
request. 

2) A personal License holder to be at the venue when alcohol is sold.

We also ask that the CCTV condition be amended to: 

1. A CCTV camera system covering both internal and external to the premise is to
be installed. The system is to be of a quality that is acceptable to Tower Hamlets
Council and Tower Hamlets Police.

2. The CCTV recordings are to be maintained for 31 days and to be provided upon
request to either a Police Officer or an officer of any other Responsible Authority.
A system shall be in place to maintain the quality of the recorded image and a

complete audit trail maintained� The system will be maintained and fully operational

throughout the hours that the premises are open for any licensable activity�

3. At all times the premises is open, a person who can operate the CCTV system
must be present on the premises. who can download the images and present
them immediately on request by a police officer or other responsible authority.

Yours sincerely, 

PC Mark Perry 
Tower Hamlets Police Licensing Officer 

Page 144



Appendix 13 

Page 145



Appendix 13 

Guidance Issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 

POWERS OF A LICENSING AUTHORITY ON THE DETERMINATION OF A 
REVIEW  

11.16 The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority on 
determining a review that it may exercise where it considers them 
necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  

11.17 The licensing authority may decide that no action is necessary if it finds 
that the review does not require it to take any steps necessary to 
promote the licensing objectives. In addition, there is nothing to prevent 
a licensing authority issuing an informal warning to the licence holder 
and/or to recommend improvement within a particular period of time. It is 
expected that licensing authorities will regard such warnings as an 
important mechanism for ensuring that the licensing objectives are 
effectively promoted and that warnings should be issued in writing to the 
holder of the licence. However, where responsible authorities like the 
police or environmental health officers have already issued warnings 
requiring improvement – either orally or in writing – that have failed as 
part of their own stepped approach to concerns, licensing authorities 
should not merely repeat that approach.  

11.18 Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory 
powers are necessary, it may take any of the following steps: 

to modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding 
new conditions or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for 
example, by reducing the hours of opening or by requiring door 
supervisors at particular times;  

• to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for
example, to   exclude the performance of live music or playing of 
recorded music (where it is not within the incidental live and 
recorded music exemption);  

• to remove the designated premises supervisor, for example,
because they consider that the problems are the result of poor 
management;  

• to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;
• to revoke the licence.

11.19 In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that 
licensing authorities should so far as possible seek to establish the 
cause or causes of the concerns which the representations identify. 
The remedial action taken should generally be directed at these causes 
and should always be no more than a necessary and proportionate 
response.  

Page 146



11.20 For example, licensing authorities should be alive to the possibility 
that the removal and replacement of the designated premises 
supervisor may be sufficient to remedy a problem where the cause of 
the identified problem directly relates to poor management decisions 
made by that individual.  

11.21 Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct reflection of 
poor company practice or policy and the mere removal of the designated 
premises supervisor may be an inadequate response to the problems 
presented. Indeed, where subsequent review hearings are generated by 
representations, it should be rare merely to remove a succession of 
designated premises supervisors as this would be a clear indication of 
deeper problems which impact upon the licensing objectives.  

11.22 Licensing authorities should also note that modifications of conditions 
and exclusions of licensable activities may be imposed either 
permanently or for a temporary period of up to three months. 
Temporary changes or suspension of the licence for up to three 
months could impact on the business holding the licence financially 
and would only be expected to be pursued as a necessary means of 
promoting the licensing objectives. So, for instance, a licence could be 
suspended for a weekend as a means of deterring the holder from 
allowing the problems that gave rise to the review to happen again. 
However, it will always be important that any detrimental financial 
impact that may result from a licensing authority’s decision is 
necessary and proportionate to the promotion of the licensing 
objectives.  

REVIEWS ARISING IN CONNECTION WITH CRIME 

11.23 A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not 
directly connected with licensable activities. For example, reviews may 
arise because of drugs problems at the premises or money laundering 
by criminal gangs or the sale of contraband or stolen goods there or the 
sale of firearms. Licensing authorities do not have the power to judge the 
criminality or otherwise of any issue. This is a matter for the courts of 
law. The role of the licensing authority when determining such a review 
is not therefore to establish the guilt or innocence of any individual but to 
ensure that the crime prevention objective is promoted. Reviews are part 
of the regulatory process introduced by the 2003 Act and they are not 
part of criminal law and procedure. Some reviews will arise after the 
conviction in the criminal courts of certain individuals but not all. In any 
case, it is for the licensing authority to determine whether the problems 
associated with the alleged crimes are taking place on the premises and 
affecting the promotion of the licensing objectives. Where a review 
follows a conviction, it would also not be for the licensing authority to 
attempt to go behind any finding of the courts, which should be treated 
as a matter of undisputed evidence before them.  

Page 147



11.24 Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the ground that 
the premises have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to 
determine what steps should be taken in connection with the premises 
licence, for the promotion of the crime prevention objective. It is 
important to recognise that certain criminal activity or associated 
problems may be taking place or have taken place despite the best 
efforts of the licensee and the staff working at the premises and despite 
full compliance with the conditions attached to the licence. In such 
circumstances, the licensing authority is still empowered to take any 
necessary steps to remedy the problems. The licensing authority’s duty 
is to take steps with a view to the promotion of the licensing objectives in 
the interests of the wider community and not those of the individual 
holder of the premises licence.  

11.25 As explained above, it is not the role of a licensing authority to 
determine the guilt or innocence of individuals charged with licensing or 
other offences committed on licensed premises. There is therefore no 
reason why representations giving rise to a review of a premises licence 
need be delayed pending the outcome of any criminal proceedings. As 
stated above, at the conclusion of a review, it will be for the licensing 
authority to determine on the basis of the application for the review and 
any relevant representations made, what action needs to be taken for 
the promotion of the licensing objectives in respect of the licence in 
question, regardless of any subsequent judgment in the courts about the 
behaviour of individuals.  

11.26 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with 
licensed premises, which the Secretary of State considers should be 
treated particularly seriously. These are the use of the licensed 
premises:  

• for the sale and distribution of Class A drugs and the laundering of
the proceeds of drugs crime;

• for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;
• for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films

and music, which does considerable damage to the industries
affected; for the purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors
which impacts on the health, educational attainment, employment
prospects and propensity for crime of young people;

• for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography;
• by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children;
• as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by

gangs;
• for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks;
• for unlawful gaming and gambling; and
• for the sale of smuggled tobacco and alcohol.

11.27 It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police and other law 
enforcement agencies, which are responsible authorities, will use the 
review procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where 
reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime 

Page 148



prevention objective is being undermined through the premises being 
used to further crimes, it is expected that revocation of the licence – 
even in the first instance – should be seriously considered. We would 
also encourage liaison with the local Crime and Disorder Reduction 
Partnership.  

11.28 It should be noted that it is unlawful to discriminate or to refuse service 
on grounds of race or by displaying racially discriminatory signs on the 
premises. Representations made about such activity from responsible 
authorities or interested parties would be relevant to the promotion of 
the crime prevention objective and justifiably give rise to a review.  

Page 149



Appendix 14 

Page 150



Appendix 14 

Guidance Issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 

Crime and Disorder Act 1998 

1.28 All local authorities must fulfil their obligations under section 17 of the 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 when carrying out their functions as 
licensing authorities under the 2003 Act.  

1.29 Section 17 is aimed at giving the vital work of crime and disorder 
reduction a focus across the wide range of local services and putting it at 
the heart of local decision-making. It places a duty on certain key 
authorities, including local authorities and police and fire and rescue 
authorities to do all they reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder in 
their area.  

1.30 The Government believes that licensing authorities should, as a matter of 
good practice, involve Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnerships 
(CDRPs) in decision-making in order to ensure that statements of 
licensing policy include effective strategies that take full account of crime 
and disorder implications.  

Pool Conditions 

Annex D 
Conditions relating to the prevention of crime and disorder 
It should be noted in particular that it is unlawful under the 2003 Act: 
• knowingly to sell or supply or attempt to sell or supply alcohol to a person
who is drunk 
• knowingly to allow disorderly conduct on licensed premises
• for the holder of a premises licence or a designated premises supervisor
knowingly to keep or to allow to be kept on licensed premises any goods that 
have been imported without payment of duty or which have otherwise been 
unlawfully imported 
• to allow the presence of children under 16 who are not accompanied by an
adult between midnight and 5am at any premises licensed for the sale of 
alcohol for consumption on the premises, and at any time in premises used 
exclusively or primarily for the sale and consumption of alcohol. 
Conditions enforcing these arrangements are therefore unnecessary. 

CORE PRINCIPLES 

1. Licensing authorities and other responsible authorities (in considering
applications) and applicants for premises licences and clubs premises
certificates (in preparing their operating schedules) should consider
whether the measures set out below are appropriate to promote the
licensing objectives.

Page 151



2. Any risk assessment to identify appropriate measures should consider the
individual circumstances of the premises and the nature of the local area,
and take into account a range of factors including:

• the nature, type and location of the venue;
• the activities being conducted there and the potential risk which

these activities could pose to the local area;
• the location (including the locality in which the premises are

situated and knowledge of any local initiatives); and
• the anticipated clientele.

Under no circumstances should licensing authorities regard these 
conditions as standard conditions to be automatically imposed in all 
cases. 

3. Any individual preparing an operating schedule or club operating schedule
is at liberty to volunteer any measure, such as those below, as a step they
intend to take to promote the licensing objectives. When measures are
incorporated into the licence or certificate, they become enforceable under
the law and breach could give rise to prosecution.

4. Licensing authorities should carefully consider conditions to ensure that
they are not only appropriate but realistic, practical and achievable, so that
they are capable of being met. Failure to comply with conditions attached
to a licence or certificate could give rise to a prosecution, in particular, as
the provision of unauthorised licensable activities under the 2003 Act,
which, on conviction would be punishable by a fine of up to £20,000 or up
to six months imprisonment or both. As such, it would be wholly
inappropriate to impose conditions outside the control of those responsible
for the running of the premises. It is also important that conditions which
are imprecise or difficult to enforce must be excluded.5.  It should be
borne in mind that club premises operate under codes of discipline to
ensure the good order and behaviour of members and that conditions
enforcing offences under the Act are unnecessary.

CONDITIONS RELATING TO THE PREVENTION OF CRIME AND 
DISORDER  
RADIO LINKS AND TELEPHONE COMMUNICATIONS  
Two-way radio links and telephone communications connecting staff of 
premises and clubs to local police and other premises can enable rapid 
responses to situations that may endanger the customers and staff on and 
around licensed premises. It is recommended that radio links or telephone 
communications systems should be considered for licensed premises in city 
and town centre leisure areas with a high density of premises selling alcohol. 
These conditions may also be appropriate in other areas. It is recommended 
that a condition requiring a radio or telephone link to the police should include 
the following requirements: 

• the equipment is kept in working order (when licensable activities
are taking place); 

• the link is activated, made available to and monitored by the
designated premises supervisor or a responsible member of staff at 
all times that the premises are open to the public; 

Page 152



• relevant police instructions/directions are complied with where
possible; and

• instances of crime or disorder are reported via the radio link by the
designated premises supervisor or a responsible member of staff to
an agreed police contact point.

DOOR SUPERVISORS 
Conditions relating to the provision of door supervisors and security teams 
may be valuable in relation to: 

• keeping out individuals excluded by court bans or by the licence
holder; 

• searching those suspected of carrying illegal drugs, or carrying
offensive weapons; 

• assisting in the implementing of the premises’ age verification
policy; and 

• ensuring that queues outside premises and departure of customers
from premises do not undermine the licensing objectives. 

Where the presence of door supervisors conducting security activities is to be 
a condition of a licence, which means that they would have to be registered 
with the Security Industry Authority, it may also be appropriate for conditions 
to stipulate: 

• That a sufficient number of supervisors be available (possibly
requiring both male and female supervisors); 

• the displaying of name badges;
• the carrying of proof of registration; and
• where, and at what times, they should be in operation.

Door supervisors also have a role to play in ensuring public safety (see Part 
2) and the prevention of public nuisance (see Part 4).

RESTRICTING ACCESS TO GLASSWARE 
Traditional glassware and bottles may be used as weapons or result in 
accidents and can cause very serious injuries. Conditions can prevent sales 
of drinks in glass for consumption on the premises. This should be expressed 
in clear terms and can include the following elements: 

• no glassware, whether open or sealed, shall be given to customers
on the premises whether at the bar or by staff service away from 
the bar; or 

• no customers carrying glassware shall be admitted to the premises
at any time that the premises are open to the public (note: this 
needs to be carefully worded where off-sales also take place). 

In appropriate circumstances, the condition could include exceptions, for 
example, as follows: 

• but bottles containing wine may be given to customers for
consumption with a table meal by customers who are seated in an 
area set aside from the main bar area for the consumption of food. 

The banning of glass may also be a relevant and appropriate measure to 
promote public safety (see Part 2).  

Page 153



ALTERNATIVES TO TRADITIONAL GLASSWARE 
Where appropriate, consideration should therefore be given to conditions 
requiring the use of safer alternatives to prevent crime and disorder, and in 
the interests of public safety. Location and style of the venue and the activities 
carried on there are particularly important in assessing whether a condition is 
appropriate. For example, the use of glass containers on the terraces of some 
outdoor sports grounds may obviously be of concern, and similar concerns 
may also apply to indoor sports events such as boxing matches. Similarly, the 
use of alternatives to traditional glassware may be an appropriate condition 
during the showing of televised live sporting events, such as international 
football matches, when there may be high states of excitement and emotion. 

OPEN CONTAINERS NOT TO BE TAKEN FROM THE PREMISES 
Drinks purchased in licensed premises or clubs may be taken from those 
premises for consumption elsewhere. This is lawful where premises are 
licensed for the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises. However, 
consideration should be given to a condition preventing customers from 
taking alcoholic and other drinks from the premises in open containers (e.g. 
glasses and opened bottles) for example, by requiring the use of bottle bins 
on the premises. This may again be appropriate to prevent the use of these 
containers as offensive weapons, or to prevent consumption of alcohol, in 
surrounding streets after individuals have left the premises. Restrictions on 
taking open containers from the premises may also be appropriate 
measures to prevent public nuisance (see Part 4). 

CCTV 
The presence of CCTV cameras can be an important means of deterring and 
detecting crime at and immediately outside licensed premises. Conditions 
should not just consider a requirement to have CCTV on the premises, but 
also the precise location of each camera, the requirement to maintain 
cameras in working order, to retain recordings for an appropriate period of 
time and produce images from the system in a required format immediately to 
the police and local authority. The police should provide individuals 
conducting risk assessments as part of preparing their operating schedules 
with advice on the use of CCTV to prevent crime. 

RESTRICTIONS ON DRINKING AREAS 
It may be appropriate to restrict the areas of the premises where alcoholic 
drinks may be consumed after they have been purchased. An example would 
be at a sports ground where it is appropriate to prevent the consumption of 
alcohol on the terracing during particular sports events. Conditions should not 
only specify these areas, but indicate the circumstances and times during 
which the ban would apply.  
Restrictions on drinking areas may also be relevant and appropriate 
measures to prevent public nuisance (see Part 4). 

CAPACITY LIMITS 

Page 154



Capacity limits are most commonly made a condition of a licence on public 
safety grounds (see Part 2), but can also be considered for licensed premises 
or clubs where overcrowding may lead to disorder and violence. If such a 
condition is appropriate, door supervisors may be required to ensure that the 
numbers are appropriately controlled (see above).  

PROOF OF AGE CARDS 
It is unlawful for persons aged under 18 years to buy or attempt to buy alcohol 
just as it is unlawful to sell or supply alcohol to them. To prevent the 
commission of these criminal offences, the mandatory conditions require 
licensed premises to ensure that they have in place an age verification policy. 
This requires the production of age verification (which must meet defined 
criteria) before alcohol is served to persons who appear to staff at the 
premises to be under 18 (or other minimum age set by premises). 
Such verification must include the individual’s photograph, date of birth and a 
holographic mark e.g. driving licence, passport, military ID. Given the value 
and importance of such personal documents, and because not everyone aged 
18 years or over necessarily has such documents, the Government endorses 
the use of ID cards which bear the PASS (Proof of Age Standards Scheme) 
hologram. PASS is the UK’s national proof of age accreditation scheme which 
sets and maintains minimum criteria for proof of age card issuers to meet. The 
inclusion of the PASS hologram on accredited cards, together with the 
verification made by card issuers regarding the personal details  
of an applicant, gives the retailer the assurance that the holder is of relevant 
age to buy or be served age-restricted goods. PASS cards are available to 
people under the age of 18 for other purposes such as access to 15 rated 
films at cinema theatres so care must be taken to check that the individual is 
over 18 when attempting to purchase or being served alcohol. 

CRIME PREVENTION NOTICES 
It may be appropriate at some premises for notices to be displayed which 
warn customers of the prevalence of crime which may target them. Some 
premises may be reluctant to voluntarily display such notices for commercial 
reasons. For example, in certain areas, a condition attached to a premises 
licence or club premises certificate might require the display of notices at the 
premises which warn customers about the need to be aware of pickpockets or 
bag snatchers, and to guard their property. Similarly, it may be appropriate for 
notices to be displayed which advise customers not to leave bags unattended 
because of concerns about terrorism. Consideration could be given to a 
condition requiring a notice to display the name of a contact for customers if 
they wish to report concerns. 

DRINKS PROMOTIONS 
Licensing authorities should not attach standardised blanket conditions 
promoting fixed prices for alcoholic drinks to premises licences or club 
licences or club premises certificates in an area. This may be unlawful under 
current law. It is also likely to be unlawful for licensing authorities or the police 
to promote generalised voluntary schemes or codes of practice in relation to 
price discounts on alcoholic drinks, ‘happy hours’ or drinks promotions. The 
mandatory licensing conditions (see chapter 10 of the statutory guidance) ban 

Page 155



defined types of behaviour referred to as ‘irresponsible promotions’. 

SIGNAGE 
It may be appropriate that the hours at which licensable activities are 
permitted to take place are displayed on or immediately outside the premises 
so that it is clear if breaches of these terms are taking place. Similarly, it may 
be appropriate for any restrictions on the admission of children to be 
displayed on or immediately outside the premises to deter those who might 
seek admission in breach of those conditions. 
LARGE CAPACITY VENUES USED EXCLUSIVELY OR PRIMARILY FOR 
THE “VERTICAL” CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOL (HVVDS) 
Large capacity “vertical drinking” premises, sometimes called High Volume 
Vertical Drinking establishments (HVVDs), are premises that have 
exceptionally high capacities, are used primarily or exclusively for the sale 
and consumption of alcohol, and provide little or no seating for their 
customers. 
Where appropriate, conditions can be attached to licences for these premises 
which require adherence to: 

• a prescribed capacity;
• an appropriate ratio of tables and chairs to customers based on the

capacity; and
the presence of security staff holding the appropriate SIA licence or 
exemption (see Chapter 10 to control entry for the purpose of compliance with 
the capacity limit.  

Page 156



Appendix 15 

Page 157



Appendix 15 

Licensing Policy Adopted by the London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

5.1 Licensed premises, especially those offering late night/early morning 
entertainment, alcohol and refreshment for large numbers of people, can 
be a source of crime and disorder problems.    

5.4 In addition to the requirements for the Licensing Authority to promote the 
licensing objectives, it also has a duty under Section 17 of the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 to do all it reasonable can to prevent crime and disorder 
in the Borough.    

Page 158



Appendix 16 

Page 159



Appendix 16 

Guidance Issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 

PUBLIC NUISANCE 

2.33 The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities,  
through representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and  
what is appropriate to prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific  
premises licences and club premises certificates. It is therefore important that 
in considering the promotion of this licensing objective, licensing authorities  
and responsible authorities focus on the effect of the licensable activities at  
the specific premises on persons living and working (including those carrying  
on business) in the area around the premises which may be disproportionate  
and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, light  
pollution, noxious smells and litter. 

2.34 Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of  
legislation. It is however not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its  
broad common law meaning. It is important to remember that the prevention  
of public nuisance could therefore include low-level nuisance, perhaps  
affecting a few people living locally, as well as major disturbance affecting the 
whole community. It may also include in appropriate circumstances the  
reduction of the living and working amenity and environment of other persons 
living and working in the area of the licensed premises. 

2.35 Conditions relating to noise nuisance will normally concern steps  
appropriate to control the levels of noise emanating from premises. This might 
be achieved by a simple measure such as ensuring that doors and windows  
are kept closed after a particular time, or more sophisticated measures like  
the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber speaker mounts. Any conditions  
appropriate to promote the prevention of public nuisance should be tailored to  
the type, nature and characteristics of the specific premises. Licensing  
authorities should be aware of the need to avoid inappropriate or  
disproportionate measures that could deter events that are valuable to the  
community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for example, are very  
expensive to purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable burden  
for smaller venues. 

2.36 As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be  
appropriate in certain circumstances where the provisions of the  
Environmental Protection Act 1990, the Noise Act 1996, or the Clean  
Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 adequately protect those living in 
the area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach  
of licensing authorities and responsible authorities should be one of  
prevention and when their powers are engaged, licensing authorities should  
be aware of the fact that other legislation may not adequately cover concerns  
raised in relevant representations and additional conditions may be  

Page 160



appropriate. 

2.37 Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate 
conditions should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, 
music noise from premises usually occurs from mid-evening until either late-
evening or early-morning when residents in adjacent properties may be 
attempting to go to sleep or are sleeping. In certain circumstances, conditions 
relating to noise immediately surrounding the premises may also prove 
appropriate to address any disturbance anticipated as customers enter and 
leave. 

2.38 Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright 
lighting outside premises considered appropriate to prevent crime and 
disorder may itself give rise to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, 
licensing authorities and responsible authorities will need to balance these 
issues. 

2.39 In the context of preventing public nuisance, it is again essential that  
conditions are focused on measures within the direct control of the licence  
holder or club. Conditions relating to public nuisance caused by the anti-social 
behaviour of customers once they are beyond the control of the licence  
holder, club or premises management cannot be justified and will not serve to  
promote the licensing objectives. However, premises should have adequate  
dispersal policies (where appropriate) in place to ensure that customers leave  
the premises promptly and with minimal disruption to those in the surrounding  
area. 

2.40 Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters 
for personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who 
engages in anti-social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it 
would be perfectly reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, 
following relevant representations, that requires the licence holder or club to 
place signs at the exits from the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until 
they leave the area and to respect the rights of people living nearby to a 
peaceful night. 

Page 161



Appendix 17 

Page 162



Document12 

Appendix 17 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Policy in relation to the Prevention 
of Public Nuisance 

8 Prevention of Nuisance 

8.1 Licensed premises, especially those operating late at night and in the 
early hours of the morning, can cause a range of nuisances impacting on 
people living, working or sleeping in the vicinity of the premises. 

8.2 The concerns mainly relate to noise nuisance both from the premises and 
customer egress, light pollution, noxious smells and disruption from parked 
vehicles and due regard will be taken of the impact these may have in 
considering a licence. The Licensing Authority will expect Operating 
Schedules to satisfactorily address these issues. Applicants are advised to 
seek advice from the Council’s Environmental Health Officers before 
preparing their plans and Schedules. 

8.3 The Licensing Authority, where its discretion is engaged, will consider, 
where appropriate, attaching conditions to licences and permissions to 
prevent the problems identified in 8.2, and these may include conditions 
drawn from the Model Pool of Conditions in Appendix 2. 

Page 163



This page is intentionally left blank



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\1\1\AI00049112\$f3sbs01z.doc 

 

Committee: 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

Date: 
 

04 February 2014 

Classification: 

 

UNRESTRICTED 

Report No. 
 

LSC 59/134 

Agenda 
Item No. 

 

Report of : 

David Tolley 
Head of Consumer and Business 
Relations 
 
Originating Officer:  

Andrew Heron 
Licensing Officer 
 

Title: 

Licensing Act 2003 Application for a 
Review of a Premises Licence at Cost 
Price, 41 Brick Lane, London, E1 6PU 
 
Ward affected:  

Spitalfields and Banglatown 
 

 

 
1.0 Summary 

 
Name and   Cost Price 
 
Address of premises:  41 Brick Lane 
     London 

E1 6PU  
 
Licence under review: Licensing Act 2003  

§ Sale by retail of alcohol 
 

Representations:  -Trading Standards 
  - Police 
  - Local Residents 
   
 

 

2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 That the Licensing Committee considers the application for review and 

then adjudicates accordingly. 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT  2000 (Section 97) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE DRAFTING OF THIS REPORT 

   
   
Brief description of "background paper" Tick if copy supplied for 

register 
 

If not supplied, name and telephone 
number of holder 

• Guidance Issued under Section 182 
of the Licensing Act 2003  

• Tower Hamlets Licensing Policy 
• File  

 Andrew Heron 
020 7364 2665 

Page 165

Agenda Item 4.3



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\1\1\AI00049112\$f3sbs01z.doc 

Review Application 
 
2.2 This is an application for a review of the premises licence for Cost Price, 

41 Brick Lane, London, E1 6PU. The review was triggered by Mr John 
McCrohan of Tower Hamlets Trading Standards. 

 
2.3 A copy of the review application is attached in Appendix 1. 
 

 

3.0 The Premises 
 
3.1 The premises licence was issued on 2nd October 2006 and amended at 

a Licensing Sub Committee Hearing on 10th July 2008. A copy of the 
current licence is contained in Appendix 2. 
 

3.2 Maps showing the premises, surrounding area and vicinity of local 
residents are included in Appendix 3. 

 
 
4.0 Representations 
 
4.1 This hearing is required by the Licensing Act 2003, because a review 

has been triggered by Mr John McCrohan of Tower Hamlets Trading 
Standards. 

 
4.2 This Service respectfully refers the Licensing sub-committee to the 

Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 by the 
Home Office.  In particular the Service requests that you consider 
paragraphs 11.23 to 11.28, Reviews arising in connection with crime, 
making reference to paragraph 11.26.  Paragraph 11.26 states that there 
is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed 
premises, which the Secretary of State considers should be treated 
particularly seriously.  These are the use of the licensed premises for, 
amongst other things, the sale of smuggled tobacco.  In paragraph 11.27 
the guidance advises that revocation of the licence should seriously be 
considered, even at first instance.  
 

4.3 The review is also supported by local residents: 
 

• Prof Karim Brohi 
• Joyce Fenton Douglas 
• Alex Gordon Shute 
• Jane Curtis and Keith Bowler 
• Sandy Critchley- Vice-Chairman, Spitalfields Society 
• Selina Misfud - Spitalfields Community Group 
• Jon Shapiro – resident, Chair of the Spitalfields & Banglatown 

Police Ward Panel and Chair of SPIRE (Spitalfields Residents) 

Page 166



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\1\1\AI00049112\$f3sbs01z.doc 

 
4.4 Please see Appendices 4-10for the individual representations. 

 
4.5 The review is further supported by Dr Somen Banerjee, the Director of 

Public Health for Tower Hamlets.  Please see Appendix 11. 
 

4.6 The review is further supported by PC Perry of the Metropolitan Police. 
Please see Appendix 12. 
 

4.7 Only representations that relate to the following licensing objectives are 
relevant: 

• the prevention of crime and disorder 
• public safety 
• the prevention of public nuisance 
• the protection of children from harm  

 
4.8 In the view of the interested party and the responsible authorities it is 

necessary to achieve the licensing objectives of the prevention of public 
nuisance and prevention of crime & disorder. 
 

 
5.0 Review Explained 

 
5.1 The Licensing Act 2003 was described by the Government at the time as 

“light touch” but as Baroness Blackstone stated in the Lords at the time 
of the second reading (26 Nov 2002) “Local residents and businesses  
as well as expert bodies, will have the power to request that the licensing 
authority review existing licences where problems arise. Such a review 
could result in the modification of the licence, its suspension, or 
ultimately, revocation.” 

 

5.2 The Home Office has issued guidance under Section 182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 in relation to reviews and that is contained in 
Appendix 13. It is available on the Government’s website, 
www.homeoffice.gov.uk.It was last revised in October 2010. 

 
5.3 Members are particularly asked to note the comments in relation Crime 

and Disorder. In particular the home office advice is that “The role of the 
licensing authority when determining such a review is not therefore to 
establish the guilt or innocence of any individual but to ensure that the 
crime prevention objective is promoted.” 

Page 167



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\1\1\AI00049112\$f3sbs01z.doc 

5.4 In relation to its advice on representations the home office has also 
advised that “there is no requirement for an interested party or 
responsible authority to produce a recorded history of problems at a 
premises to support their representations. ”It has also issued revised 
guidance about Crime and Disorder, and the pool of conditions which 
might be considered in relation to any identified problems. See 
Appendix 14. 
 

5.5 Members should also note the Council’s Licensing Policy in relation to 
Crime and Disorder, the relevant parts of which are contained in 
Appendix 15. The Pool Conditions in the Policy are the same as the 
Government’s. 

 

5.6 The Home Office has also issued guidance about the prevention of 
public nuisance and the pool of conditions which might be considered in 
relation to any identified problems is contained in Appendix 16. 
 

5.7 The Council’s Licensing Policy in relation to Public Nuisance is 
contained in Appendix 17. 
 

5.8 The Home Office has advised that in relation to reviews “It is important to 
recognise that the promotion of licensing objectives relies heavily on a 
partnership between licence holders, authorised persons, interested 
parties and responsible authorities in pursuit of common aims. It is 
therefore equally important that reviews are not used to drive a wedge 
between those groups in a way that would undermine the benefits of co-
operation. It would be good practice for authorised persons and 
responsible authorities to give licence holders early warning of their 
concerns about problems identified at the premises concerned and of 
the need for improvement. It is expected that a failure to respond to such 
warnings would lead to a decision to request a review.” 

 

5.9 The licensing authority itself cannot trigger a review; that can only be 
done by a responsible authority or an interested party (local resident, 
business or member of the Licensing Authority). 

 

5.10 An interested party or a responsible authority can trigger a review at any 
time, but the grounds must be relevant to the licensing objectives. The 
form of the application, and the advertisement of the review are the 
subject of regulations (The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and 
Club Premises Certificate) Regulations 2005). In addition, the licensing 
authority has to satisfy itself of certain matters in relation to the Licensing 
Act 2003. The Licensing Services Manager Mr John McCrohan is the 
delegated officer who deals with this on behalf of the licensing authority. 
All the matters stated in 5.0.were considered before any representations 
were accepted for inclusion in this report. 

 

Page 168



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\1\1\AI00049112\$f3sbs01z.doc 

5.11 The Licensing Act 2003 requires that the Licensing Authority satisfies 
itself that it should reject the grounds for a review because: 

• The ground is not relevant to one or more of the licensing 
objectives 

• In the case of an application by a local resident that the 
application is frivolous, vexatious or repetitious.  

 

 

6.0 Review Advertisement 
 

6.1 The review was advertised by a blue poster, next to the premises, by the 
Licensing Section. This was periodically monitored by the Section to 
ensure it was on continuous display, and replaced as necessary. It was 
also advertised at Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, LondonE14 2BG. 

 

6.2 The party that triggers the review must notify the licence holder and 
responsible authorities. The review documents were sent to the licence 
holders. 

 

6.3 The procedure for a review can be summarised as follows: 
• A review is triggered by a responsible authority or interested party 
• Consultation is conducted for 28 full days 
• Other responsible authorities or interested parties may join in the 

review 
• Members conduct a hearing 
• Members make a determination 
• All the parties to the review have the right of appeal to the 

magistrates court (i.e. the licence holder, the person who triggered 
the review and those who have made a representation).  

 

 

7.0 Licensing Officer Comments 
 
7.1 Members must consider all the evidence and then decide from the 

following alternatives: 
 

• Take no further action as they do not consider it proportionate to do 
so 

 
• Impose conditions (including altering existing permissions) that 

relate to problems which they consider have been identified and 
which are necessary and proportionate to ensure that the licensing 
objectives are met 

 
• Suspend the licence for a period 

 
• Revoke the licence completely 

 

Page 169



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\1\1\AI00049112\$f3sbs01z.doc 

7.2 The licence should only be suspended or revoked if Members believe 
that alterations to the existing licence, including imposing new conditions 
does not have a reasonable prospect of ensuring that the licensing 
objectives are met.   

 
7.3 Members should bear in mind that conditions may not be imposed for 

any purpose other than to meet the licensing objectives. 
 
7.4 In all cases the Members should make their decision on the civil burden 

of proof that is “the balance of probability.” 
 
7.5 In all cases Members should consider whether or not primary legislation 

is the appropriate method of regulation and should only consider licence 
conditions when the circumstances in their view are not already 
adequately covered elsewhere.  

 
 
8.0 Legal Comments 
 
8.1 The Council’s legal officer will give advice at the hearing. 
 
 
9.0 Finance Comments 
 
9.1 There are no financial implications in this report. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 170



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\1\1\AI00049112\$f3sbs01z.doc 

10.0 Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 Copy of the review application 
 

Appendix 2 Current Premises Licence 
 

Appendix 3 Maps of the premises and surrounding area 
 

Appendix 4 Representation from local resident Prof Karim Brohi 
 

Appendix 5  Representation from local resident Joyce Fenton Douglas 
 

Appendix 6 Representation from local resident Alex Gordon Shute 
 

Appendix 7 Representation from local resident Jane Curtis and Keith 
Bowler 
 

Appendix 8 Representation from local resident Sandy Critchley- Vice-
Chairman, Spitalfields Society 
 

Appendix 9 Representation from local resident Selina Misfud - 
Spitalfields Community Group 
 

Appendix 10 Representation from local resident Jon Shapiro – resident, 
Chair of the Spitalfields & Banglatown Police Ward Panel 
and Chair of SPIRE (Spitalfields Residents) 
 

Appendix 11 Representation from Dr Somen Banerjee, the Director of 
Public Health for Tower Hamlets 
 

Appendix 12 Representation from PC Perry of the Metropolitan Police 
 

Appendix 13 Guidance issued under Section 182 by the Home Office for 
reviews 
 

Appendix 14 Guidance Issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of 
the Licensing Act 2003 concerning Crime and Disorder 
 

Appendix 15 London Borough of Tower Hamlets Licensing Policy 
 

Appendix 16 Guidance Issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of 
the Licensing Act 2003 concerning Public Nuisance 
 

Appendix 17 London Borough of Tower Hamlets Policy in relation to the 
prevention of Public Nuisance 
 

 

 

 

Page 171



This page is intentionally left blank



 Appendix 1 

Page 173



Application for the review of a premises licence or club 
premises certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. 
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all 
cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use 
additional sheets if necessary. 
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records. 

I John Patrick McCrohan 
·---·---··-~--·~··----------------····-----···-··················-·········································-

(Insert name of applicant) 
apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below (delete as applicable) 

Part 1 - Premises or club premises details 

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description 
Cost Price, 41 Brick Lane 

Post town Post code (if known) E16PU 

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if 
known) 
Mohammed Shilu Chowdhury 

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known 
12661 

Part 2 • Applicant details 
lam 

1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below) 
Please tick yes 

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises D 

b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises D 

c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises D 

d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the D 
premises 

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below) 

Page 174



3) a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A) D 
below) 

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable) 

Please tick 
Mr D Mrs D 

Surname 

I am 18 years old or over 

Current postal n/a 
address if 
different from 
premises 
address 

Post town 

Miss D 

Daytime contact telephone number 

(optional) 

Ms D Other title 
(for example, Rev) 

First names 

Please tick yes 
D 

Post Code 

I n/a 

E-mail address I n/a 

~----------------------------------------J 

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT 

Name and address 
n/a 

Telephone number (if any) 
n/a 

E-mail address (optional) 
n/a 

2 
Page 175



(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT 

Name and address 
John McCrohan 
Licensing Authority 
Trading Standards and Licensing Service 
London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
Mulberry Place (AH) 
PO Box 55739 
5 Clove Crescent 
London, 
E14 1BY 

Telephone number (if any) 
 

E-mail address (optional) 
 

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective{s) 

1) the prevention of crime and disorder 
2) public safety 
3) the prevention of public nuisance 
4) the protection of children from harm 

Please tick one or more boxes 
~ 
0 
~ 
0 

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 1) 
Please refer to attached document. 

3 Page 176



Please provide as much information as possible to support the application 
(please read guidance note 2) 

Please refer to attached document. 

4 
Page 177



Please tick yes 
Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before 0 

If yes please state the date of that application 
Day Month Year 

I I I I I I I I 

If you have made representations before relating to this premises please state 
what they were and when you made them 
n/a 

5 Page 178



Please tick yes 
• I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible 181 

authorities and the premises licence holder or c1ub holding the dub 
premises certificate, as appropriate 

• I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements [8l 
my application will be rejected 

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON 
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
APPLICATION 

Part 3- Signatures (please read guidance note 3) 

Signature of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent 
(See guidance note 4). 1f signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what 

Date 

Capacity TRADING STANDARDS AND LICENSING MANAGER 

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for 
correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 5) 

Post town ~ Post Code 

Telephone number (if any) 

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-
mail address (optional) 

Notes for Guidance 

1. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives. 
2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems 

which are included in the grounds for review if available. 
3. The application form must be signed. 
4. An applicant's agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf 

provided that they have actual authority to do so. 
5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this 

application. 

6 
Page 179



London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

Cost Price, 41 Brick Lane, London, E1 6PU 

Licence No 12661 (Licence Holder- Mr Mohammed Shilu Chowdhury) 

Application for the Review of the Premises Licence under Section 51 of the 

Licensing Act 2003 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets- Licensing Authority 

REPRESENTATIONS 

1. The Licensing Authority is designated a 'responsible authority' for the purposes of 

the Act and it is raising this Review in relation to the prevention of Crime and 

Disorder licensing objective, and public nuisance licensing objective. 

2. The premises at 41 Brick Lane, a venue known as Cost Price, holds a Premises 

Licence under the Licensing Act 2003, numbered 12661 ~ 

3. The Premises Licence Holder and Designated Premises Supervisor at the 

premises is - Mr Mohammed Shilu Chowdhury ,. 

Drinking control zone 

m:\lradstan\word97\community safety\alcohol\revlews\cosl price\cost price licensing review pro forma.docx Page 180



4. The Council has introduced Designated Public Place Orders (DPPO)," a drinking 

control zone" across the Borough having been satisfied that there was an alcohol 

related nuisance or annoyance to the public in the Borough. 

Saturation policy 

5. The Premises is within the cumulative impact policy zone (saturation policy) that 

is currently in the progress of being implemented. The justification for a 

saturation policy in Brick Lane can be summarised as:-

A) There are already over 207 Licensed Premises within this small 

area; 

b) The continuing high levels of violent I alcohol related in the 

Brick Lane 

Area (2011 Violent Crime 30% of all Alcohol Related Crime); 

c). It is responsible for 8% of all crime within Tower Hamlets; 

d) . It is responsible for the highest level of complaints about street 

drinking; 

e) • 22% of all police calls to licensed premises are in the Brick 

Lane Area; 

f.) There are clear demonstrable links between violence against 

the person offences and alcohol related violence in the Brick Lane 

Area; 

g) . LBTH has the second highest level of ASB in London; 

h) • The highest rates of ASB in the Borough are in the Brick Lane 

Area; 

m;\tradslan\word97\community safety\alcohol\reviews\cost price\cost price licensing review pro forma.docx Page 181



i) . ASB is now decreasing in the Borough and Brick Lane Area 

but it still is at levels that continues to give rise to complaints from local 

residents; 

j) . LBTH has significantly worse alcohol related harm indicators 

compared with regional and national averages; 

k) . There is a steady increase in ambulance call outs in the Brick 

Lane Area; 

I) . The Brick Lane Area has a vibrant and expanding night time 

economy which has led to a sizeable and steady increase in visitors to 

the area; 

m) . Considerable tensions have been built up because of the 

conflicting demands of the night time economy and the local residents. 

Brick lane - Shored itch ASB/crime hot spot 

6. The Licensing Authority understands that the Brick Lane/Shored itch triangle that 

runs across Islington, Hackney and Tower Hamlets is flagged as a crime and 

disorder hotspot of the similar magnitude as Westminster. To address this, the 

Metropolitan Police is extending its Operation Trafalgar to include Brick lane and 

the Shoreditch area. 

Crime and disorder 

Seizure of illicit tobacco - caution 

7. On 1ih September 2009, Mr Mohammed Shilu Chowdhury received a caution for 

offences under the Consumer Protection Act 1987 following a seizure of illicit 

m:\tradstan\word97\community safety\alcohol\revlews\cost prtce\cost price licensing review pro forma.docx Page 182



tobacco that did not bear UK health warnings, nor duty paid markings. A copy of 

the caution is attached. 

Under age sale of alcohol 

8. On 141
h December 2010, a sale of alcohol was made to an under-age test 

purchaser. A letter of warning was sent, a copy of which is appended. 

Seizure of smuggled wine 

9. On 10th May 2011, a quantity of smuggled wine was seized by Her Majesty•s 

Revenue and Customs (HMRC) during a partnership visit with the Police and 

Trading Standards. 

Test purchase Sunday 15th September 2013 at 00:45- opened 

bottle of cider 

10. 1n the early hours of Sunday 15th September 2013. a Smoke Free Technical Officer 

purchased a bottle of Pear Kopperberg cider. She asked the seller to open the 

bottle and using a bottte opener, he opened the bottle, taking its cap off. 

11 . On the 22"d September 2013, the premises declined to open a bottle of alcohol, 

telling the test purchaser that it was, " .. . not allowed . .. ". 

12. The Licensing Authority is of the view that the test purchase on 15th September 

2013, shows that the premises is facilitating the immediate consumption of the 

m:\tradstan\word97\community safety\alcohol\reviews\cost price\cost price licensing review pro forma.docx 
Page 183



alcohol in the public areas in and around Brick Lane. The Public consumption of 

alcohol in the Brick Lane area in the early hours of a weekend increases the risk 

crime and disorder and public nuisance. 

Public nuisance 

Hostels nearby - homeless medical centre 

13. The Licensing Authority has been advised by the Public Health, Education, 

Social Care & Wellbeing Directorate that the premises is in the proximity to the 

following three hostels: 

• Hopetown Hostel, 60 Old Montague Street, London, E1 5NG 

• Dellow Centre, 82 Wentworth Street Dellow Centre London, E1 7SA 

• Booth House, 153-175 Whitechapel Road, London, E1 1 ON 

14.Aiso, the premises is also in the proximity of Health E1, 9-11 Brick Lane London 

E1 6PU, and a homeless medical centre. 

15.1t is the Licensing Authority's contention that the because of lack of management 

control of the business, there is a foreseeable risk that sales of alcohol will be 

made to vulnerable adults, leading to public nuisance. 

Licensing authority concerns - management of premises in hot spot 

area 

m:\tradstan\word97\communlty safety\alcohol\revlews\cost prlce\cost price licensing review pro forma.docx Page 184



16. The Licensing Authority has serious concerns regarding the general management 

of the premises as a result of the above. In particular because of the nature of 

the area and concerns about crime and disorder, protection of children and public 

nuisance, the Licensing Authority needs to have confidence that licensed 

premises in the Brick Lane area are managed in way to ensure the Licensing 

objectives are met. The Licensing Authority does not have confidence that the 

management of the premises by the Premises Licence holder will ensure that the 

Licensing objectives are met. 

17. This Service respectfully refers the Licensing sub-committee to the Guidance 

issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 by the HOME OFFICE In 

particular the Service requests that you consider paragraphs 11.24 to 11 .28, 

Reviews arising in connection with crime, making reference to paragraph 11 .25. 

Paragraph 11 .27 states that there is certain criminal activity that may arise in 

connection with licensed premises, which the Secretary of State considers should 

be treated particularly seriously. These are the use of licensed premises for, 

amongst other things, the sale of smuggled tobacco and alcohol. In paragraph 

11.28 the guidance advises that revocation of the licence should seriously be 

considered, even at first instance. 

18. The Licensing Authority respectfully requests that the Licensing sub-committee; 

in order to Improve the management of the premises in accordance with the 

Council's Licensing Policy and concerns about crime and disorder, and public 

m:\tradstan\word97\community safety\alcohol\reviews\cost prtce\cost price licensing review pro forma.docx 
Page 185



nuisance the applicant seeks changes the terminal hours and adds the 

conditions as follows to the premises licence. 

Earlier terminal hour 

19. The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities are 

changed as follows:-

"The sale by retail of alcohol ,Monday to Sunday 08 00 hrs to 23:00" 

Conditions 

20. Conditions:-

1) The premises will not sell any beer, larger or cider that exceeds the 

strength of 5.6%abv or higher unless 3 or more bottles/cans are purchased 

together; 

2) During a sale of alcohol, the premises will not supply drinking 

containers, such as plastic cups, 

3) During a sale of alcohol, the premises will not open any container the 

alcohol is contained in; 

4) The premises licence holder and any other persons responsible for the 

purchase of stock shall not purchase any goods from door-to-door sellers 

other than from established traders who provide full receipts at the time of 

delivery. 

m:\tradstan\word97\community safety\alcohol\revlews\cost price\cost price licensing review pro rorma.docx Page 186



5) The premises licence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods 

bought include the following details: 

I. Seller's name and address 

II. Seller's company details. if applicable 

Ill. Seller's VAT details, if applicable 

IV. Vehicle registration detail, if applicable 

V. 

6) Legible copies of the documents referred to in 2) shall be retained on 

the premises and made available to officers on request. 

7) The trader shall obtain and use a UV detection device to verify that 

duty stamps are valid. 

8) Where the trader becomes aware that any alcohol may be not duty 

paid they shall inform the Police of this immediately. " 

John Patrick McCrohan 

Trading Standards and Licensing Manager 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

m:\tradstan\word97\community safety\alcohol\reviews\cost price\cost price licensing review pro Jonna.docx Page 187



Mr Shilu Chowdhury 
T/A Cost Price 
41 Brick Lane 
London 
El6PU 

Date: 17/09/2009 

Your reference 
My reference: AERIPSU 2316 

Dear Mr Chowdhury, 

Consumer Protection Act 1987 

Trading Standards and 
Environmental Health 
(Commercial) 

Head of Service Colin Perrins 

Mulberry Place (AH) 
PO Box 55739 
5 Clove Crescent 
london, E141BY 

Tel  
Fax 020 7364 6901 
Enquiries to Alan Richards 
Email 

 

www.towerhamlets.gov.uk 

Following on from our recent communications regarding the offences of3rd March 2009, relating to 
possession of non UK tobacco products, I am in receipt of your signed simple caution and voluntary 
surrender notice. 

Due to time limits imposed by the legislation we have decided however not to accept the simple 
caution and are minded to issue a letter of warning only on this occasion. The simple caution will 
not therefore be registered with the Office of Fair Trading. 

I think it would be fair to say that you have been fortunate to avoid prosecution for this offence and 
you should treat this as a warning. Should you be found in possession of similar tobacco products in 
the future then we will not hesitate to institute proceedings, with each offence carrying a maximum 
penalty of up to £5,000. 

If you have any query with regards these matters please call me on the number above. 

Yours sincerely 

Alan Richards 
Trading Standards Officer 

Corporate Director 
Communities, Localities and Culture 

Stephen Halsey 
Page 188



Mr M. S. Chowdhury 
82 Vaughan Gardens 
II ford 
IGI 3PD 

Date 1811/2011 

Your reference 
My reference P3385 

Dear Sirs 

Communities Localities & Culture 
Trading Standards and 
Environmental Health 
(Commercial) 

Head of Service Colin Perrins 

Mulberry Place (AH) 
PO Box55739 
5 Clove Crescent 
London, E141BY 
Tel  
Fax 020 7364 6901 
Enquiries to lan Moseley 
Email 

 
www .towerhamlets.gov .uk 

Licensing Act 2003, Section 146/147: sale of alcohol to person under the age of 18 years. 
Cost Price 41 Brick Lane, London, El 6PU 

I understand from our records that you are the licensee and designated premises supervisor for the 
above premises. 

As you may be aware, on the 141b of December 2010 a volunteer under the age of 18 was able to buy 
alcohol at those premises from a Mr Mohammad Ambia. At the time the matter was dealt with by 
the issue of a Police Penalty Charge Notice. 

Sale of alcohol to persons under 18 years of age is an offence under the provisions of Section 146 of 
the Licensing Act 2003. 

I must point out that the Council takes a very serious view of breaches of this legislation and should 
any further such offences take place then this may lead to prosecution of the offender and or review 
of the license. A review of the licence may result in additional conditions, suspension of the licence 
for a fixed period, or revocation. 

A second underage sale within 3 months can result (currently) in suspension of the licence for up to 
48 hours or prosecution with a fine of up to £10,000. There are proposals that will raise this to 14 
days suspension or £20,000. 

Test purchase exercises of this sort are being carried out throughout the year and you should ensure 
that you and your staff are fully aware of the legal requirements and take the necessary steps to 
ensure you comply. 

We would recommend that you adopt the following policies if not already in place. 

Corporate Director 
Communities, Localities & Culture 

Stephen Halsey 

Page 189



1] Introduce a strict 'Challenge 21' policy and 'No 10. No sale' policy which is supported by signage 
at all entmnces and in the serving area. 

2] Only documents which include a photogmph of the purchaser are acceptable to prove that persons 
age, e g passport, new style driving licence and only PASS - approved age cards, e.g. Portman card; 
citizens card. 

3] Maintain a 'Refusals book which documents the date and time a refusal of sale is made, the 
reason for the refusal and the member of staff refusing the sale. The licensee or the Designated 
Premises Supervisor should monitor the Log on a regular basis and sign it to show it has been done. 

Yours Faithfully 

Ian Moseley 
Trading Standards Officer 

Corporate Director 
Communities, Localities & Culture 

Stephen Halsey 

Page 190



Prosecution reference number: 003857 

PROSECUTION DETAILS 

PROSECUTION NUMBER: 003857 LA REFERENCE: 

UNIT: 
OFFICER: 
OPEN DATE: 
DATE CLOSED: 
ACTION: 
FEE: 
PAYMENT RECEIVED: 

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENCE 

TS - Trading Standards 
SJR - Sean Rovai 
12/05/2011 
14/09/2011 
T06 - Investigation completed - nfa 
0.00 
No 

HMRC seizure of non-duty paid wine 

DEFENDANT'S DETAILS 

PREMISES REF: F179TH41BR/1 

NAME: Cost Price 
ADDRESS: 41 Brick Lane 

London 
E1 6PU 

TEL NO:  
UPRN/USRN:6001207 
EASTING: 533892.0 
NORTHING: 181727.0 

ASSOCIATED NAMES AND ADDRESSES 

OFFENCE DETAILS 

2!..:. DESCRIPTION ~ 

Lll t.lcen.lng Aot l ' fl (Smuggled 1 

COURT DETAILS 

OPEN DATE: 
DATE OF OFFENCE: 
DATE CLOSED: 

FURTHER ACTION 

~ RES £!!! 
0 

12/05/2011 
10/05/2011 
14/09/2011 

AREA: Tower Hamlets 
WARD: Spitalfields and Banglatown 

FINE ~ ~ PROSECUTE ~ ~ 
0. 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 191



Prosecution: 003857 (Cant) Record: 1 Page: 2 

ITEM EVENT DESCRIPTION SCH. DATE ACT. DATE OFF 

ACTION TYPE: T06 - Investigation completed - nfa 
Action record initiated under record number 238138 
ITEM EVENT DESCRIPTION SCH. DATE ACT. DATE OFF 

1 108 Please note information 12/05/2011 01/09/2011 JMC 

2 T18 TS Visit Other Bodies 10/05/2011 SJR 

Page 192



STATEMENT OF WITNESS 

(C.J ACT 1967, S.9; M.C. ACT 1980 5102; M.C. Rules 1981 r 70) 

Statement of: Shola Thompson 

Age of Witness: Over 18 

Occupation of Witness: Smokefree Technical Officer 
. 

This statement consists of a page is signed by me, and is true to the best of my 
knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, If it is tendered in evidence, I shall 
be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it anything which I know to be false 
or do not believe to be true. 

Dated: 2oth September 2013 

Signed 

I, Shola Thompson produced this witness statement. I am currently working for London 
Borough of Tower Hamlets Council as a Smokefree Technical Officer as part of the 
Environmental Health Smokefree Team. I am an authorised officer under the Health Act 
2006. 

On the early hours of Sunday 15th September 2013 at 12:4sam, I visited, Cost Price off 
licence at 41 Brick Lane, London, as part of a planned licensing enforcement visit. I was 
accompanied by Rabel Zaman, Food Safety officer. 

On arrival there were two in the store, one male by the door and another behind the 
counter, we went straight to the fridge and I retrieved a bottle of Pear Kopperberg and 
Rabel got a can on coke. We then approached the man behind the counter who later 
identified himself as Mr Shabbil Khan to pay for the drinks. After paying for the drinks I 
asked Mr Khan if he had a bottle opener to which he replied that he did, I then asked him 
if he could open the bottle of Pear Kopperberg for me, and he opened the bottle. At that 
moment we identified ourselves and he was then verbally advised on the conditions of the 
Licensing Act 2003. 

1 observed the license displayed on the wall, store was licensed to open until tam. We 
left the store at tam, on leaving I emptied the contents of the opened bottle of Kopper berg 
into the drain and disposed of the bottle in the bin. 

Signature _ _________ ______ _ 

Signature Witnec;sed by--- ------

Page 193



Appendix 2 

Page 194



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\BrickLane41.doc 

1

See the attached licence for the licence conditions 

Signed by John Cruse ____________________ 
Team Leader Licensing 

Date: 2 October 2006 

Licence amended following the licensing subcommittee hearing of 10th July 2008 

(Just Price) 
41 Brick Lane 
London 
E1 6PU 

Licensable Activities authorised by the licence 

The sale by retail of alcohol 

Page 195



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\BrickLane41.doc 

2

Part A - Format of premises licence 

Premises licence number 12661 

Part 1 - Premises details 
Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description  

(Just Price) 
41 Brick Lane 

Post town 
London 

Post code 
 E1 6PU 

Telephone number 
 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 

N/A 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 

The sale by retail of alcohol 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 

The sale by retail of alcohol 
• Sunday to Thursday, from 11:00 hours to midnight
• Friday and Saturday, from 11:00 hours to 01:00 hours

The opening hours of the premises 

• Sunday to Thursday, from 11:00 hours to midnight
• Friday and Saturday, from 11:00 hours to 01:00 hours

Page 196



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\BrickLane41.doc 

3

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or 
off supplies 
 
Off sales only 
 

 Part 2  
 
Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of 
holder of premises licence  
 
Mr Mohammed Shilu Chowdhury 

 

 
 
 
 

 
Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number 
(where applicable) 
 
Not applicable 

 
Name, address and  telephone number of designated premises supervisor 
where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol 
 
Mr Mohammed Shilu Chowdhury 

 

 
 

 
Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by 
designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the 
supply of alcohol 
 
Licence Number :  
Issuing Authority :  
 

 
 

Page 197



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\BrickLane41.doc 

4

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions 
4.  

(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall 
ensure that an age verification policy applies to the premises in 
relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.  

(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible 
person to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be 
specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served 
alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a 
holographic mark. 

No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence- 

a) at a time where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the 
premises licence, or 

b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal
licence or his personal licence is suspended 

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised 
by a person who holds a personal licence  

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 

1. Adult entertainment is not permitted.

2. CCTV shall be maintained and operational at all times.

3. Request photographic identification to anyone appearing to be underage
and service shall be refused if this is not produced.

4. Outside areas of the premises to be kept clear and clean.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
Licensing subcommittee hearing of 10 July 2008 

1. CCTV must be working at all times the premises are open for business.
The CCTV system shall incorporate a recording facility and any recordings
shall be retained and stored in a suitable and secure manner for a
minimum of one calendar month.

2. A refusal book shall be kept and maintained.

Page 198



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\BrickLane41.doc 

5

Annex 4 - Plans  

The plans are those submitted to the licensing authority on the following date: 

15 April 2008 

Page 199



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\BrickLane41.doc 

6

Part B - Premises licence summary 

Premises licence number 12661 

Premises details 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description  

(Just Price) 
41 Brick Lane 

Post town 
 London 

Post code 
E1 6PU 

Telephone number 
  

Where the licence is time limited the 
dates N/A 

Licensable activities authorised by the 
licence  

The sale by retail of alcohol 

Licensing Act 2003 

Page 200



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\BrickLane41.doc 

7

 
  
The times the licence authorises the 
carrying out of licensable activities 

The sale by retail of alcohol 
• Sunday to Thursday, from 11:00 

hours to midnight 
• Friday and Saturday, from 11:00 

hours to 01:00 hours 
 

   

The opening hours of the premises  
• Sunday to Thursday, from 11:00 

hours to midnight 
• Friday and Saturday, from 11:00 

hours to 01:00 hours 
 

 
Name, (registered) address  of holder 
of premises licence 

Mr Mohammed Shilu Chowdhury 
 

 
 

  
Where the licence authorises supplies 
of alcohol whether these are on and / 
or off supplies 

Off sales only 
 

  
Registered number of holder, for 
example company number, charity 
number (where applicable) 

 
Not applicable 

  
Name of designated premises 
supervisor where the premises licence 
authorises for the supply of alcohol 

 
Mr Mohammed Shilu Chowdhury  
 

  

State whether access to the premises 
by children is restricted or prohibited 

 
No restrictions 
 
 

 

Page 201



Appendix 3 

Page 202



41 Brick Lane

Map 1

Page 203



41 Brick Lane

Map 2

Page 204



Appendix 4 

Page 205



Statement of Objection to Licence Application 

41 Brick Lane 

12th November 2013 

Prof Karim Brohi 
 

Re: 41 Brick Lance License Application 

Dear Mr Heron, Licensing Team, 

I wish to object to the license application for sale of alcohol at 41 Brick Lane on the grounds of public 
disorder, antisocial behaviour and threats to public safety.  This off-licence, along with others along 
Brick Lane, fuels the antisocial behaviour experienced by business and residents along the whole 
length of the high street.  This is especially true out of hours (after 11pm) where the off-licences 
become venues for street drinking parties, especially of students and tourists.  These disturb 
businesses and residents with shouting, screaming and singing and then deteriorate into violence 
and antisocial behaviour including urination and vomiting in the street.  They are also focuses for 
local gangs and drug dealers who use the crowds for their illegal activities and target vulnerable 
people.   

As the council has identified, the Brick Lane area is saturated with premises that sell and deliver 
alcohol.  Many of these off-licenses operate outside the bounds of their licence or actively breach 
the regulations of the licensing act on a regular basis.  These premises must have their licenses 
revoked if Brick Lane is to become a safe and enjoyable place for businesses, residents and visitors.  

Off-licences that operate beyond 11pm serve no useful purpose to the neighbourhood and only fuel 
crime, public disorder and antisocial behaviour.  Those premises that have not broken the law or 
regulations should still have their hours limited to 11pm.  Only in this way can some order be 
returned to a neighbourhood that is out of control. 

Yours sincerely 

Page 206



Appendix 5 

Page 207



1

Andrew Heron

From: Joyce Fenton-Douglas 

Sent: 09 November 2013 16:02

To: Andrew Heron

Cc: Licensing

Subject: Review of Premises Licence for 41 Brick Lane, E1

Dear Andrew Heron, Licensing Officers, 

Review of Premises Licence for 41 Brick Lane, E1 I am writing to register my objection to the licence to sell 

alcohol already in operation at 41 Brick Lane, London E1. 

I consider the operation of this licence  very unlikely to satisfy the objectives of the Licensing Act 2003 in 

relation to Crime and Disorder and Public Nuisance, in that the off-sales of alcohol  made from these 

premises are likely to fuel acts of drunken and unruly behaviour from their patrons, contributing 

significantly to the high levels of anti-social behaviour resulting from indiscriminate alcohol consumption in 

the locality that cause residents endless stress and nuisance and sometimes lead to fights and other forms 

of assault in the streets.  

Off-sales of alcohol at this location actually constitute a danger to Public Safety, as the premises are close 

to a number of hostels for the homeless that house many highly vulnerable members of society.  We 

believe it is wholly inappropriate for any retail outlet to be allowed to sell alcohol over the counter so close 

to these people who are already having a very hard time in life and who could do without an inducement 

to drunkenness right on their doorstep.   

Additionally these such off sales make a huge problem for pubs in the area such as The Pride of 

Spitalfields, which is opposite our building, because people buy cheaper off sales and them consume them 

while joining the crowds outside the pub, making a general noise and access nuisance for residents. 

There are far too many off-licences in Brick Lane, far more than are currently needed to provide wine and 

beer to customers of the curry houses.    

Therefore we ask the Licensing Sub-Committee to revoke this licence. 

Yours sincerely, 

Joyce Fenton Douglas 

 

 

Page 208



Appendix 6 

Page 209



1

Andrew Heron

From: Alex Gordon Shute 

Sent: 10 November 2013 20:46

To: Andrew Heron; Licensing

Subject: Alcohol Licence Review for 41 Brick Lane

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Completed

Dear Andrew Heron and Licensing Officers, 

My Partner (Dick Tyler) and I live at 36 Princelet Street, just off Brick Lane and we wanted to register our objection 

to the licence to sell alcohol already in operation at 41 Brick Lane, London E1. 

The licence at 41 Brick Lane is fuelling acts of drunkenness and anti-social behaviour in the immediate vicinity and 

further up Brick Lane.  It is also close to a group of hostels for the homeless which house those who, in a significant 

number of cases, have or have had problems with alcohol.  It seems extraordinarily unsupportive of their recovery 

efforts to sell alcohol so close to them and where anti-social behaviour by others is likely to make their lives harder 

rather than easier.    

There are already too many off-licences in Brick Lane – a lot more than are currently needed to provide wine and 

beer to customers of the curry houses.   I would therefore ask the Licensing Sub-Committee to revoke this licence. 

Best wishes, 

Alex Gordon Shute 

Page 210



Appendix 7 

Page 211



1

Andrew Heron

From: Jane Curtis 

Sent: 09 November 2013 19:11

To: Andrew Heron; Licensing

Subject: Review of 41 Brick Lane

Dear Andrew Heron 

Review of Premises Licence for 41 Brick Lane, E1 

We would like to support the review of the premises licence for 41 Brick Lane, London E1.  These premises are 

incapable of upholding the licensing objectives in particular: 

• the prevention of crime and disorder

• the prevention of public nuisance

As a long term residents of Spitalfields we have seen the availability of alcohol from off licences, including 41 

Brick Lane, lead to an intolerable increase in anti social behaviour and street drinking, which has made living in 

the area very challenging.  The problem of alcohol abuse  in Spitalfields is well documented. We ask the 

licensing department to revoke this licence and support all sections of this diverse community in feeling safe in 

their homes.     

There are many off-licences in Brick Lane, far more than are currently needed to provide wine and beer to 

customers of the curry houses. Licences should only be given to licence holders who have proved that they 

respect the licensing laws and who are willing to uphold the licensing objectives at all times. 

Yours sincerely, 

Jane Curtis 

Keith Bowler 

 

 

Page 212



Appendix 8 

Page 213



1

Andrew Heron

From: Critchley 

Sent: 09 November 2013 11:25

To: Andrew Heron; Licensing

Cc:

Subject: Premises Licence at 41 Brick Lane, E1

Dear Andrew Heron, Licensing Officers, 

Review of Premises Licence for 41 Brick Lane, E1 

The Committee of the Spitalfields Society has asked me to register our objection to the licence to sell alcohol already 

in operation at 41 Brick Lane, London E1. 

We consider the operation of this licence  very unlikely to satisfy the objectives of the Licensing Act 2003 in relation 

to Crime and Disorder and Public Nuisance, in that the off-sales of alcohol  made from these premises are likely to 

fuel acts of drunken and unruly behaviour from their patrons, contributing significantly to the high levels of anti-

social behaviour resulting from indiscriminate alcohol consumption in the locality that cause residents endless stress 

and nuisance and sometimes lead to fights and other forms of assault in the streets.   

Off-sales of alcohol at this location actually constitute a danger to Public Safety, as the premises are close to a 

number of hostels for the homeless that house many highly vulnerable members of society.  We believe it is wholly 

inappropriate for any retail outlet to be allowed to sell alcohol over the counter so close to these people who are 

already having a very hard time in life and who could do without an inducement to drunkenness right on their 

doorstep.   

There are far too many off-licences in Brick Lane, far more than are currently needed to provide wine and beer to 

customers of the curry houses.   Therefore we ask the Licensing Sub-Committee to revoke this licence. 

Yours sincerely, 

Sandy Critchley 

Vice-Chairman, Spitalfields Society 

 

 

Page 214



Appendix 9 

Page 215



1

Andrew Heron

From: Spitalfields Community Group 

Sent: 07 November 2013 20:56

To: Licensing

Cc: Alan Cruickshank

Subject: application to review the premises licence at 41 Brick Lane E1

Dear Sir/Madam, 

Spitalfields Community Group supports the application to review the premises licence at 41 Brick Lane E1. 

Spitalfields Community Group (SCG) was formed in September 2011 with the aim of promoting and 
protecting the quality of life of people living and working in the ward of Spitalfields and Banglatown.  We 
have over 200 members and are growing.  Our current survey, conducted to identify priorities for action, 
highlighted the growing problems faced by locals as a result of the existing dense concentration of licensed 
premises in the area, exacerbating the negative impact on us of the night time economy.  In accordance with 
this focus, SCG has recently supported the adoption of a cumulative impact zone for the Brick Lane area, 
within which the premises at 41 Brick Lane is situated. 

The location of an off licence here is particularly inappropriate given its proximity to several hostels for the 
homeless, amongst whom a high rate of alcohol abuse is prevalent.  It is close to the Dellow Centre in 
Wentworth Street, operated by the homeless charity Providence Row, and to the Hopetown Hostel in Old 
Montague Street, operated by the Salvation Army.  An off-licence so close to is clearly morally 
irresponsible and can only prey on those most vulnerable in our community.  

Street drinking, both by homeless people and by visitors to this area, already causes unwanted noise and 
nuisance, litter and ASB. Street urination as a result of street drinking is a growing and recognised problem. 
There is no provision of public lavatories in the area. Sales of alcohol here undoubtedly contribute to public 
nuisance with the resulting loss of amenity to surrounding residents. 

ASB caused by excessive alcohol consumption in the Brick Lane area is well documented, with many recent 
reports by residents of problems caused by drunken patrons at night and throughout the weekend.  These 
problems include noise nuisance (screaming, shouting, swearing, singing, playing music etc) litter and 
vandalism to cars and homes, street urination and defecation, vomiting, and aggressive and intimidating 
behaviour.  Patrons leaving Brick Lane for surrounding transport hubs pass along residential streets causing 
unwanted mayhem and misery.  The high crime incident rate in the Brick Lane is fuelled, at least in part, by 
off licences.  The strain on police and public health resources is unacceptable. 

For the reasons above Spitalfields Community Group supports the application to review the licence of 41 
Brick Lane E1. 

From and on behalf of the Spitalfields Community Group 

c/o Selina Mifsud,  

Page 216



Appendix 10 

Page 217



1

Andrew Heron

From: Jon Shapiro 

Sent: 08 November 2013 15:57

To: Licensing

Cc: David Tolley; John Mccrohan; 

Subject: Review of the Alcohol Licence of 41 Brick Lane

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Completed

Dear Sir or Madam, 

I believe that LBTH Licensing Department is carrying out a review of the licence to sell alcohol as an “off-licence” of 
41 Brick Lane, Spitalfields. 

I would like to take this opportunity to request any Licensing Hearing to completely revoke the alcohol licence for this 
retail establishment on the grounds of endangering Public Safety. 

41 Brick Lane is located relatively close to Hopeton House and the Dellow Centre, both of which are Hostels for the 
homeless that house many highly vulnerable members of society. I believe it is wholly inappropriate for any retail 
outlet to be allowed to sell alcohol over the counter so close to so many vulnerable people. 

On these grounds I urgently request that any alcohol licence should be wholly revoked. 

I am raising this objection (if I may) in three capacities; 
� As a resident of Spitalfields
� As Chair of the Spitalfields & Banglatown Police Ward Panel
� As Chair of SPIRE (the ASB Working Group) – an umbrella organisation representing over 600 households in

the Brick Lane area who are members of the six major local community groups.

Please would you acknowledge receipt of this email. 

Yours faithfully, 
Jon Shapiro. 

 
 

 
 

   

Page 218



Appendix 11 

Page 219



1 

12
th

 November 2013 

Public Health, Education, Social Care & 
Wellbeing Directorate 
Commissioning & Health 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
5 Clove Crescent 
Mulberry Place, 4th Floor 
London, E14 2BG 

Tel:  

Email:  

www.towerhamlets.gov.uk 

Dear Mr McCrohan, 

Re: Representation from the Director of Public Health 

As the responsible body for health the Director of Public Health would like to make a representation on the 

licensing review application for the premises at 41, Brick Lane. 

Grounds for representation:  

The location of the premises poses a high risk of public nuisance and public safety through the inappropriate 

and unregulated alcohol consumption among vulnerable adults.  

The premises is in the proximity to the following two hostels and medical practice (within 5 minutes walking 

distance):  

• Hopetown Hostel, 60 Old Montague Street, London, E1 5NG

• Dellow Centre, 82 Wentworth Street Dellow Centre London, E1 7SA

• Health E1, 9-11 Brick Lane London E1 6PU, a homeless medical centre

The majority of residents and patients of these services are considered to be vulnerable adults due to mental 

health problems and factors such as homelessness and substance misuse which can lead to them being 

unable to take care of themselves or protect themselves without help.  

The misuse of alcohol – whether as chronically heavy drinking, binge-drinking or even moderate drinking 

among vulnerable people –poses a threat to the health and wellbeing of the drinker and also poses a risk to 

the community through problems such as noise nuisance, anti-social behaviour and street loitering.  

Alcohol problems are more common among people with mental health problems and consumption can 

reveal or intensify underlying feelings of anger, anxiety or worthlessness, causing people to become 

aggressive when they become intoxicated. The impact of alcohol is heightened among vulnerable adults and 

therefore can increase the risk of public nuisance and potentially crime and disorder in the community. To 

reduce the risk of this wider social harm it is particularly important to regulate alcohol consumption among 

this target group.  

Page 220



2 

Recommendations: 

The location of this premises poses a higher risk of public nuisance and concerns for public safety due to 

inappropriate and unregulated alcohol supply among vulnerable adults.  

In a motion to avoid the risk of public nuisance and address concerns for public safety, the DPH would 

recommend that due consideration is given to the following restrictions. The premises:  

• Only supply alcohol between 12:00 until 22:00, Sunday to Saturday

• Given the offences outlined in the A&Y Wines application for the review of a premises licence

(prepared by John P. McCrohan -Trading Standards and Licencing Manager) which includes selling

alcohol to a drunken person, supply of cup with alcohol purchase and drinking from plastic cups

outside the premises, the DPH is supportive of the other restrictions proposed such as the named

licensee must be on premises at all times.

Yours sincerely, 

Dr Somen Banerjee 

Director of Public Health  

Education, Social Care and Wellbeing Directorate 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

Page 221



Appendix 12 

Page 222



HT - Tower Hamlets Borough 
HH - Limehouse Police Station 
 Licensing Unit at Old Cad Room 
Limehouse Police Station 

 
 

Telephone:  
 

19 October 2013 

Tower Hamlets Police support the review by Tower Hamlets Council of Cost Price 41 Brick 
Lane, on the grounds of Crime and Disorder.  

Brick Lane an Overview 

Between 10pm on Friday night and 2:00am Monday morning Tower Hamlets is second only 
to the West End for ASB calls to Police in London, this is shown on Page 1 of the appendix. 
Brick Lane is a Hot Spot for alcohol related anti-social behaviour, noise, inconsiderate 
behaviour and overall anti-social behaviour, as shown in pages 2 - 6 of the appendix. This is 
due in large part to the number of licensed premises in and around Brick Lane. 

While the larger licensed premises such as Café 1001, Vibe Bar, Big Chill and others attract 
people to the area and can be described as “destination venues”, the off licenses like Cost 
Price are places where people go to purchase alcohol to drink in the Brick Lane area before 
they enter the larger venues. Many of those people consuming alcohol in Brick lane having 
purchased them from the local off licenses are responsible for a large proportion of the anti-
social behaviour reported to both the Police and Tower Hamlets Council. Many of these 
people have usually already consumed alcohol prior to entering Brick Lane.  

They stand around the off licenses or in the immediate vicinity, usually in small groups and 
as they drink more alcohol their voices become louder and their behaviour more 
inconsiderate to people around them.  As they are loitering in Brick Lane drinking the alcohol 
they have bought from the local off licenses they attract people who want to sell them Nitrous 
Oxide (laughing gas) from balloons, and also people who want to sell them drugs.  

Page 223



Many of the Off licenses are open after these larger venues close, and people then purchase 
more alcohol from them as they leave Brick Lane to go on to venues that are still open. This 
contributes to a “double hit” of alcohol related crime and antisocial behaviour caused by 
customers of the night time economy as they come into, and then leave the Brick lane area. 
As the table on page 7 of the appendix shows over 25% of all crime in Sptalfields and 
Banglatown ward is committed between 8:00pm to 2:00am Friday to Sunday. The table on 
page 8 of the appendix shows that 20% of all crime in Weavers ward is committed between 
8:00pm to 2:00am Friday to Sunday 

All the off licenses and indeed all the licensed premises in and around Brick Lane have been 
made aware by the Police that encouraging people to consume alcohol in the Brick Lane 
area only contributes to the level of anti-social behaviour and crime. They have been asked 
not to sell plastic or paper cups, not to open containers of alcohol for customers, all of which 
contribute to the alcohol related anti-social behaviour in the area. 

The negative effects of the “Night Time Economy” are also demonstrated in the data 
provided by the Director of Public Health data which was provided to Full Licensing 
Committee in October 2013. The data in table 1 that Spitalfields and Banglatown ward and 
Weavers ward, both of which cover Brick Lane have higher than average ambulance calls 
out to binge drinking. 

Table 1: London Ambulance Service call outs to binge drinking 

Ward 
No of Incidents 
2011/12 

No of Incidents 
2012/13 

% Change over 
2011/12 to 2012/13 

Spitalfields & Banglatown 145 175 + 21% 

Weavers 82 89 +21% 

Tower Hamlets ward 
average 

57 71 +25% 

Table 2 shows that both wards are considerably higher than the national average for alcohol 
related hospital admissions. 

Table 2: Alcohol Attributable Admission Rates 2011/2012 

Ward Rate per 100,000 

Spitalfields & Banglatown 3170 

Weavers 2718 

England Average 1974 

Page 224



Cost Price 

I have conducted numerous patrols in Brick Lane, and on many of those patrols I have seen 
people outside Cost Price consuming alcohol either standing directly outside the store, or a 
few meters away. These people are usually in groups of about 5 or 6 and sometimes many 
more. Their voices are loud and their behaviour is often anti-social due to their loud voices 
and drunken antics.  

The fact that Cost Price has opened a bottle of alcohol during a LBTH test purchase is 
concerning as raises the question of how many bottles of alcohol they have opened for 
customers. Brick Lane is part of the “Drinking Control Zone” so by opening drinks containers 
for customers, the shop is in my opinion encouraging and assisting its customers to breach 
Tower Hamlets own policy. 

18th October 2013 

On Friday 18th October at about 9:10 pm I was in plain clothes and conducted a test 
purchase. I purchased a 20cl bottle of Smirnoff Vodka, a can of Red Bull sugar free and 7 
foam cups. I then identified myself as a Police Officer and was joined by LBTH licensing 
Officer  Alex Lisowski and LBTH planning officer Gerard McCormack. Both Alex Lisowski and 
myself pointed out to the sales person that selling alcohol, mixers and foam cups contributed 
to alcohol related anti-social behaviour. The sales assistant, Mr Shabbir Khan said that he 
had not been working at the shop for long. Gerard McCormak then said that he had 
conducted a visit to the store about 6 months ago and that he (Mr Khan) had been serving 
customers then as well. 

I then asked to see the Refusals book, which is a condition of the license. Mr Khan could not 
produce the book. I asked Mr Khan where he recorded any instances of refusing to sell 
alcohol or tobacco to customers, Mr Khan replied that he did not record them anywhere. 

A short while later we were joined by Mohammed Choudhury the son of the owner. I 
explained to him what had happened. Mr Choudhury said spoke to Mr Khan who said that 
initially he had offered me a bag of 25 foam cups. I replied that he did, but that there was an 
open bag of foam cups behind the counter and I had told Mr Khan that I only wanted a few 
cups, which he then sold me.  I asked Mr Choudhury and Mr Khan why they had an open 
bag of 25 foam cups behind the counter, and only 7 cups left. They told me that they were for 
the use of staff in the shop but when they looked in the bin behind the counter they could not 
produce any of the cups the staff had allegedly used. I believe that the shop sells these cups 
to customers to use to consume alcohol in Brick Lane, and in the immediate vicinity of the 
shop. 

I asked Mr Choudhury where the refusals book was, but he also was not able to produce it. I 
asked him how he could demonstrate that he was refusing to sell alcohol to those under the 
age of 18 or who were drunk, he replied that he could not. I then issued Mr Khan with a 
Section 19 Closure Notice for failing to have and maintain a refusals book, in accordance 
with the premises license. 

Page 225



I then asked him to down load the CCTV coverage of my visit. Mr Choudhury told me that he 
could not as only his father had access to the system. I told him this was unacceptable, and 
that I would be back on Wednesday 23rd October to collect a copy. He should be able to 
contact his father and get the code to download the CCTV by then. I told him that if this was 
not done that I would consider that his CCTV was not working, which would be a breach of 
his license and I would issue a second Section 19 Closure Notice. 

Given the evidence from Tower Hamlets Licensing and our own evidence Tower Hamlets 
Police fully support the review, which we believe will help reduce crime and disorder in the 
area. In addition to the conditions sought by Tower Hamlets Council, we also ask for the 
following condition to be added to the License: 

1) A personal license holder to be at the venue while the shop was open to the public.

We also ask that the CCTV condition be amended to: 

1. A CCTV camera system covering both internal and external to the premise is to
be installed. The system is to be of a quality that is acceptable to Tower Hamlets
Council and Tower Hamlets Police.

2. The CCTV recordings are to be maintained for 31 days and to be provided upon
request to either a Police Officer or an officer of any other Responsible Authority.
A system shall be in place to maintain the quality of the recorded image and a

complete audit trail maintained� The system will be maintained and fully operational

throughout the hours that the premises are open for any licensable activity�

3. At all times the premises is open, a person who can operate the CCTV system
must be present on the premises. who can download the images and present
them immediately on request by a police officer or other responsible authority.

Yours sincerely, 

PC Mark Perry 
Tower Hamlets Police Licensing Officer 

Page 226



Appendix 13 

Page 227



Appendix 13 

Guidance Issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 

POWERS OF A LICENSING AUTHORITY ON THE DETERMINATION OF A 
REVIEW  

11.16 The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority on 
determining a review that it may exercise where it considers them 
necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  

11.17 The licensing authority may decide that no action is necessary if it finds 
that the review does not require it to take any steps necessary to 
promote the licensing objectives. In addition, there is nothing to prevent 
a licensing authority issuing an informal warning to the licence holder 
and/or to recommend improvement within a particular period of time. It is 
expected that licensing authorities will regard such warnings as an 
important mechanism for ensuring that the licensing objectives are 
effectively promoted and that warnings should be issued in writing to the 
holder of the licence. However, where responsible authorities like the 
police or environmental health officers have already issued warnings 
requiring improvement – either orally or in writing – that have failed as 
part of their own stepped approach to concerns, licensing authorities 
should not merely repeat that approach.  

11.18 Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory 
powers are necessary, it may take any of the following steps: 

to modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding 
new conditions or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for 
example, by reducing the hours of opening or by requiring door 
supervisors at particular times;  

• to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for
example, to   exclude the performance of live music or playing of 
recorded music (where it is not within the incidental live and 
recorded music exemption);  

• to remove the designated premises supervisor, for example,
because they consider that the problems are the result of poor 
management;  

• to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;
• to revoke the licence.

11.19 In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that 
licensing authorities should so far as possible seek to establish the 
cause or causes of the concerns which the representations identify. 
The remedial action taken should generally be directed at these causes 
and should always be no more than a necessary and proportionate 
response.  

Page 228



11.20 For example, licensing authorities should be alive to the possibility 
that the removal and replacement of the designated premises 
supervisor may be sufficient to remedy a problem where the cause of 
the identified problem directly relates to poor management decisions 
made by that individual.  

11.21 Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct reflection of 
poor company practice or policy and the mere removal of the designated 
premises supervisor may be an inadequate response to the problems 
presented. Indeed, where subsequent review hearings are generated by 
representations, it should be rare merely to remove a succession of 
designated premises supervisors as this would be a clear indication of 
deeper problems which impact upon the licensing objectives.  

11.22 Licensing authorities should also note that modifications of conditions 
and exclusions of licensable activities may be imposed either 
permanently or for a temporary period of up to three months. 
Temporary changes or suspension of the licence for up to three 
months could impact on the business holding the licence financially 
and would only be expected to be pursued as a necessary means of 
promoting the licensing objectives. So, for instance, a licence could be 
suspended for a weekend as a means of deterring the holder from 
allowing the problems that gave rise to the review to happen again. 
However, it will always be important that any detrimental financial 
impact that may result from a licensing authority’s decision is 
necessary and proportionate to the promotion of the licensing 
objectives.  

REVIEWS ARISING IN CONNECTION WITH CRIME 

11.23 A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not 
directly connected with licensable activities. For example, reviews may 
arise because of drugs problems at the premises or money laundering 
by criminal gangs or the sale of contraband or stolen goods there or the 
sale of firearms. Licensing authorities do not have the power to judge the 
criminality or otherwise of any issue. This is a matter for the courts of 
law. The role of the licensing authority when determining such a review 
is not therefore to establish the guilt or innocence of any individual but to 
ensure that the crime prevention objective is promoted. Reviews are part 
of the regulatory process introduced by the 2003 Act and they are not 
part of criminal law and procedure. Some reviews will arise after the 
conviction in the criminal courts of certain individuals but not all. In any 
case, it is for the licensing authority to determine whether the problems 
associated with the alleged crimes are taking place on the premises and 
affecting the promotion of the licensing objectives. Where a review 
follows a conviction, it would also not be for the licensing authority to 
attempt to go behind any finding of the courts, which should be treated 
as a matter of undisputed evidence before them.  

Page 229



11.24 Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the ground that 
the premises have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to 
determine what steps should be taken in connection with the premises 
licence, for the promotion of the crime prevention objective. It is 
important to recognise that certain criminal activity or associated 
problems may be taking place or have taken place despite the best 
efforts of the licensee and the staff working at the premises and despite 
full compliance with the conditions attached to the licence. In such 
circumstances, the licensing authority is still empowered to take any 
necessary steps to remedy the problems. The licensing authority’s duty 
is to take steps with a view to the promotion of the licensing objectives in 
the interests of the wider community and not those of the individual 
holder of the premises licence.  

11.25 As explained above, it is not the role of a licensing authority to 
determine the guilt or innocence of individuals charged with licensing or 
other offences committed on licensed premises. There is therefore no 
reason why representations giving rise to a review of a premises licence 
need be delayed pending the outcome of any criminal proceedings. As 
stated above, at the conclusion of a review, it will be for the licensing 
authority to determine on the basis of the application for the review and 
any relevant representations made, what action needs to be taken for 
the promotion of the licensing objectives in respect of the licence in 
question, regardless of any subsequent judgment in the courts about the 
behaviour of individuals.  

11.26 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with 
licensed premises, which the Secretary of State considers should be 
treated particularly seriously. These are the use of the licensed 
premises:  

• for the sale and distribution of Class A drugs and the laundering of
the proceeds of drugs crime;

• for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;
• for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films

and music, which does considerable damage to the industries
affected; for the purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors
which impacts on the health, educational attainment, employment
prospects and propensity for crime of young people;

• for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography;
• by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children;
• as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by

gangs;
• for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks;
• for unlawful gaming and gambling; and
• for the sale of smuggled tobacco and alcohol.

11.27 It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police and other law 
enforcement agencies, which are responsible authorities, will use the 
review procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where 
reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime 

Page 230



prevention objective is being undermined through the premises being 
used to further crimes, it is expected that revocation of the licence – 
even in the first instance – should be seriously considered. We would 
also encourage liaison with the local Crime and Disorder Reduction 
Partnership.  

11.28 It should be noted that it is unlawful to discriminate or to refuse service 
on grounds of race or by displaying racially discriminatory signs on the 
premises. Representations made about such activity from responsible 
authorities or interested parties would be relevant to the promotion of 
the crime prevention objective and justifiably give rise to a review.  

Page 231



Appendix 14 

Page 232



Appendix 14 

Guidance Issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 

Crime and Disorder Act 1998 

1.28 All local authorities must fulfil their obligations under section 17 of the 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 when carrying out their functions as 
licensing authorities under the 2003 Act.  

1.29 Section 17 is aimed at giving the vital work of crime and disorder 
reduction a focus across the wide range of local services and putting it at 
the heart of local decision-making. It places a duty on certain key 
authorities, including local authorities and police and fire and rescue 
authorities to do all they reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder in 
their area.  

1.30 The Government believes that licensing authorities should, as a matter of 
good practice, involve Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnerships 
(CDRPs) in decision-making in order to ensure that statements of 
licensing policy include effective strategies that take full account of crime 
and disorder implications.  

Pool Conditions 

Annex D 
Conditions relating to the prevention of crime and disorder 
It should be noted in particular that it is unlawful under the 2003 Act: 
• knowingly to sell or supply or attempt to sell or supply alcohol to a person
who is drunk 
• knowingly to allow disorderly conduct on licensed premises
• for the holder of a premises licence or a designated premises supervisor
knowingly to keep or to allow to be kept on licensed premises any goods that 
have been imported without payment of duty or which have otherwise been 
unlawfully imported 
• to allow the presence of children under 16 who are not accompanied by an
adult between midnight and 5am at any premises licensed for the sale of 
alcohol for consumption on the premises, and at any time in premises used 
exclusively or primarily for the sale and consumption of alcohol. 
Conditions enforcing these arrangements are therefore unnecessary. 

CORE PRINCIPLES 

1. Licensing authorities and other responsible authorities (in considering
applications) and applicants for premises licences and clubs premises
certificates (in preparing their operating schedules) should consider
whether the measures set out below are appropriate to promote the
licensing objectives.

Page 233



2. Any risk assessment to identify appropriate measures should consider the
individual circumstances of the premises and the nature of the local area,
and take into account a range of factors including:

• the nature, type and location of the venue;
• the activities being conducted there and the potential risk which

these activities could pose to the local area;
• the location (including the locality in which the premises are

situated and knowledge of any local initiatives); and
• the anticipated clientele.

Under no circumstances should licensing authorities regard these 
conditions as standard conditions to be automatically imposed in all 
cases. 

3. Any individual preparing an operating schedule or club operating schedule
is at liberty to volunteer any measure, such as those below, as a step they
intend to take to promote the licensing objectives. When measures are
incorporated into the licence or certificate, they become enforceable under
the law and breach could give rise to prosecution.

4. Licensing authorities should carefully consider conditions to ensure that
they are not only appropriate but realistic, practical and achievable, so that
they are capable of being met. Failure to comply with conditions attached
to a licence or certificate could give rise to a prosecution, in particular, as
the provision of unauthorised licensable activities under the 2003 Act,
which, on conviction would be punishable by a fine of up to £20,000 or up
to six months imprisonment or both. As such, it would be wholly
inappropriate to impose conditions outside the control of those responsible
for the running of the premises. It is also important that conditions which
are imprecise or difficult to enforce must be excluded.5.  It should be
borne in mind that club premises operate under codes of discipline to
ensure the good order and behaviour of members and that conditions
enforcing offences under the Act are unnecessary.

CONDITIONS RELATING TO THE PREVENTION OF CRIME AND 
DISORDER  
RADIO LINKS AND TELEPHONE COMMUNICATIONS  
Two-way radio links and telephone communications connecting staff of 
premises and clubs to local police and other premises can enable rapid 
responses to situations that may endanger the customers and staff on and 
around licensed premises. It is recommended that radio links or telephone 
communications systems should be considered for licensed premises in city 
and town centre leisure areas with a high density of premises selling alcohol. 
These conditions may also be appropriate in other areas. It is recommended 
that a condition requiring a radio or telephone link to the police should include 
the following requirements: 

• the equipment is kept in working order (when licensable activities
are taking place); 

• the link is activated, made available to and monitored by the
designated premises supervisor or a responsible member of staff at 
all times that the premises are open to the public; 

Page 234



• relevant police instructions/directions are complied with where
possible; and

• instances of crime or disorder are reported via the radio link by the
designated premises supervisor or a responsible member of staff to
an agreed police contact point.

DOOR SUPERVISORS 
Conditions relating to the provision of door supervisors and security teams 
may be valuable in relation to: 

• keeping out individuals excluded by court bans or by the licence
holder; 

• searching those suspected of carrying illegal drugs, or carrying
offensive weapons; 

• assisting in the implementing of the premises’ age verification
policy; and 

• ensuring that queues outside premises and departure of customers
from premises do not undermine the licensing objectives. 

Where the presence of door supervisors conducting security activities is to be 
a condition of a licence, which means that they would have to be registered 
with the Security Industry Authority, it may also be appropriate for conditions 
to stipulate: 

• That a sufficient number of supervisors be available (possibly
requiring both male and female supervisors); 

• the displaying of name badges;
• the carrying of proof of registration; and
• where, and at what times, they should be in operation.

Door supervisors also have a role to play in ensuring public safety (see Part 
2) and the prevention of public nuisance (see Part 4).

RESTRICTING ACCESS TO GLASSWARE 
Traditional glassware and bottles may be used as weapons or result in 
accidents and can cause very serious injuries. Conditions can prevent sales 
of drinks in glass for consumption on the premises. This should be expressed 
in clear terms and can include the following elements: 

• no glassware, whether open or sealed, shall be given to customers
on the premises whether at the bar or by staff service away from 
the bar; or 

• no customers carrying glassware shall be admitted to the premises
at any time that the premises are open to the public (note: this 
needs to be carefully worded where off-sales also take place). 

In appropriate circumstances, the condition could include exceptions, for 
example, as follows: 

• but bottles containing wine may be given to customers for
consumption with a table meal by customers who are seated in an 
area set aside from the main bar area for the consumption of food. 

The banning of glass may also be a relevant and appropriate measure to 
promote public safety (see Part 2).  

Page 235



ALTERNATIVES TO TRADITIONAL GLASSWARE 
Where appropriate, consideration should therefore be given to conditions 
requiring the use of safer alternatives to prevent crime and disorder, and in 
the interests of public safety. Location and style of the venue and the activities 
carried on there are particularly important in assessing whether a condition is 
appropriate. For example, the use of glass containers on the terraces of some 
outdoor sports grounds may obviously be of concern, and similar concerns 
may also apply to indoor sports events such as boxing matches. Similarly, the 
use of alternatives to traditional glassware may be an appropriate condition 
during the showing of televised live sporting events, such as international 
football matches, when there may be high states of excitement and emotion. 

OPEN CONTAINERS NOT TO BE TAKEN FROM THE PREMISES 
Drinks purchased in licensed premises or clubs may be taken from those 
premises for consumption elsewhere. This is lawful where premises are 
licensed for the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises. However, 
consideration should be given to a condition preventing customers from 
taking alcoholic and other drinks from the premises in open containers (e.g. 
glasses and opened bottles) for example, by requiring the use of bottle bins 
on the premises. This may again be appropriate to prevent the use of these 
containers as offensive weapons, or to prevent consumption of alcohol, in 
surrounding streets after individuals have left the premises. Restrictions on 
taking open containers from the premises may also be appropriate 
measures to prevent public nuisance (see Part 4). 

CCTV 
The presence of CCTV cameras can be an important means of deterring and 
detecting crime at and immediately outside licensed premises. Conditions 
should not just consider a requirement to have CCTV on the premises, but 
also the precise location of each camera, the requirement to maintain 
cameras in working order, to retain recordings for an appropriate period of 
time and produce images from the system in a required format immediately to 
the police and local authority. The police should provide individuals 
conducting risk assessments as part of preparing their operating schedules 
with advice on the use of CCTV to prevent crime. 

RESTRICTIONS ON DRINKING AREAS 
It may be appropriate to restrict the areas of the premises where alcoholic 
drinks may be consumed after they have been purchased. An example would 
be at a sports ground where it is appropriate to prevent the consumption of 
alcohol on the terracing during particular sports events. Conditions should not 
only specify these areas, but indicate the circumstances and times during 
which the ban would apply.  
Restrictions on drinking areas may also be relevant and appropriate 
measures to prevent public nuisance (see Part 4). 

CAPACITY LIMITS 

Page 236



Capacity limits are most commonly made a condition of a licence on public 
safety grounds (see Part 2), but can also be considered for licensed premises 
or clubs where overcrowding may lead to disorder and violence. If such a 
condition is appropriate, door supervisors may be required to ensure that the 
numbers are appropriately controlled (see above).  

PROOF OF AGE CARDS 
It is unlawful for persons aged under 18 years to buy or attempt to buy alcohol 
just as it is unlawful to sell or supply alcohol to them. To prevent the 
commission of these criminal offences, the mandatory conditions require 
licensed premises to ensure that they have in place an age verification policy. 
This requires the production of age verification (which must meet defined 
criteria) before alcohol is served to persons who appear to staff at the 
premises to be under 18 (or other minimum age set by premises). 
Such verification must include the individual’s photograph, date of birth and a 
holographic mark e.g. driving licence, passport, military ID. Given the value 
and importance of such personal documents, and because not everyone aged 
18 years or over necessarily has such documents, the Government endorses 
the use of ID cards which bear the PASS (Proof of Age Standards Scheme) 
hologram. PASS is the UK’s national proof of age accreditation scheme which 
sets and maintains minimum criteria for proof of age card issuers to meet. The 
inclusion of the PASS hologram on accredited cards, together with the 
verification made by card issuers regarding the personal details  
of an applicant, gives the retailer the assurance that the holder is of relevant 
age to buy or be served age-restricted goods. PASS cards are available to 
people under the age of 18 for other purposes such as access to 15 rated 
films at cinema theatres so care must be taken to check that the individual is 
over 18 when attempting to purchase or being served alcohol. 

CRIME PREVENTION NOTICES 
It may be appropriate at some premises for notices to be displayed which 
warn customers of the prevalence of crime which may target them. Some 
premises may be reluctant to voluntarily display such notices for commercial 
reasons. For example, in certain areas, a condition attached to a premises 
licence or club premises certificate might require the display of notices at the 
premises which warn customers about the need to be aware of pickpockets or 
bag snatchers, and to guard their property. Similarly, it may be appropriate for 
notices to be displayed which advise customers not to leave bags unattended 
because of concerns about terrorism. Consideration could be given to a 
condition requiring a notice to display the name of a contact for customers if 
they wish to report concerns. 

DRINKS PROMOTIONS 
Licensing authorities should not attach standardised blanket conditions 
promoting fixed prices for alcoholic drinks to premises licences or club 
licences or club premises certificates in an area. This may be unlawful under 
current law. It is also likely to be unlawful for licensing authorities or the police 
to promote generalised voluntary schemes or codes of practice in relation to 
price discounts on alcoholic drinks, ‘happy hours’ or drinks promotions. The 
mandatory licensing conditions (see chapter 10 of the statutory guidance) ban 

Page 237



defined types of behaviour referred to as ‘irresponsible promotions’. 

SIGNAGE 
It may be appropriate that the hours at which licensable activities are 
permitted to take place are displayed on or immediately outside the premises 
so that it is clear if breaches of these terms are taking place. Similarly, it may 
be appropriate for any restrictions on the admission of children to be 
displayed on or immediately outside the premises to deter those who might 
seek admission in breach of those conditions. 
LARGE CAPACITY VENUES USED EXCLUSIVELY OR PRIMARILY FOR 
THE “VERTICAL” CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOL (HVVDS) 
Large capacity “vertical drinking” premises, sometimes called High Volume 
Vertical Drinking establishments (HVVDs), are premises that have 
exceptionally high capacities, are used primarily or exclusively for the sale 
and consumption of alcohol, and provide little or no seating for their 
customers. 
Where appropriate, conditions can be attached to licences for these premises 
which require adherence to: 

• a prescribed capacity;
• an appropriate ratio of tables and chairs to customers based on the

capacity; and
the presence of security staff holding the appropriate SIA licence or 
exemption (see Chapter 10 to control entry for the purpose of compliance with 
the capacity limit.  

Page 238



Appendix 15 

Page 239



Appendix 15 

Licensing Policy Adopted by the London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

5.1 Licensed premises, especially those offering late night/early morning 
entertainment, alcohol and refreshment for large numbers of people, can 
be a source of crime and disorder problems.    

5.4 In addition to the requirements for the Licensing Authority to promote the 
licensing objectives, it also has a duty under Section 17 of the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 to do all it reasonable can to prevent crime and disorder 
in the Borough.    

Page 240



Appendix 16 

Page 241



Appendix 16 

Guidance Issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 

PUBLIC NUISANCE 

2.33 The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities,  
through representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and  
what is appropriate to prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific  
premises licences and club premises certificates. It is therefore important that 
in considering the promotion of this licensing objective, licensing authorities  
and responsible authorities focus on the effect of the licensable activities at  
the specific premises on persons living and working (including those carrying  
on business) in the area around the premises which may be disproportionate  
and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, light  
pollution, noxious smells and litter. 

2.34 Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of  
legislation. It is however not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its  
broad common law meaning. It is important to remember that the prevention  
of public nuisance could therefore include low-level nuisance, perhaps  
affecting a few people living locally, as well as major disturbance affecting the 
whole community. It may also include in appropriate circumstances the  
reduction of the living and working amenity and environment of other persons 
living and working in the area of the licensed premises. 

2.35 Conditions relating to noise nuisance will normally concern steps  
appropriate to control the levels of noise emanating from premises. This might 
be achieved by a simple measure such as ensuring that doors and windows  
are kept closed after a particular time, or more sophisticated measures like  
the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber speaker mounts. Any conditions  
appropriate to promote the prevention of public nuisance should be tailored to  
the type, nature and characteristics of the specific premises. Licensing  
authorities should be aware of the need to avoid inappropriate or  
disproportionate measures that could deter events that are valuable to the  
community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for example, are very  
expensive to purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable burden  
for smaller venues. 

2.36 As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be  
appropriate in certain circumstances where the provisions of the  
Environmental Protection Act 1990, the Noise Act 1996, or the Clean  
Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 adequately protect those living in 
the area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach  
of licensing authorities and responsible authorities should be one of  
prevention and when their powers are engaged, licensing authorities should  
be aware of the fact that other legislation may not adequately cover concerns  

Page 242



raised in relevant representations and additional conditions may be 
appropriate. 

2.37 Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate 
conditions should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, 
music noise from premises usually occurs from mid-evening until either late-
evening or early-morning when residents in adjacent properties may be 
attempting to go to sleep or are sleeping. In certain circumstances, conditions 
relating to noise immediately surrounding the premises may also prove 
appropriate to address any disturbance anticipated as customers enter and 
leave. 

2.38 Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright 
lighting outside premises considered appropriate to prevent crime and 
disorder may itself give rise to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, 
licensing authorities and responsible authorities will need to balance these 
issues. 

2.39 In the context of preventing public nuisance, it is again essential that  
conditions are focused on measures within the direct control of the licence  
holder or club. Conditions relating to public nuisance caused by the anti-social 
behaviour of customers once they are beyond the control of the licence  
holder, club or premises management cannot be justified and will not serve to  
promote the licensing objectives. However, premises should have adequate  
dispersal policies (where appropriate) in place to ensure that customers leave  
the premises promptly and with minimal disruption to those in the surrounding  
area. 

2.40 Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters 
for personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who 
engages in anti-social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it 
would be perfectly reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, 
following relevant representations, that requires the licence holder or club to 
place signs at the exits from the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until 
they leave the area and to respect the rights of people living nearby to a 
peaceful night. 

Page 243



Appendix 17 

Page 244



Appendix 17 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Policy in relation to the Prevention 
of Public Nuisance 

8 Prevention of Nuisance 

8.1 Licensed premises, especially those operating late at night and in the 
early hours of the morning, can cause a range of nuisances impacting on 
people living, working or sleeping in the vicinity of the premises. 

8.2 The concerns mainly relate to noise nuisance both from the premises and 
customer egress, light pollution, noxious smells and disruption from parked 
vehicles and due regard will be taken of the impact these may have in 
considering a licence. The Licensing Authority will expect Operating 
Schedules to satisfactorily address these issues. Applicants are advised to 
seek advice from the Council’s Environmental Health Officers before 
preparing their plans and Schedules. 

8.3 The Licensing Authority, where its discretion is engaged, will consider, 
where appropriate, attaching conditions to licences and permissions to 
prevent the problems identified in 8.2, and these may include conditions 
drawn from the Model Pool of Conditions in Appendix 2. 

Page 245



This page is intentionally left blank



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\1\AI00049113\$cnmb1xke.doc 

 
Committee: 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

Date: 
 

04 February 2014 

Classification: 

 
UNRESTRICTED 

Report No. 
 

LSC 60/134 

Agenda Item 
No. 

 

Report of : 

David Tolley 
Head of Consumer and Business 
Relations 
 

 
Originating Officer:  

Andrew Heron 
Licensing Officer 
 

Title: 

Licensing Act 2003 Application for a 
Review of a Premises Licence at Low Cost 
Food and Wine, 34 White Church Lane, 
London, E1 7QR 
 
Ward affected:  

Whitechapel 
 

 

 
1.0 Summary 

 
Name and   Low Cost Food and Wine 

Address of premises:  34 White Church Lane 
     London 
     E1 7QR 

 
      

  
Licence under review: Licensing Act 2003  

§ Sale by retail of alcohol 
 
 
 

Representations:  Metropolitan Police 
   
 
 

2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 That the Licensing Committee considers the application for review and 

then adjudicates accordingly. 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT 2000 (Section 97) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE DRAFTING OF THIS REPORT 

   
   
Brief description of "background paper" Tick if copy supplied for 

register 
 

If not supplied, name and telephone 
number of holder 

• Guidance Issued under Section 182 
of the Licensing Act 2003  

• Tower Hamlets Licensing Policy 

• File  

 Andrew Heron 
020 7364 2665 

Page 247

Agenda Item 4.4



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\1\AI00049113\$cnmb1xke.doc 

3.0 Review Application 
 
3.1 This is an application for a review of the premises licence forLow Cost 

Food and Wine, 34 White Church Lane, London, E1 7QR. The review 
was triggered by PC Brendan O’Rourke of the Metropolitan Police. 

 
3.2 A copy of the review application is attached in Appendix 1.  Supporting 

documents from PC O’Rourke are contained in Appendices 7-27. 
 
 

4.0 The Premises 
 
4.1 The premises licence was issued on 16th May 2013. A copy of the 

current licence is contained in Appendix 2. 
 

4.2 Maps showing the premises, surrounding area and vicinity of local 
residents are included in Appendix 3. 

 
 
5.0 Representations 
 
5.1 This hearing is required by the Licensing Act 2003, because a review 

has been triggered by the Metropolitan Police. 
 

5.2 The Home Office has issued guidance under Section 182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 in relation to reviews and that is contained in 
Appendix 4. It is available on the Government’s website, 
www.homeoffice.gov.uk.It was last revised in October 2010. 

 
5.3 Only representations that relate to the following licensing objectives are 

relevant: 

• the prevention of crime and disorder 

• public safety 

• the prevention of public nuisance 

• the protection of children from harm  
 
5.4 In the view of the interested party and the responsible authorities it is 

necessary to achieve the licensing objectives of prevention of crime & 
disorder. 
 

6.0 Review Explained 
 

6.1 The Licensing Act 2003 was described by the Government at the time as 
“light touch” but as Baroness Blackstone stated in the Lords at the time 
of the second reading (26 Nov 2002) “Local residents and businesses  
as well as expert bodies, will have the power to request that the licensing 
authority review existing licences where problems arise. Such a review 
could result in the modification of the licence, its suspension, or 
ultimately, revocation.” 

 

Page 248



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\1\AI00049113\$cnmb1xke.doc 

6.2 Members are particularly asked to note the comments in relation Crime 
and Disorder. In particular the home office advice is that “The role of the 
licensing authority when determining such a review is not therefore to 
establish the guilt or innocence of any individual but to ensure that the 
crime prevention objective is promoted.” 
 

6.3 In relation to its advice on representations the home office has also 
advised that “there is no requirement for an interested party or 
responsible authority to produce a recorded history of problems at a 
premises to support their representations.”It has also issued revised 
guidance about Crime and Disorder, and the pool of conditions which 
might be considered in relation to any identified problems. See 
Appendix 5. 
 

6.4 Members should also note the Council’s Licensing Policy in relation to 
Crime and Disorder, the relevant parts of which are contained in 
Appendix 6. The Pool Conditions in the Policy are the same as the 
Government’s. 

 

6.5 An interested party or a responsible authority can trigger a review at any 
time, but the grounds must be relevant to the licensing objectives. The 
form of the application, and the advertisement of the review are the 
subject of regulations (The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and 
Club Premises Certificate) Regulations 2005). In addition, the licensing 
authority has to satisfy itself of certain matters in relation to the Licensing 
Act 2003. The Licensing Services Manager Ms Jacqueline Randallis the 
delegated officer who deals with this on behalf of the licensing authority. 
All the matters stated in 5.0were considered before any representations 
were accepted for inclusion in this report. 

 

6.6 The Licensing Act 2003 requires that the Licensing Authority satisfies 
itself that it should reject the grounds for a review because: 

• The ground is not relevant to one or more of the licensing 
objectives 

• In the case of an application by a local resident that the 
application is frivolous, vexatious or repetitious.  

 
 

7.0 Review Advertisement 
 

7.1 The review was advertised by a blue poster, next to the premises, by the 
Licensing Section. This was periodically monitored by the Section to 
ensure it was on continuous display, and replaced as necessary. It was 
also advertised at Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, LondonE14 2BG. 

 

7.2 The party that triggers the review must notify the licence holder and 
responsible authorities. The review documents were sent to the licence 
holders. 

 

Page 249



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\1\AI00049113\$cnmb1xke.doc 

7.3 The procedure for a review can be summarised as follows: 

• A review is triggered by a responsible authority or interested party 

• Consultation is conducted for 28 full days 

• Other responsible authorities or interested parties may join in the 
review 

• Members conduct a hearing 

• Members make a determination 

• All the parties to the review have the right of appeal to the 
magistrates court (i.e. the licence holder, the person who triggered 
the review and those who have made a representation).  

 

 

8.0 Licensing Officer Comments 
 
8.1 The Governments advice in relation to reviews is contained in Appendix 

4. Members must consider all the evidence and then decide from the 
following alternatives: 
 

• Take no further action as they do not consider it proportionate to do 
so 

 

• Impose conditions (including altering existing permissions) that 
relate to problems which they consider have been identified and 
which are necessary and proportionate to ensure that the licensing 
objectives are met 

 

• Suspend the licence for a period 
 

• Revoke the licence completely 
 

8.2 The licence should only be suspended or revoked if Members believe 
that alterations to the existing licence, including imposing new conditions 
does not have a reasonable prospect of ensuring that the licensing 
objectives are met.   

 
8.3 Members should bear in mind that conditions may not be imposed for 

any purpose other than to meet the licensing objectives. 
 
8.4 In all cases the Members should make their decision on the civil burden 

of proof that is “the balance of probability.” 
 
8.5 In all cases Members should consider whether or not primary legislation 

is the appropriate method of regulation and should only consider licence 
conditions when the circumstances in their view are not already 
adequately covered elsewhere.  

 
 
 
 

Page 250



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\1\AI00049113\$cnmb1xke.doc 

9.0 Legal Comments 
 
9.1 The Council’s legal officer will give advice at the hearing. 
 
 
10.0 Finance Comments 
 
10.1 There are no financial implications in this report. 
 

 
11.0 Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 Copy of the review application 
 

Appendix 2 Current Premises Licence 
 

Appendix 3 Maps of the premises and surrounding area 
 

Appendix 4 Guidance issued under Section 182 by the Home Office for 
reviews 
 

Appendix 5 Guidance Issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of 
the Licensing Act 2003 concerning Crime and Disorder 
 

Appendix 6 London Borough of Tower HamletsLicensing Policy in 
relation to the prevention of Crime and Disorder 
 

Appendix 7 PC O’Rourke Cover letter producing supporting documents 
 

Appendix 8 Supporting Doc: Statement – PC O’Rourke Re. 02.10.2013 
 

Appendix 9 Supporting Doc: Statement – PC O’Rourke Re. 05.10.2013 
 

Appendix 10 Supporting Doc: S19 Notice issued 05.10.2013 
 

Appendix 11 Supporting Doc: LCF&C Police Book Re. 05.10.2013 
 

Appendix 12 Supporting Doc: Statement – PC O’Rourke Re. 26.10.2013 
 

Appendix 13 Supporting Doc: Statement – PC O’Rourke Re. 26.10.2013 
 

Appendix 14 Supporting Doc: LCF&C Police Book Re. 26.10.2013 
 

Appendix 15 Supporting Doc: Statement - Alex Lisowski Re. 02.10.2013 
 

Appendix 16 Supporting Doc: Statement – Ian Wareing Re. 02.10.2013 
 

Appendix 17 Supporting Doc: Statement – Andrew Heron Re. 
04.10.2013 
 

Page 251



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\1\AI00049113\$cnmb1xke.doc 

Appendix 18 Supporting Doc: Statement – Kathy Driiver Re. 26.10.2013 
 

Appendix 19 Supporting Doc: Letter to Mr Latib dated 30.10.2013 – 
Surrey 
 

Appendix 20  Supporting Doc: Letter to Mr Latib dated 01.11.2013 – 
Surrey 
 

Appendix 21 Supporting Doc: Letter to Mr Latib dated 05.11.2013 – 
Surrey 
 

Appendix 22 Supporting Doc: Letter to Mr Latib dated 05.11.2013 – 
London 
 

Appendix 23 Supporting Doc: Letter from Miramar Legal dated 
27.11.2013 
 

Appendix 24 Supporting Doc: Statement – PC O’Rourke Re. 05.12.2013 
 

Appendix 25 Supporting Doc: LCF&C Police Book Re. 07.12.2013 
 

Appendix 26 Supporting Doc: Exhibit Photographs and cover statement 
 

Appendix 27 Supporting Doc: Statement – PC Reed Re. 13.12.2013 
 

Appendix 28 Supporting Doc: Cover Letter – PC O’Rourke (18.02.2014) 
 

Appendix 29 Supporting Doc: UKBA Email – John McManus 
(09/01/2014) 
 

Appendix 30 Supporting Doc: Schedule of Incidents 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 252



 Appendix 1 

Page 253



~ 
TOWill HAMUTS 

This form should be completed and forwarded to: 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets, 
Licensing Section, Mulberry Place (AH),PO BOX 55739,5 Clove Crescent, London E14 lBY 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate 

under the Licensing Act 2003 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. 
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your 
answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. 
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records. 

I Brendan O'ROURKE PC 291HT, on behalfofthe Chief Officer of Police, 
apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 of the Licensing Act 
2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below 

Part 1 - Premises or club premises details 

Low Cost Food and Wine 
34, White Church Lane 
Whitechapel 

London I 
Post code (if known) 

El 7QR 
Post town 

Name of premises licence holder or club holding 
club premises certificate (if known) 

Number of premises licence or club premises 
certificate (if known) 

I Mr Abdul LATIB 

1 16774 

11 

Page 254



Part 2 - Applicant details 
Please tick yes 

lam 
1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below) 0 

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises 0 
b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises 0 
c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises 0 
d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the premises 0 

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below) X 

3) a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A) below) 0 

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fiU in as applicable) 

Mrs D Miss D Ms D Other title 

Surname First names 

I am 18 years old or over 

Current postal 
address if 
different from 
premises 
address 

Post Town ._ ______ _JI Postcode 

Daytime contact telephone number 

E-mail address 

(optional) 

D 
(for example, Rev) 

Please tick yes 

D 

12 

Page 255



(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT 

MrD MrsD MissD MsD Other title D 
Surname 

I am 18 years old or over 

Current postal 
address if 
different from 
premises 
address 

First names 

Post Town ,__ ______ __,! Postcode 

Daytime contact telephone number 

E-mail address 

(optional) 

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT 

Name and address 

PC 291HT Brendan O'ROURKE 
Licensing Unit 
Limehouse Police Station 
27 West India Dock Rd, 
LONDON 
E14 8EZ 

Telephone number (if any)  
E-mail (optional)  

(for example, Rev) 

Please tick ::::: yes 

D 

13 

Page 256



This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s) 
Please tick one or more boxes 

1) the prevention of crime and disorder 

2) public safety 

3) the prevention of public nuisance 

4) the protection of children from harm 

X 

D 
D 
D 

14 

Page 257



Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read guidance note 2) 

This review has been instigated with regards to the Crime and Disorder 

objective. 

The premises had this licence granted after a Licensing Sub-Committee hearing 

on 16/05/13 and has broken the conditions of that premises licence on 

numerous occasions as detailed in the events below throughout October 2013. 

Police have adopted a stepped approach to enforcement throughout October 

with the DPS Mr LATIB, who has quite frankly ignored that engagement and 

shown no regard to the conditions on his Premises Licence or the licensing 

process. 

There has been a series of incidents and crime reports in relation to this venue 

prior to October 2013 and what was the premises earlier incarnation at 35 

White Church Lane (same company and DPS, which moved to premises over 

the road to number 34- subject of the 16/05/12 application/hearing) and these 

incidents and reports that taken as a whole has lead to this application. 

The following police calls (CAD) I crime reports (CRIS) and/or engagement 

are in chronological order beginning on 02/04/12: 

HM Revenue & Customs, Police and Council Visit- Wednesday, 02/04/12 

@ 13:08 hours: 

HM Customs and Revenue officers m partnership with LBTH Trading 

15 

Page 258



Standards officers entered the premises, then at 35 White Church Lane. The 

staff member present was Hamaon ROSHID, DOB 01/01/1988. Mr. Abdul 

LATIB the DPS was not present. 

SEIZED: 83 bottles of wine (shelving advertising "2 for £5") and 8 bottles of 

spirits (counterfeit labels). 

Call to police - CAD 9773/14SEP12 (Friday) @ 21:27 hours (#35 White 

Church Lane): 

Informant states that the shop window has been broken. The suspects have 

headed to Commercial Road. Description of the two males circulated by police 

operator over the airwaves (ages given as approximately 15 years old). CCTV 

confirm they are checking the area. Informant updates the police operator 

saying that the suspect broke the shop window as he wanted alcohol and did 

not have any ID, so was refused to be served. CCTV and a local police unit 

confirm 'area search, no trace'. Informant advises he does not wish to make any 

allegations as the damage is minor and he is not willing to attend court. Pocket 

note book signed to this effect by PC 987HT. Matter closed. 

Call to police - CAD 9418/31AUG13 @ 20:17 hours (# 34 White Church 

Lane): 

Informant states there is a dispute over payment in which the customer believes 

he has been overcharged. Informant advised this is a civil dispute. One of the 

customers spoken to and advised to contact Trading Standards if unsatisfied. 

16 

Page 259



Matter resolved. 

Police and Council Visit- Wednesday, 02/10/13@ 15:42 hours: 

Police attended the premises after a Council licensing officer undertook a 

successful test purchase of a single can of alcohol of 9% abv and is reported for 

prosecution. 

(Supporting MG 11 attached from PC 291HT O'ROURKE) 

Police and Council Visit- Saturday 05/10/13@ 00:05 hours: 

Police undertook a follow-up compliance visit and made a successful test 

purchase of a can ofGuinness 4.2% abv (13.5% extra) at 00:05 hours. 

(Supporting MGll attached from PC 291HT O'ROURKE and Mr HERON 

LBTH and a copy of Form 'Book 694' Notification of alleged offences under 

the Licensing Act 2003) 

Initially a Section 19 Closure Notice under Section 19 Criminal Justice and 

Police Act 2001 is issued, but this was later withdrawn by police on 30/10/13. 

However this notice did state 'actions' for the DPS to carry out, which at least 

as advice, police would have hoped he would have heeded - the advice was 

under the heading 'Steps that may be taken to end the alleged unauthorised 

use of the premises, or to prevent if from re-occurring (section 19 ( 6) (c))' and 

was "To comply with all licence conditions in particular mandatory conditions. 

17 

Page 260



Place a sign next to the beer above 5. 6% abv stating 'Minimum sale 3 cans or 

more '. Close on time" 

Police and Council Visit- Saturday 05/10113@ 00:15 hours: 

Police return (having chosen the wrong can of alcohol for 'super strength', 

which was 13.5% 'extra', not 13.5% 'abv'!) and make a successful test 

purchase of a can of 'K' cider 8.4% abv. The visit was to test compliance of the 

'super strength' licence condition, but police and the council officer quickly 

realise on inspection of the premises licence, that in fact the premises is open 

more than an hour after alcohol sales should cease. 

PC O'ROURKE and Mr HERON return to the premises at 00:35 hours and 

they are still open, they remain on the premises completing paperwork until 

01 :25 hours. 

During this time there was a customer banging on the door expecting to be let 

in every few minutes, some quiet angry the premises was closed. It was simply 

unbelievable. One potential customer, a female was dressed in her pyjama's 

and was clearly a local resident who had popped out from her flat to purchase 

something well beyond closing time. 

It was obvious to police that the premises had been regularly opening in excess 

of there permitted hours and this was very well known locally, due to the shear 

volume of traffic trying to get into the shop. 

18 

Page 261



(Supporting MG 11 attached and is combined with the statement above) . 

Police Visit and Council- Saturday 26/10/13@ 00:20 hours: 

Police undertook a joint licensing visit with a licensing officer from LBTH to 

check that the premises was closed. It was not. At approximately 00:20 hours 

police saw two males banging on the door to be let in and the person inside let 

them in. Ms Driver from LBTH then went to the front door and was let in as 

well and undertook a successful test purchase of a 20cl bottle of Glens vodka. 

PC 291HT O'ROURKE also observed a sale of a bottle of Smimoff vodka at 

00:28 hours. 

(Supporting MGll from PC 291HT O'ROURKE attached and copy Form 

'Book 694' Notification of alleged offences under the Licensing Act 2003) 

It is understood that Mr. LATIB will appear before Magistrates at Thames 

Magistrates Court in relation to the offences committed under the Licensing 

Act 2003 on 05/12/13. 

PC 291HT Brendan O'ROURKE. 

19 

Page 262



Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before 

If yes please state the date of that application 

Please tick ? yes 

NO 0 

If you have made representations before relating to this premises please 
state what they were and when you made them 

The premises licence for the new venue at 34 White Church Lane (effectively a 

transfer from 35 White Church Lane) was granted by the Licensing Sub

Committee on 16/05/13 after representations from the police and Thames Reach 

in relation to 'super strength alcohol (above 5.6% abv). 

The application was granted with conditions. 

20 

Page 263



Please tick yes 
I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities and the premises 
licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate, as appropriate 

I understand that ifl do not comply with the above requirements my application will be rejected 

X 

X 

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 
ON THE STANDARD SCALE UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 
2003 TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
APPLICATION 

Part 3- Signatures (please read guidance note 3) 

Signature of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read guidance 
note 4). If signing n behalf of the applicant please state in what city. 

Si~~~~ .........  /~ .. r~~ .. ~£ ...... ... . 
Date: 01111/13 

Capacity: Police Constable behalf of the Chief Officer of Police of the Metropolis a Responsible Authority. 

Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated with this 
application (please read guidance note 5) 

Post town I Post code 

Telephone number (if any) 

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address 
(optional) 

21 

Page 264



Appendix 2 

Page 265



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\WhiteChurchLane34.docx 

1

See the attached licence for the licence conditions 

Signed by John McCroha
Trading Standards and Licensing Manager 

Date: 16th May 2013 

(Off Licence) 
34 White Church Lane 
London 
E1 7QR 

Licensable Activities authorised by the licence 

The sale by retail of alcohol 

Page 266



 
 
M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\WhiteChurchLane34.docx 

2

 
 

 

Part A - Format of premises licence 

 

Premises licence number 16774 

 

Part 1 - Premises details 
 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description  
 
34 White Church Lane  

Post town  
London 

Post code  
 E1 7QR 

Telephone number  
020 7246 0141 
 
Where the licence is time limited the dates 
 
Not applicable 

 
Licensable activities authorised by the licence 
 
The sale by retail of alcohol 
 

Page 267



 
 
M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\WhiteChurchLane34.docx 

3

 
The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 
 
Sale of Alcohol (off sales only) 
 

• Monday to Saturday from 07:00hrs to 23:00hrs  
• Sunday from 09:00hrs to 23:00hrs 

 
 
 
 

 
The opening hours of the premises 
 

• Monday to Saturday from 07:00hrs 23:30hrs  
• Sunday from 08:00hrs to 23:30hrs 

 

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or 
off supplies 
 

• Off sales only 
 

 
 

Page 268



 
 
M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\WhiteChurchLane34.docx 

4

Part 2  
 
Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of 
holder of premises licence  
 
NFU London Ltd. 
35 White Church Lane 
London 
E1 7QR 
 

 
Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number 
(where applicable) 
 
8248216 

 
Name, address and  telephone number of designated premises supervisor 
where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol 
 
Abdul Latib 

 
 

 
 

 
Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by 
designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the 
supply of alcohol 
 
Licence Number: MVDC594 
 Issuing Authority: Mole Valley District Council 

Page 269



 
 
M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\WhiteChurchLane34.docx 

5

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions  
 
No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence- 
 
a) at a time where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the 

premises licence, or 
b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal 

licence or his personal licence is suspended 
 
Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised 
by a person who holds a personal licence  
 
1.  

(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall 
ensure that an age verification policy applies to the premises in 
relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.  
 

(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible 
person to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be 
specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served 
alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a 
holographic mark. 

2. The responsible person shall ensure that; 

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for 
consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or 
supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply 
in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the 
following measures– 

(i) beer or cider: ½ pint; 

(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and 

(b) customers are made aware of the availability of these measures. 

 
Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 
 
None Applicable 
 
 
 

Page 270



 
 
M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\WhiteChurchLane34.docx 

6

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
 

1. The premises will not sell any beer, larger or cider that exceeds the strength of 
5.6% abv or higher unless 3 or more bottles/cans are purchased together;  

 
2. CCTV camera system covering both internal and external to the premises is to 

be installed; 
 

3. The CCTV recordings are to be maintained for 30 days and to be provided 
upon request to either a Police Officer or an officer of any other Responsible 
Authority; 

 
4. At all times when the premise is open, a person who can operate the CCTV 

system must be present on the premises;  
 

5. Prominent and clearly legible notices shall be displayed at all exits of the 
premises requesting patrons to respect the needs of local residents and to 
leave the premises and area quietly; 

 
6. No nudity or semi nudity permitted;  

 
7. Alcohol shall only be sold in sealed containers; 

 
8. The premises licence holder and any other persons responsible for the 

purchase of stock shall not purchase any goods from door to door sellers 
other than from established traders who provide full receipts at the time of 
delivery; 

 
9. The premises licence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods bought 

include the following details: 
 

i. Seller’s name and address 
ii. Seller’s company details, if applicable  
iii. Seller’s VAT details, if applicable 
iv. Vehicle registration detail, if applicable   

 
10. Legible copies of the documents referred to in 9) shall be retained on the 

premises and made available to officers on request; 
 
11. The trader shall obtain and use a UV detection device to verify that duty 

stamps are valid; 
 

12.  Where the trader becomes aware that any alcohol may be not duty paid they 
shall inform the Police of this immediately; 
 

13. Every incident of crime or disorder in the premises shall be reported to the 
Police by the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) or a nominated member 

Page 271



 
 
M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\WhiteChurchLane34.docx 

7

of staff.  The DPS and all members of staff shall ensure that all lawful and 
reasonable instructions and/or directions given by the Police are complied 
with; 
 

14. Before the premises are opened for the purposes authorised by the licence an 
inspection shall be carried out to ensure that the premises are safe for use; 
 

15. Emergency light and smoke detector system shall be installed at the locations 
marked, "emergency light" and "smoke detector" on the plan of the premises; 
 

16. Emergency Lighting will be tested in accordance with BS 5266 Part 1, 1999 
Emergency Lighting. The results of the tests will be recorded in a logbook; 
 

17. The fire alarm detection system will be tested in accordance with BS 5839 
Part 1 2002 Fire Detection and Fire Alarm Systems for buildings. The results 
of the tests will be recorded in a log book; 
 

18. All exits and escape routes to those exits (including external escape routes) 
from the premises shall be shall be clearly marked, maintained in good repair, 
correct working order and kept free from all obstructions when the public are 
on the premises; 
 

19. Fire fighting equipment shall be provided throughout the premises at suitable 
locations and be appropriate to the risk to comply with BS 5306 Part 8, 
Selection and Installation of Portable Fire Extinguishers; 
 

20. Fire fighting equipment shall be examined regularly by the manufacturer or 
other competent person and maintained and tested in accordance with BS 
5306 Part 3, 2000; 
 

21. All members of staff will be familiar with the operation of the fire fighting 
equipment; 
 

22. All staff shall be instructed and trained to ensure that they understand the fire 
precaution measures in the premises and the procedure and action to be 
taken in the event of fire; 
 

23. The electrical installation will be inspected annually; 
 

24. Any gas boiler, calorifier or other gas appliance will be tested on a regular 
basis. 
 

25. There shall be displayed at the entrance to the premises a sign, which is 
clearly visible to members of the public visiting the premises containing details 
of the trading hours under the premises licence; 

 
26. All staff shall be instructed and trained to ensure customers are discouraged 

from congregating outside the premises; 
 

Page 272



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\WhiteChurchLane34.docx 

8

27. There shall be provided at the premises containers for the storage and
disposal of waste foods and other refuse from the premises. Those containers
shall be constructed, maintained and located so that access to them by vermin
and unauthorised persons is prevented and arrangements shall be made for
the regular lawful disposal of their contents;

28. The premises will only be open to the public between the hours as set in this
application;

29. All staff shall be instructed and trained to ensure no deliveries of stock are
made to the premises between 22:00hrs and 08:00hrs on any day;

30. All staff shall be instructed and trained to ensure that external illumination
signs are switched off when the premises are closed for licensable activities;

31. All staff shall be instructed and trained to ensure the sale or supply of alcohol
is prohibited to any person who is intoxicated;

32. There shall be in place for the premises a written policy to prevent the sale or
supply of alcohol to persons under 18 years of age. That policy shall require
any person who appears to be under the age of 18 years to produce a
recognised proof of age card accredited under the Proof of Age Standards
Scheme (PASS), a citizen card supported by the Home Office, a photo driving
licence, a passport or official HM Forces or EU ID card bearing photo and date
of birth;

33. A notice or notices shall be displayed in and at the entrance to the premises
where they can be clearly seen and read and shall indicate that it is unlawful
for persons under 18 to purchase alcohol or for any person to purchase
alcohol on behalf of a person under 18 years of age.

Annex 4 - Plans  

The plans are those submitted to the licensing authority on the following date: 

14th January 2013 (Drawing Number: 2012 / 014/003) 

Page 273



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\WhiteChurchLane34.docx 

9

Part B - Premises licence summary 

Premises licence number 16774 

Premises details 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description  

34 White Church Lane 

Post town 
London 

Post code 
E1 7QR 

Telephone number 
 

Where the licence is time limited the 
dates Not Applicable 

Licensable activities authorised by the 
licence  The sale by retail of alcohol 

Licensing Act 2003 

Page 274



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\WhiteChurchLane34.docx 

10 

The times the licence authorises the 
carrying out of licensable activities 

Sale of Alcohol (off sales only) 

• Monday to Saturday from 07:00hrs
to 23:00hrs

• Sunday from 09:00hrs to 23:00hrs

The opening hours of the premises 
• Monday to Saturday from 07:00hrs

23:30hrs
• Sunday from 08:00hrs to 23:30hrs

Name, (registered) address  of holder 
of premises licence NFU London Ltd. 

35 White Church Lane 
London 
E1 7QR 

Where the licence authorises supplies 
of alcohol whether these are on and / 
or off supplies 

Off sales only 

Registered number of holder, for 
example company number, charity 
number (where applicable) 

8248216 

Name of designated premises 
supervisor where the premises licence 
authorises for the supply of alcohol 

Abdul Latib 

State whether access to the premises 
by children is restricted or prohibited No restrictions 

Page 275



Appendix 3 

Page 276



34 White Church Lane

Map 1

Page 277



34 White Church Lane

Map 2

Page 278



Appendix 4 

Page 279



Appendix 4 

Guidance Issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 

POWERS OF A LICENSING AUTHORITY ON THE DETERMINATION OF A 
REVIEW  

11.16 The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority on 
determining a review that it may exercise where it considers them 
necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  

11.17 The licensing authority may decide that no action is necessary if it finds 
that the review does not require it to take any steps necessary to 
promote the licensing objectives. In addition, there is nothing to prevent 
a licensing authority issuing an informal warning to the licence holder 
and/or to recommend improvement within a particular period of time. It is 
expected that licensing authorities will regard such warnings as an 
important mechanism for ensuring that the licensing objectives are 
effectively promoted and that warnings should be issued in writing to the 
holder of the licence. However, where responsible authorities like the 
police or environmental health officers have already issued warnings 
requiring improvement – either orally or in writing – that have failed as 
part of their own stepped approach to concerns, licensing authorities 
should not merely repeat that approach.  

11.18 Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory 
powers are necessary, it may take any of the following steps: 

to modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding 
new conditions or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for 
example, by reducing the hours of opening or by requiring door 
supervisors at particular times;  

• to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for
example, to   exclude the performance of live music or playing of 
recorded music (where it is not within the incidental live and 
recorded music exemption);  

• to remove the designated premises supervisor, for example,
because they consider that the problems are the result of poor 
management;  

• to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;
• to revoke the licence.

11.19 In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that 
licensing authorities should so far as possible seek to establish the 
cause or causes of the concerns which the representations identify. 
The remedial action taken should generally be directed at these causes 
and should always be no more than a necessary and proportionate 
response.  

Page 280



11.20 For example, licensing authorities should be alive to the possibility 
that the removal and replacement of the designated premises 
supervisor may be sufficient to remedy a problem where the cause of 
the identified problem directly relates to poor management decisions 
made by that individual.  

11.21 Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct reflection of 
poor company practice or policy and the mere removal of the designated 
premises supervisor may be an inadequate response to the problems 
presented. Indeed, where subsequent review hearings are generated by 
representations, it should be rare merely to remove a succession of 
designated premises supervisors as this would be a clear indication of 
deeper problems which impact upon the licensing objectives.  

11.22 Licensing authorities should also note that modifications of conditions 
and exclusions of licensable activities may be imposed either 
permanently or for a temporary period of up to three months. 
Temporary changes or suspension of the licence for up to three 
months could impact on the business holding the licence financially 
and would only be expected to be pursued as a necessary means of 
promoting the licensing objectives. So, for instance, a licence could be 
suspended for a weekend as a means of deterring the holder from 
allowing the problems that gave rise to the review to happen again. 
However, it will always be important that any detrimental financial 
impact that may result from a licensing authority’s decision is 
necessary and proportionate to the promotion of the licensing 
objectives.  

REVIEWS ARISING IN CONNECTION WITH CRIME 

11.23 A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not 
directly connected with licensable activities. For example, reviews may 
arise because of drugs problems at the premises or money laundering 
by criminal gangs or the sale of contraband or stolen goods there or the 
sale of firearms. Licensing authorities do not have the power to judge the 
criminality or otherwise of any issue. This is a matter for the courts of 
law. The role of the licensing authority when determining such a review 
is not therefore to establish the guilt or innocence of any individual but to 
ensure that the crime prevention objective is promoted. Reviews are part 
of the regulatory process introduced by the 2003 Act and they are not 
part of criminal law and procedure. Some reviews will arise after the 
conviction in the criminal courts of certain individuals but not all. In any 
case, it is for the licensing authority to determine whether the problems 
associated with the alleged crimes are taking place on the premises and 
affecting the promotion of the licensing objectives. Where a review 
follows a conviction, it would also not be for the licensing authority to 
attempt to go behind any finding of the courts, which should be treated 
as a matter of undisputed evidence before them.  

Page 281



11.24 Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the ground that 
the premises have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to 
determine what steps should be taken in connection with the premises 
licence, for the promotion of the crime prevention objective. It is 
important to recognise that certain criminal activity or associated 
problems may be taking place or have taken place despite the best 
efforts of the licensee and the staff working at the premises and despite 
full compliance with the conditions attached to the licence. In such 
circumstances, the licensing authority is still empowered to take any 
necessary steps to remedy the problems. The licensing authority’s duty 
is to take steps with a view to the promotion of the licensing objectives in 
the interests of the wider community and not those of the individual 
holder of the premises licence.  

11.25 As explained above, it is not the role of a licensing authority to 
determine the guilt or innocence of individuals charged with licensing or 
other offences committed on licensed premises. There is therefore no 
reason why representations giving rise to a review of a premises licence 
need be delayed pending the outcome of any criminal proceedings. As 
stated above, at the conclusion of a review, it will be for the licensing 
authority to determine on the basis of the application for the review and 
any relevant representations made, what action needs to be taken for 
the promotion of the licensing objectives in respect of the licence in 
question, regardless of any subsequent judgment in the courts about the 
behaviour of individuals.  

11.26 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with 
licensed premises, which the Secretary of State considers should be 
treated particularly seriously. These are the use of the licensed 
premises:  

• for the sale and distribution of Class A drugs and the laundering of
the proceeds of drugs crime;

• for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;
• for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films

and music, which does considerable damage to the industries
affected; for the purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors
which impacts on the health, educational attainment, employment
prospects and propensity for crime of young people;

• for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography;
• by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children;
• as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by

gangs;
• for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks;
• for unlawful gaming and gambling; and
• for the sale of smuggled tobacco and alcohol.

11.27 It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police and other law 
enforcement agencies, which are responsible authorities, will use the 
review procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where 
reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime 

Page 282



prevention objective is being undermined through the premises being 
used to further crimes, it is expected that revocation of the licence – 
even in the first instance – should be seriously considered. We would 
also encourage liaison with the local Crime and Disorder Reduction 
Partnership.  

11.28 It should be noted that it is unlawful to discriminate or to refuse service 
on grounds of race or by displaying racially discriminatory signs on the 
premises. Representations made about such activity from responsible 
authorities or interested parties would be relevant to the promotion of 
the crime prevention objective and justifiably give rise to a review.  

Page 283



Appendix 5 

Page 284



Appendix 5 

Guidance Issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 

Crime and Disorder Act 1998 

1.28 All local authorities must fulfil their obligations under section 17 of the 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 when carrying out their functions as 
licensing authorities under the 2003 Act.  

1.29 Section 17 is aimed at giving the vital work of crime and disorder 
reduction a focus across the wide range of local services and putting it at 
the heart of local decision-making. It places a duty on certain key 
authorities, including local authorities and police and fire and rescue 
authorities to do all they reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder in 
their area.  

1.30 The Government believes that licensing authorities should, as a matter of 
good practice, involve Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnerships 
(CDRPs) in decision-making in order to ensure that statements of 
licensing policy include effective strategies that take full account of crime 
and disorder implications.  

Pool Conditions 

Annex D 
Conditions relating to the prevention of crime and disorder 
It should be noted in particular that it is unlawful under the 2003 Act: 
• knowingly to sell or supply or attempt to sell or supply alcohol to a person
who is drunk 
• knowingly to allow disorderly conduct on licensed premises
• for the holder of a premises licence or a designated premises supervisor
knowingly to keep or to allow to be kept on licensed premises any goods that 
have been imported without payment of duty or which have otherwise been 
unlawfully imported 
• to allow the presence of children under 16 who are not accompanied by an
adult between midnight and 5am at any premises licensed for the sale of 
alcohol for consumption on the premises, and at any time in premises used 
exclusively or primarily for the sale and consumption of alcohol. 
Conditions enforcing these arrangements are therefore unnecessary. 

CORE PRINCIPLES 

1. Licensing authorities and other responsible authorities (in considering
applications) and applicants for premises licences and clubs premises
certificates (in preparing their operating schedules) should consider
whether the measures set out below are appropriate to promote the
licensing objectives.

Page 285



2. Any risk assessment to identify appropriate measures should consider the
individual circumstances of the premises and the nature of the local area,
and take into account a range of factors including:

• the nature, type and location of the venue;
• the activities being conducted there and the potential risk which

these activities could pose to the local area;
• the location (including the locality in which the premises are

situated and knowledge of any local initiatives); and
• the anticipated clientele.

Under no circumstances should licensing authorities regard these 
conditions as standard conditions to be automatically imposed in all 
cases. 

3. Any individual preparing an operating schedule or club operating schedule
is at liberty to volunteer any measure, such as those below, as a step they
intend to take to promote the licensing objectives. When measures are
incorporated into the licence or certificate, they become enforceable under
the law and breach could give rise to prosecution.

4. Licensing authorities should carefully consider conditions to ensure that
they are not only appropriate but realistic, practical and achievable, so that
they are capable of being met. Failure to comply with conditions attached
to a licence or certificate could give rise to a prosecution, in particular, as
the provision of unauthorised licensable activities under the 2003 Act,
which, on conviction would be punishable by a fine of up to £20,000 or up
to six months imprisonment or both. As such, it would be wholly
inappropriate to impose conditions outside the control of those responsible
for the running of the premises. It is also important that conditions which
are imprecise or difficult to enforce must be excluded.5.  It should be
borne in mind that club premises operate under codes of discipline to
ensure the good order and behaviour of members and that conditions
enforcing offences under the Act are unnecessary.

CONDITIONS RELATING TO THE PREVENTION OF CRIME AND 
DISORDER  
RADIO LINKS AND TELEPHONE COMMUNICATIONS  
Two-way radio links and telephone communications connecting staff of 
premises and clubs to local police and other premises can enable rapid 
responses to situations that may endanger the customers and staff on and 
around licensed premises. It is recommended that radio links or telephone 
communications systems should be considered for licensed premises in city 
and town centre leisure areas with a high density of premises selling alcohol. 
These conditions may also be appropriate in other areas. It is recommended 
that a condition requiring a radio or telephone link to the police should include 
the following requirements: 

• the equipment is kept in working order (when licensable activities
are taking place); 

• the link is activated, made available to and monitored by the
designated premises supervisor or a responsible member of staff at 
all times that the premises are open to the public; 

Page 286



• relevant police instructions/directions are complied with where
possible; and

• instances of crime or disorder are reported via the radio link by the
designated premises supervisor or a responsible member of staff to
an agreed police contact point.

DOOR SUPERVISORS 
Conditions relating to the provision of door supervisors and security teams 
may be valuable in relation to: 

• keeping out individuals excluded by court bans or by the licence
holder; 

• searching those suspected of carrying illegal drugs, or carrying
offensive weapons; 

• assisting in the implementing of the premises’ age verification
policy; and 

• ensuring that queues outside premises and departure of customers
from premises do not undermine the licensing objectives. 

Where the presence of door supervisors conducting security activities is to be 
a condition of a licence, which means that they would have to be registered 
with the Security Industry Authority, it may also be appropriate for conditions 
to stipulate: 

• That a sufficient number of supervisors be available (possibly
requiring both male and female supervisors); 

• the displaying of name badges;
• the carrying of proof of registration; and
• where, and at what times, they should be in operation.

Door supervisors also have a role to play in ensuring public safety (see Part 
2) and the prevention of public nuisance (see Part 4).

RESTRICTING ACCESS TO GLASSWARE 
Traditional glassware and bottles may be used as weapons or result in 
accidents and can cause very serious injuries. Conditions can prevent sales 
of drinks in glass for consumption on the premises. This should be expressed 
in clear terms and can include the following elements: 

• no glassware, whether open or sealed, shall be given to customers
on the premises whether at the bar or by staff service away from 
the bar; or 

• no customers carrying glassware shall be admitted to the premises
at any time that the premises are open to the public (note: this 
needs to be carefully worded where off-sales also take place). 

In appropriate circumstances, the condition could include exceptions, for 
example, as follows: 

• but bottles containing wine may be given to customers for
consumption with a table meal by customers who are seated in an 
area set aside from the main bar area for the consumption of food. 

The banning of glass may also be a relevant and appropriate measure to 
promote public safety (see Part 2).  

Page 287



ALTERNATIVES TO TRADITIONAL GLASSWARE 
Where appropriate, consideration should therefore be given to conditions 
requiring the use of safer alternatives to prevent crime and disorder, and in 
the interests of public safety. Location and style of the venue and the activities 
carried on there are particularly important in assessing whether a condition is 
appropriate. For example, the use of glass containers on the terraces of some 
outdoor sports grounds may obviously be of concern, and similar concerns 
may also apply to indoor sports events such as boxing matches. Similarly, the 
use of alternatives to traditional glassware may be an appropriate condition 
during the showing of televised live sporting events, such as international 
football matches, when there may be high states of excitement and emotion. 

OPEN CONTAINERS NOT TO BE TAKEN FROM THE PREMISES 
Drinks purchased in licensed premises or clubs may be taken from those 
premises for consumption elsewhere. This is lawful where premises are 
licensed for the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises. However, 
consideration should be given to a condition preventing customers from 
taking alcoholic and other drinks from the premises in open containers (e.g. 
glasses and opened bottles) for example, by requiring the use of bottle bins 
on the premises. This may again be appropriate to prevent the use of these 
containers as offensive weapons, or to prevent consumption of alcohol, in 
surrounding streets after individuals have left the premises. Restrictions on 
taking open containers from the premises may also be appropriate 
measures to prevent public nuisance (see Part 4). 

CCTV 
The presence of CCTV cameras can be an important means of deterring and 
detecting crime at and immediately outside licensed premises. Conditions 
should not just consider a requirement to have CCTV on the premises, but 
also the precise location of each camera, the requirement to maintain 
cameras in working order, to retain recordings for an appropriate period of 
time and produce images from the system in a required format immediately to 
the police and local authority. The police should provide individuals 
conducting risk assessments as part of preparing their operating schedules 
with advice on the use of CCTV to prevent crime. 

RESTRICTIONS ON DRINKING AREAS 
It may be appropriate to restrict the areas of the premises where alcoholic 
drinks may be consumed after they have been purchased. An example would 
be at a sports ground where it is appropriate to prevent the consumption of 
alcohol on the terracing during particular sports events. Conditions should not 
only specify these areas, but indicate the circumstances and times during 
which the ban would apply.  
Restrictions on drinking areas may also be relevant and appropriate 
measures to prevent public nuisance (see Part 4). 

CAPACITY LIMITS 

Page 288



Capacity limits are most commonly made a condition of a licence on public 
safety grounds (see Part 2), but can also be considered for licensed premises 
or clubs where overcrowding may lead to disorder and violence. If such a 
condition is appropriate, door supervisors may be required to ensure that the 
numbers are appropriately controlled (see above).  

PROOF OF AGE CARDS 
It is unlawful for persons aged under 18 years to buy or attempt to buy alcohol 
just as it is unlawful to sell or supply alcohol to them. To prevent the 
commission of these criminal offences, the mandatory conditions require 
licensed premises to ensure that they have in place an age verification policy. 
This requires the production of age verification (which must meet defined 
criteria) before alcohol is served to persons who appear to staff at the 
premises to be under 18 (or other minimum age set by premises). 
Such verification must include the individual’s photograph, date of birth and a 
holographic mark e.g. driving licence, passport, military ID. Given the value 
and importance of such personal documents, and because not everyone aged 
18 years or over necessarily has such documents, the Government endorses 
the use of ID cards which bear the PASS (Proof of Age Standards Scheme) 
hologram. PASS is the UK’s national proof of age accreditation scheme which 
sets and maintains minimum criteria for proof of age card issuers to meet. The 
inclusion of the PASS hologram on accredited cards, together with the 
verification made by card issuers regarding the personal details  
of an applicant, gives the retailer the assurance that the holder is of relevant 
age to buy or be served age-restricted goods. PASS cards are available to 
people under the age of 18 for other purposes such as access to 15 rated 
films at cinema theatres so care must be taken to check that the individual is 
over 18 when attempting to purchase or being served alcohol. 

CRIME PREVENTION NOTICES 
It may be appropriate at some premises for notices to be displayed which 
warn customers of the prevalence of crime which may target them. Some 
premises may be reluctant to voluntarily display such notices for commercial 
reasons. For example, in certain areas, a condition attached to a premises 
licence or club premises certificate might require the display of notices at the 
premises which warn customers about the need to be aware of pickpockets or 
bag snatchers, and to guard their property. Similarly, it may be appropriate for 
notices to be displayed which advise customers not to leave bags unattended 
because of concerns about terrorism. Consideration could be given to a 
condition requiring a notice to display the name of a contact for customers if 
they wish to report concerns. 

DRINKS PROMOTIONS 
Licensing authorities should not attach standardised blanket conditions 
promoting fixed prices for alcoholic drinks to premises licences or club 
licences or club premises certificates in an area. This may be unlawful under 
current law. It is also likely to be unlawful for licensing authorities or the police 
to promote generalised voluntary schemes or codes of practice in relation to 
price discounts on alcoholic drinks, ‘happy hours’ or drinks promotions. The 
mandatory licensing conditions (see chapter 10 of the statutory guidance) ban 

Page 289



defined types of behaviour referred to as ‘irresponsible promotions’. 

SIGNAGE 
It may be appropriate that the hours at which licensable activities are 
permitted to take place are displayed on or immediately outside the premises 
so that it is clear if breaches of these terms are taking place. Similarly, it may 
be appropriate for any restrictions on the admission of children to be 
displayed on or immediately outside the premises to deter those who might 
seek admission in breach of those conditions. 
LARGE CAPACITY VENUES USED EXCLUSIVELY OR PRIMARILY FOR 
THE “VERTICAL” CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOL (HVVDS) 
Large capacity “vertical drinking” premises, sometimes called High Volume 
Vertical Drinking establishments (HVVDs), are premises that have 
exceptionally high capacities, are used primarily or exclusively for the sale 
and consumption of alcohol, and provide little or no seating for their 
customers. 
Where appropriate, conditions can be attached to licences for these premises 
which require adherence to: 

• a prescribed capacity;
• an appropriate ratio of tables and chairs to customers based on the

capacity; and
the presence of security staff holding the appropriate SIA licence or 
exemption (see Chapter 10 to control entry for the purpose of compliance with 
the capacity limit.  

Page 290



Appendix 6 

Page 291



Document2 

Appendix 6 

Licensing Policy Adopted by the London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

5.1 Licensed premises, especially those offering late night/early morning 
entertainment, alcohol and refreshment for large numbers of people, can 
be a source of crime and disorder problems.    

5.4 In addition to the requirements for the Licensing Authority to promote the 
licensing objectives, it also has a duty under Section 17 of the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 to do all it reasonable can to prevent crime and disorder 
in the Borough.    

Page 292



Appendix 7 

Page 293



METROPOLITAN 
POLICE 

Ms Kathy Driver, 
Principal Licensing Officer, 

TOTAL POLICING 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets, 
Licensing Section, 
Mulberry Place, 
5 Clove Crescent, 
London, 
E14 2BG 

Dear Ms Driver, 

Tower Hamlets Borough 
Licensing Office 

Limehouse Police Station, 
West India Dock Road, 
London, 
E14 BEZ 

Office: 020 7275 4950/4911 
Mobile:07825 850 906 

Email: Brendan.O'Rourke@met.pnn.police.uk 

Your ref: 
Our ref: LIC/011113/13 

11th December 2013 

Re: Supporting documents as outlined in the Review Application and additional 

evidence 

In the matter of: Request under Sec 51 Licensing Act for a Review of Premises 

Licence Low Cost Food and Wine, 34, White Church Lane, LONDON El 7QR. 

Please find attached copies of the supporting documents as referred to in my original 

review application dated 01111113: 

• Re: 02/10/13- MOll From PC 291HT O'ROURKE (dated 04/10/13). 

• Re: 05/10/13- MOll From PC 291HT O'ROURKE (dated 06/10/13). 

• Re: 05/10/13 - Closure Notice - Section 19 Criminal Justice and Police Act 

2001. 

• Re: 05/10/13 - Book 694 Notification of alleged offences under the Licensing 

Act 2003. 

• Re: 26/10/13- MOll From PC 291HT O'ROURKE (dated 26/10/13). 

• Re: 26/10/13- MOll From PC 291HT O'ROURKE (dated 30/10/13). 

• Re: 26/10/13 -Book 694 Notification of alleged offences under the Licensing 

Act 2003. 

Additionally, please find attached further supporting evidence as outlined below: 

Page 294



• Re: 02110/13- MG11 From Mr LISOWSKI, LBTH (dated 04/10/13). 

• Re: 02110/13 - MG 11 From Mr. WAREING, LBTH. 

• Re: 05/10/13- MG11 From Mr HERON, LBTH (dated 11/10/13). 

Further offences reported for Breach of Conditions: 

o Conditions 2 and 3, there was no active CCTV system at the premises 

o Condition 5 , no signage 

o Condition 11, no suitable UV light to check duty stamps 

o Condition 18, fire exists were not signposted 

o Condition 25, no signage 

o Condition 33, no notices 

o Mr LA TIB personal licence has not been updated with his new address, 

nor had it been amended on the premises licence. 

• Re: 26110/13- MG11 From Ms DRIVER, LBTH (dated 27/11/13). 

• Letter to Mr LATIB (dated 30110113)- Surrey. 

• Letter to Mr LATIB (dated 01111/13)- Surrey. 

• Letter to Mr LATIB (dated 05/11/13)- Surrey. 

• Letter to Mr LATIB (dated 05/11/13) - London (with copies sent of above 

three letters (and attachments) originally sent to Surrey). 

• Letter from Miramar Legal to Police (dated 27111113). 

• Re: 07/12/13- MG11 From PC 291HT O'ROURKE (dated 08/12/13). 

• Re: 07112/13 - Book 694 Notification of alleged offences under the Licensing 

Act 2003.Re: 07/12/13 - MG11 from PC 291HT O'ROURKE (dated 

10/12/13). 

• Photographs of the premises- numbered exhibit's 'BOR/1 - 5'. 

I can further state that on 5th December 2013, I attended Thames Magistrates Court 

where Mr. McCabe, solicitor for the London Borough of Tower Hamlets prosecuted 

Mr Latib for breaches of his premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003. It is a 

matter already referred to in the above documentation. Mr Latib pleaded guilty to the 

one offence prosecuted (which was the offences committed on 26110/13). He pleaded 

guilty and was sentenced to a fine of £385 (£165 fine; £200 costs; £20 victim 

surcharge). A 'Collection Order' was made and his Personal Licence was suspended 

for a period of one month - effective immediately. Part of the mitigation put forward 

by his defence in relation to the consideration of any suspension of the personal 

Page 295



licence by the Magistrates, was that if 'his personal licence was suspended he would 

lose his income or the ability to earn and pay any fine'. 

At the time of writing there are four outstanding prosecutions against Mr Latib and/or 

a staff member of Low Cost Food & Wines for breaches of the Licensing Act 2003 (as 

outlined in the documentation), but for clarity they are offences committed on 

02/10/13; 05/10/13 x 2 and 07/12/13. 

In addition to offences reported by the police on 05/10/13 - please see attached in the 

Annex witness the statement from LBTH Licensing Officer in relation to other 

offences Mr Heron found further breaches on 5th October 2013 (dated 11110/13). 

There are other complicated matters ongomg with Mr Latib that involves his 

immigration status in the UK. Mr. Latib currently has an ongoing claim for asylum 

with UKBA - this is relevant to the Licensing Committee in that as it is understood 

that Mr Latib is in receipt of benefits and he cannot work in the UK. Mr Latib is still 

the Designated Premises Supervisor for Low Cost Food & Wine and there has been no 

application to vary this over the last few months since his work status was known. It is 

anticipated that the full facts surrounding this matter will be made available to the 

Licensing Committee in due course. 

If you have any further questions about the above, please don't hesitate to contact me. 

Yours sincerely, 

 

PC 291 HT 

Page 296



Appendix 8 

Page 297



RESTRICTED (when complete) 
!MGll (T) j 

WITNESS STATEMENT 
CJ Act 1967, s.9; MC Act 1980, ss.5A(3)(a) and 5B; Criminal Procedure Rules 2005, Rule 27.1 

Statement of Brendan Paul O'ROURKE ... ........... .. .... .. URN: I 01 I HT I I 13 
L-----~----~----------~--~ 

Age if under 18 Over 18 ............. . (if over 18 insert 'over 18') Occupation: Police Officer 230222 ............ . 

This statement (consisting of: .... 2 ...... pages each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and I 
make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated anything in it 
which I know to be false, or do not believe to be true. 

04/10/2013 .... .... ................ . 

Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded D (supply witness details on rear) 

This statement is in relation to a test purchase at 34 WHITE CHURCH LANE, LONDON E 1 7QR 

I am a police officer with the Licensing Unit of Tower Hamlets Borough Police. 

On Wednesday, 2nd October 2013, I was on duty in plain clothes in the company of PC 189HT 

CRUICSHANK, Mr Alex LISOWSKI, a London Borough of Tower Hamlets Licensing Officer and Mr 

Ian WAREING, a London Borough of Tower Hamlets Environmental Health Officer on joint Licensing 

Patrols within Tower Hamlets. 

At approximately 15:42 hours Mr WAREING entered the premises of 34, WHITECHURCH LANE and 

returned shortly afterwards with a single can of 'Skol Super' lager, 9% abv. 

I then entered the premises and identified myself to staff as a police officer, saying "HELLO I AM PC 

291HT O'ROURKE FROM TOWER HAMLETS LICENSING". 

I said to the male who Mr WAREING had identified as the male who had served him "WHAT IS 

YOUR NAME AND DATE OF BIRTH PLEASE"? 

He replied "MOMAON ROSHID, 01/0111988". 

I said "AND WHAT IS YOUR ADDRESS PLEASE"? 

He replied "35A WHITECHURCH LANE LONDON El 7QR". 

Signature: 

j2006/07(l): MG lJ (T)j RESTRICTED (when complete) 

N/A .............................. ....... ..................... . 

Page 298



I 

RESTRICTED (when completed) 
Page 2.qf2 · 

Continuation of Statement of Brendan Paul O'ROURKE .............. .. ..................................................... ........ .. ...... . 

I then conducted police checks on the male and heard Mr LISOWSKI report the male for summons for 

committing an offence under the Licensing Act 2003, being in breach of their premises licence. 

I then left the premises. 

Signature:  Signature witnessed b" N/A .. .. .. .......... ................... .. .. .............. . 

2003(1) Page 299



Appendix 9 

Page 300



RESTRICTED (when complete) 

WITNESS STATEMENT (!;; t0.; 
CJ Act 1967, s.9; MC Act 1980, ss.5A(3)(a) and 5B; Criminal Procedure Rules 2005, Rule 27.1 

Statement of Brendan Paul O'ROURKE ..... ... ... ........... URN: I 01 I HT I I 13 
L-----J------L----------~--~ 

Age if under 18 Over 18 .. .......... .. (if over 18 insert 'over 18 ' ) Occupation: Police Officer 230222 ............ . 

This statement (consisting of: .. .. 3 ...... pages each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and I 
make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wtlfully stated anything in it 
which I know to be false, or do not believe to be true . 

Signature:  ....... f~ .. .. ~.~ .. ~.( .. ...... .. Date: 06/10/2013 ...... .............. .... . 

Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded U (supply witness details on rear) 

This statement is in relation to a test purchase at 34 WHITECHURCH LANE, LONDON El 7QR 

I am a police officer with the Licensing Unit of Tower Hamlets Borough Police. 

On Saturday, 5th October 2013, I was on duty in plain clothes in the company ofMr Andrew HERON, a 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Licensing Officer on joint Licensing Patrols within Tower Hamlets. 

At approximately 00:05 hours I entered the premises of 34, WHITECHURCH LANE in plain clothes to 

undertake a 'Test Purchase'. The shop was busy with several people selecting and purchasing alcohol in 

front of me. There are several open fridges full of cans of lager or beer to the right as you enter and a 

wall full of shelves containing wine on the left, with spirits held behind the counter. I would say 

approximately 50% of the shop floor is dedicated to the sale of alcohol. 

• 

The fridge shelves containing beer is arranged in a confusing way, with different strength beers mixed 

and it is not easy to ascertain which is 'Super Strength' or over 5.6% abv (which is a special condition 

on the premises licence i.e. 'only 3 or more cans with a strength above 5.6% abv may be sold). Neither 

is there any sign advising customers of this condition. It would appear that the shop have had no regard 

to this condition whatsoever. 

I selected from one ofthe fridges a single can ofGuinness (alcohol content 4.2% abv) and paid £1.30 

for it at the till. I produce this in evidence as exhibit BOR/1 - sealed in evidence bag LA035242. 

Signature: N/A .......................................................... . 

12006/07(1): MG ll(T~ RESTRICTED ("hen complete) 
Page 301



RESTRICTED (when completed) 
Page 2 of2 

Continuation of Statement of Brendan Paul O'ROURKE .. .... ..... ..................... ......... ........ .. ............ ............ ... .. ... . .. 

I then returned to the premises at 00:15 hrs and purchased a single can of'K Cider' (alcohol content 

8.4% abv) and a bag of crisps and paid £2.24 for it. I produce the can in evidence as exhibit BOR/2-

sealed in evidence bag LA035239. 

I returned again shortly afterwards to the premises with Mr HERON who identified himself to the staff 

working as a Council Official and I produced my warrant card and badge identifying myself as a police 

officer, saying "HELLO I AM PC 291HT O'ROURKE FROM TOWER HAMLETS LICENSING". 

I said to the male who had served me "WHAT IS YOUR NAME AND DATE OF BIRTH PLEASE"? 

He replied "MOMAON ROSHID, 01/01/1988". 

I said "AND WHAT IS YOUR ADDRESS PLEASE"? 

He replied "35A WHITECHURCH LANE LONDON E1 7QR". 

Mr HERON had already asked him ifhe had a personal licence, which he did not. The Designated 

Premises Supervisor arrived at some point during our conversation, who verbally confirmed his details 

to me as Mr Abdul LATIB, DOB 18/09/1985. He gave his address as 35, WHITECHURCH LANE, 

LONDON E1 7QR, however that differed from the address given to LBTH and recorded on the 

premises licence (which I believe was in Surrey). I inspected Part A ofthe Premises Licence to confirm 

that the shop should cease the sale of alcohol at 23:00 hours and be completely closed by 23:30 hrs. 

I then completed two Met Police Licensing Forms, one from 'Book 694' "Notification of alleged 

offences under the Licensing Act 2003" and the other a Section 19 'Closure Notice under Section 19 

Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 '. 

At 01:20 hours, I said to Mr. LATIB "I SHOULD POINT OUT IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER THE 

LICENSING ACT 2003 TO COMMIT THE FOLLOWING OFFENCES: 

• 'UNDER SECTION 136 (1) CARRYING ON OR ATTEMPTING TO CARRY ON A 

LICENSABLE ACTIVITY ON OR FROM ANY PREMISES OTHERWISE AND IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH AN AUTHORISATION OR KNOWINGLY ALLOWING A 

LICENSABLE ACITIVITY TO BE CARRIED ON', 

IN PLAIN ENGLISH THAT MEANS YOU HAVE SOLD ALCOHOL OUTSIDE YOUR 

Signature: N/A .. ............................ ... .... ... ............ .. 

2003(1) 
Page 302



RESTRICTED (when completed) 
Page 3 of3 

Continuation of Statement of Brendan Paul O'ROURK~ ... ... ... ..... .... ... ... ........ .. ... .... .. ...... ... .. .. ........... .................. . 

PERMITTED HOURS". 

I then gave the 'now' caution and said "THE FACTS OF THE MATTER WILL BE REPORTED AND 

YOU MAY OR MAY NOT BE PROSECUTED", he made no reply. The above offences are recorded 

on the form from Book 694, of which I gave him a copy of and which he signed in receipt. I produce a 

copy in evidence as exhibit BOR/3- sealed in evidence bag C36680925. 

I then gave MR LATIB a copy of the Section 19 Closure Notice I had completed, with specific steps to 

be taking in compliance of this. Again he signed the document and I produce a copy ofthis Notice in 

evidence as exhibit BOR/4 - sealed in evidence bag C36680926. 

I would like to add, during my entire time on the premises, from approximately 00:35 hours until 01:25 

hours, there was a customer banging on the door expecting to be let in every few minutes. It was simply 

unbelievable. One person, a female was in her pyjama's and was clearly a local resident who had 

popped out of her flat to purchase something well beyond closing time. 

It appeared obvious to me, that the premises had been regularly opening in excess of there permitted 

hours and this was very we Pt ~ \ ~ ( 
I then left the premises. 

Signature: Signature witnessed by: N/A .. ........ .. ...... .......... .... ... ..... .... ....... .. . 

2003(1) 
Page 303



Appendix 10 

Page 304



/ 
CLOSURE NOTICE - SECTION 19 CRIMINAL JUSTICE AND POLICE ACT 2001 

Date of the Closure Notice: OC, l/t1 \ 13 Time Served: 00 lrS 
Authority issuing Notice: Metropolitan Police Service 

Name and rank of person making the notice: Pc d-G1l ~~ 
Signature: h f ~L--I"k__ 
Name (if applicablet and address of the affected premises: 

s4 wl, e cL~rcl lc;.."t-
: :c~:~:-h~~:: :::::: :t.: r:: ::~:& :tC:: ::::::::::::::::::::::: ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: 
Alleged unauthorised use of the premises (section 19 (6)(a)) 

The officer serving this notice is satisfied that the above premises are being, or within the last 24 hours 
have been, used for the unauthorised sale of alcohol for consumption on, or in the vicinity of the · 
premises. The specific details of the alleged use are: 

~\ gc( if, ~:~ .. !!. ~- .. g_$j,,J ~~-... f.(. }.<:tt .. "( ... ~}~~)•f ... ~-.. rh!!Y.t, ... C'~ '.~!S .. ~} .. .(.I~; "J.-
CttA'v .. ,~ .... t:'Jt.\ c .... CC/n.. ~. ~ - (. h::! ... . t>-1 •• k c.\ Y. ... p-!.~~- .. S!l., .. . o. r. .... . k .. c~.~.(~ .. . ~.: .<t .. /6.. C"Al,."-J: .. .. ~.cu:ktr 
0 .a.:. (l.s .. -~-:\ i .... .P.c .. ~.t .If! ...... ad~ o . .. f"r..c.hkn.~ .. .. A ..... . c~ .. .. t).r.:-. ... ~ ! . .,.t..o .. ( .':1':·. J.. '· ~ .. . m 1v} 

Grounds upon which the person serving the Notice was satisfied of the existence of such unauthorised 
use: 

I 'f~.'~~ \_, ·~~"-~L .. (\1 1;'\·· .. ~~~- .. -~ ~)., .. -'i ... .'!' ~\!b 1 .. . t::".v.o-{7. .
1
l ... ~~~~~h .. . ~J. ~ · dJ /.a 

\tt, ... l,b .... Cr.Q' .. k·r r · ~C.~. ~- 0. ~~~/ .. . ~~~.( ... ... ":.~!)! .. . .. .. ~~·'-'-'· .. ~.4 . .s~J .. ~.:; ... ::>r.<r( t.k.J .. ~ 
~ ... ,!/.~ ... a b . .., .. .. dr. .. . hO ht/.. .... fA~ I().) .. ... ,.:> .• o.C .... ~9: .'t.. ... fN.( . .. . (W:.C .. .. J,.c .... . wacY.k .. .. .... ..... .. 

Steps that may be taken to end the alleged unauthorised use of the premises, or to prevent it 
from re-occurring (section 19 (6) (c)) 

1a.. ,. €<1"'!1~ 1"'· .,\(.!.!~ . 011 ! .. .. ./.t (t_~·k. ~~1 ~ )t~~ '· .. , . '~- ... F-'t ~: ~ ·"'·' ~- - - -~~ t· ~'% 
(cJn. .( . t ... • .. ct~.~ . fl.~(C .. . c.t ... S.1 . \~ .. ... Y.\U\-.. . ':fl .... ~ .. v'.t.C. .. {-t~fi.II.C .. . .. : J Y.L . ~.b..f .. .. .. $.~ .:· .~ ~ ..... ~''IIU...,_ 
S:.~.'<..,. .. -~ .. c-0.,;) .. ar. .. ~~.Gi: .. ~ ... ... .C lu.~ .... ~ .... -~~ ..... ... ..... ..... ... .. ... .... .. .... ... ..... . .. (_;_). .. .. 

Effect of section 20 • Application for closure order. 
A failure to take remedial action to prevent further or continued unauthorised use may lead to an 
application being made to a Magistrates court for a closure order under section 21 Criminal Justice and 
Police Act 2001. 

The Person (if applicable) on whom the closure notice has been served: 

Name .•.•.• Jr.6.~.~.t ......... L.(\.J..sf!>. ............................................ . 
Signature •..•. 1  ....................................................................... . Date .•.. :Q.S.. :J.Cf.ll}. ........................................................................... .. 

Page 305



1. EXPLANATORY NOTES 
A police officer has decided to issue this closure notice under the terms of section 19 of the 
Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 ("the 2001 Act"). The notice alleges that the said premises 
has been operating either without a premises licence, or otherwise than in accordance with a 
premises licence. It also details the actions that may be taken by the owner or manager to end 
the unlicensed sale of alcohol to prevent it reoccurring. Please note that any such unauthorised 
activity may also constitute a criminal offence under section 136 Licensing Act 2003. 

The purpose of this notice is to provide a warning to those responsible for the premises in order 
that swift remedial action can take place to rectify the unauthorised activity. If the problem 
continues, or appears likely to continue, the police may apply to the magistrate's court for an 
order to close the premises. 

2. Section 19 of the 2001 Act- Closure Notices 
Where a police officer, or an authorised officer from the local authority, is satisfied that any 
premises are being, or within the last 24 hours have been used for the unauthorised sale 
ofalcohol, for consumption on, or in the vicinity of the premises, , he may serve 
a notice under section 19(3) in respect of the premises. An "unauthorised sale of alcohol" 
includes a premises with a valid premises licence, but that is operating in breach of its licence 
conditions. 

3. Section 20 of the 2001 Act- Closure Orders 
Your attention is drawn to section 20 of the 2001 Act. This provides that the police, or as the 
case may be the local authority, can take action against the said premises by applying to a 
justice of the peace at the local magistrates' court for a closure order if the unlicensed sale of 
alcohol (as alleged in this closure notice) is continuing, or there is a reasonable likelihood that 
the premises will be so used in the future. 

The application for a closure order must be made not less than 7 days, and not more than 6 
months, after the date on which this closure notice was served. 

After an application for a closure order is made, the justice of the peace may issue a summons 
requiring the applicant, and also the person or persons on whom the closure notice was served, 
to attend a court hearing. At the hearing the court will consider the applicant's complaint against 
the said premises and decide whether a closure order should or should not be made. 

In accordance with the Magistrates' Courts Act 1980, and the Human Rights Act 1998 you are 
entitled to be legally represented at the hearing and to make representations to the court before 
any decision is taken. 

4. Appeals- Section 24 of the 2001 Act 
An appeal against a decision by the magistrates' court to grant a closure order, or a decision to 
refuse an application for a closure order, can be made by an affected person to the Crown 
Court within 21 days. 

5. Enforcement Powers and Offences- Section 25 of the 2001 Act 
It is an offence for a person, without reasonable excuse, to permit a premises to be open in 
contravention of a closure order made by the magistrates court. Any person found guilty of such 

Page 306



an offence will be liable to a fine not exceeding £20,000, or to imprisonment for a term not 
exceeding three months, or to both. 

It is also an offence for a person who, without reasonable excuse, fails to comply with any other 
terms of a closure order made by the court, or does an act which contravenes those other 
terms. Any person convicted of this offence is liable to a fine not exceeding £5,000, or to three 
months imprisonment, or to both. 

Police officers and authorised officers from the local authority have the power to enter the said 
premises at "any reasonable time", and do anything reasonably necessary to secure 
compliance with the closure order (for example, to board up the premises). However, when 
exercising this power, the constable or the officer must produce evidence of this authority to 
enter and also his identity before entering the premises, if asked to do so by the owner (or the 
occupier or the person in charge of the premises). 

It is an offence for a person to intentionally obstruct police officers or authorised local authority 
officers from exercising these powers. Any person convicted of obstructing a police officer is 
liable to a fine not exceeding £5,000, or to one month's imprisonment, or to both. 
Any person convicted of obstructing an authorised local authority officer is liable to a fine not 
exceeding £5,000. 

Page 307



Appendix 11 

Page 308



PRINTER- 4-PART NCR- Top COPY (WHITE) 

Book 694 
METROPOLITAN 

POLICE TOTAL POUCING Venue Copy 

Notification of alleged offences under the Licensing Act 2003 

Venue Name: · --··· .. ···-;:--:,t·······r ---.. ··y·-............. [ ............ r ··· ............ , ................... ------· REF: (CAD/CRIS etc.) ............................ --.... -~ --

Addre,,• ~Jci_~.L.(j,.JI'..!"l .--~-----------------~1 _____ _ 
k:-~ .. ~.9.-~ .. : __ ........ ~J-... -... ±Gt~ .. -: ............ {);.i; ... ~-·:· .. ~---...... [.-,4 { i·-·----- Date:e..?. ...... J..~ .. !J. ... Time: .... ~ .. -~ ..... :~ ... -~~-~-

( 

Deta1ls of person 1n charge at the relevant ume: ·-~·-··--· ....... _ .......... _ ...................... l.&. ........... -........................ _ ............................ -.. --.............................. .. 
~' -~~-~~ .......... ~-~-~-~ .. .Y..'.1. .!.t~,;r., .... ~.~ ... ~ .. : .. 1:1. ... $..~ .. <f: .. ... £..xf. .. .. ~'t./.M.}.~.I)-........ DPS ~rsona l Licence Holder ~ 
Summary of alleged offences identified 

0 Section 57(4) Failure to secure premises licence or a certified copy at the premises or to prominently display a 
summary of the Licence. 

0 Section 57 (7) Failure to produce a premises licence or a certified copy. 

0 Section 109 (4) Failure to secure that a copy of the Temporary Event Notice (TEN) is prominently displayed at the 
premises or secure that a copy ofthe TEN is in the custody of an appropriate person. 

0 Section 109 (8) Failure to produce a TEN to a police officer. 

0 Section 135 (4) Failure to produce a personal licence to a police officer. 

p.Se?tion 136 (1) Carrying on or attempting to carry on a licensable activity on or from any premises otherwise an~ 
accordance with an authorlsatation or knowingly allowing a licensable activity to be carried on. (Sec19 issued Y ij:!)'No 0) 

0 Section 137 (1) Exposing alcohol for retail without an authorisation. (Sec19 issued Y 0 No 0) 

0 Section 138 (1) Keeping alcohol on a premises for an unauthorised sale. (Sec19 issued Y 0 No 0) 

0 Section 140 ( 1) Knowingly allowing disorderly conduct on a licensed premises. 

0 Section 141 ( 1) Knowingly selling or attempting or allowing alcohol to be sold to a person who is drunk. 

0 S~ction 144 (1) Knowingly keeping or allowing non duty paid goods or unlawfully imported goods to be kept on 
prem1ses. 

0 Section 145 (1) Allowing an unaccompanied child on a premises (used primarily or exclusively for the sale of alcohol). 

0 Section 146 (1) Selling alcohol to an individual aged under 18. 

0 Section 147 (1) Knowingly allowing the sale of alcohol to an individual under 18. 

0 Section 153 (1) knowingly allowing an individual under 18 to make a an unsupervised sale of alcohol. 

0 Section 179 (4) Intentionally obstructing any authorised person exercising a power of entry under section 179. 

The purpose of this notice Is to Inform you that the failure to comply with the Licensing Act 2003 may result in the 
pollee Initiating criminal proceedings against the DPS, premises licence holder, or both. This notice may also be 
used in evidence to support a review of the premises licence pursuant to section 51 Licensing Act 2003 and/or an 
application for a closure order under section 20 Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 

PL'ff 

Page 309



Appendix 12 

Page 310



RESTRICTED (when complete) 

WITNESS STATEMENT 
CJ Act 1967, s.9; MC Act 1980, ss.5A(3)(a) and 5B; Criminal Procedure Rules 2005, Rule 2 ~ 

Statement of Brendan Paul O'ROURKE ...................... URN: I 01 / HT / I 13 
~----~----~----------~--~ 

Age if under 18 Over 18 ............. . (if over 18 insert 'over 18') Occupation: Police Officer 230222 ............ . 

This statement (consisting of: .... 3 ...... pages each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and I 
make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated anything in it 
which I know to be false, or do not believe to be true . 

Signature:  .......... Q.t~t .\\( ................... . Date: 26/10/2013 ·· ········· ········· ····· 

Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded U (supply witness details on rear) 

This statement is in relation to a test purchase at 34 WHITECHURCH LANE, LONDON E1 7QR 

on Saturday 26th October 2013 and the Breach of a Sec 19 Closure Notice -

Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 -issued at 00:45 hours on 5th October 2013 

I am a police officer with the Licensing Unit of Tower Hamlets Borough Police. 

On Saturday, 26th October 2013, I was on duty in plain clothes in the company ofMs Kathy Driver, the 

Principle Licensing Officer for The London Borough of Tower Hamlets, carrying out joint enforcement 

and compliance licensing visits. 

At approximately 00:20 hours we drove past the above premises and saw that there was a member of 

staff inside and two males banging on the door to be let in. As we watched the member of staff opened 

the door and let the two males in. At that point Ms DRIVER went to the door and she was allowed in. 

At 00:25 hours she exited and showed me a can of alcohol that she had just purchased (having 

undertaken a 'test purchase'), I knew this to be in breach of their Premises Licence and additionally a 

breach of a Section 19 Closure Notice - Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001, issued by myself on 

Saturday, 5th October at 00:45 hours. 

I then observed one of the two males inside select a bottle of Smimoff Vodka, I saw he paid for it and 

started to exit the shop. I then entered the premises and produced my warrant card and badge to the 

males and the member of staff identifying myself as a police officer, saying "HELLO I AM PC 

Signature:  ... .e.~ .. ~ .. ~ .. ~.( Signature witnessed by: N/A ............... .. ...................................... " ... . 

12006/07(1): MG li(T)I RESTRICTED (when complete) Page 311



RESTRICTED (when completed) 
Page 2 of3 

Continuation of Statement of Brendan Paul O'ROURKE ... ... .. .. .. ..... ....... .. ............. ......... .. ...... ...... .. ... ... .. ..... ... ..... . 

O'ROURKE FROM TOWER HAMLETS LICENSING, CAN I JUST HAVE A WORD PLEASE, 

DON'T WORRY YOU ARE NOT IN TROUBLE" (to the male buying the vodka). 

I then explained to the males that the shop was open 'after hours' and that the alcohol had been sold in 

breach of their licence. I then asked the member of staff, who I recognised as the DPS Mr Abdul LA TIB 

to refund the gentleman which he did. There was some small confusion as the male had paid £13.49, but 

was refunded £14.00. I said that was a matter for the both of you and the males left. 

Mr LA TIB started immediately started making excuses "I WAS CLOSED, THEY BEGGED ME FOR 

A DRINK BECAUSE THEY HAD A PIZZA I HAVE NOT SOLD ANYTHING ELSE TO 

ANYONE". 

At that point Ms DRIVER introduced herself as a Council Official presenting her warrant card to him 

and I heard her say "THAT'S NOT TRUE I JUST BOUGHT A CAN OF LAGER FROM YOU AND 

YOU NOT TELL ME NO". 

I then asked Mr LATIB to confirm his name, date of birth and address for me which he did stating 

Abdul LATIB; DOB 18/09/1985; 35, WHITECHURCH LANE, LONDON E1 7QR 

I seized the bottle ofSmimoffVodka (that he had just sold) from the counter and I produce this in 

evidence as exhibit BOR/1 -sealed in evidence bag C36675930. 

I then inspected Part A of the Premises Licence to confirm that the shop should cease the sale of alcohol 

at 23:00 hours and be completely closed by 23:30 hrs. This is my fourth visit to the premises in as little 

as 21 days in which I have now recorded four separate licensing offences being committed. It simply 

appears that Mr LA TIB has no regard for his Premises Licence, nor licensing legislation and is 

incapable of managing an off-licence. He has ignored my advice given to him in the Section 19 Notice 

of 5th October 2013 and again tonight (between 00:30 hours and 01:00 hours) there was a constant 

stream of customers banging on the door and actually getting quite vocal and aggressive when told by 

Ms DRIVER or myselfthat the shop was closed. This is almost 1 Y2 hours after the whole premises 

should be closed and 2 hours after the sales of alcohol should cease. 

Signature:  ....... /. 
1 I l-It 

Signature witnessed by: N/A .. .... .. . _ .... ... ... .. .. .. .. .. ... .... .. ........ ...... . . 

2003(1) Page 312



RESTRICTED (when completed) 
Page3of3 

Continuation of Statement of Brendan Paul O'ROURKE .... ... ........... .... .............. ... ... ........ ............. ... ........ ... ... .. .. .. 

I then completed one Met Police Licensing Form from 'Book 694' "Notification of alleged offences 

under the Licensing Act 2003", ticking the following offences: 

o -SECTION 136 (1) CARRYING ON OR ATTEMPTING TO CARRY ON A 

LICENSABLE ACTIVITY ON OR FROM ANY PREMISES OTHERWISE AND IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH AN AUTHORISATION OR KNOWINGLY ALLOWING A 

LICENSABLE ACITIVITY TO BE CARRIED ON' 

o 'UNDER SECTION 137 (1) EXPOSING ALCOHOL FOR RETAIL SALE WITHOUT 

AN AUTHORISATION', 

He signed the Form 694 and I gave him a copy. I produce this in evidence as exhibit BOR/2- sealed in 

evidence bag C36783330. 

I then explained the form to him and further that the Police would be making an application to Thames 

Magistrates Court next week under Section 20 to seek a Closure Order for the premises. Ms DRIVER 

advised him to go to a solicitor for advice, stressing how serious the situation could be for his business. 

At that time, we were unsure about the need to further report for process in regards to the 'test purchase' 

and sale of the vodka as that caused the breach of the Section 19. However having returned to the police 

station, it appears to me that the guidance from the Home Office is quite clear and essentially as another 

(and separate) offence has occurred, I shall return tonight and formally 'report for process' Mr LA TIB 

for this matter. 

I then left the premises. AI 1 v c{ 

Signature: N/A ....... ................ ........ .. .................... . 

2003(1) Page 313



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 13 

Page 315



RESTRICTED (when complete) 

WITNESS STATEMENT 
CJ Act 1967, s.9; MC Act 1980, ss.5A(3)(a) and 5B; Criminal Procedure Rules 2005, Rule 27.1 

Statement of Brendan Paul O'ROURKE ............. ...... ... URN: I 01 I HT I I 13 
~----~----~----------~--~ 

Age if under 18 Over 18 ............ .. (if over 18 inse11 'over 18 ' ) Occupation: Police Officer 230222 ............ . 

This statement (consisting of: .... 2.. .. .. pages each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and I 
make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution ifl have wilfully stated anything in it 
which I know to be false, or do not believe to be true. 

Signature:  .............. f..J. .. ~.(~~l...... Date: 26/10/2013 .... ... ...... .......... .. 

Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded D (supply witness details on rear) 

This statement is in relation to the Report for Summons in regards a test purchase at Low Cost Food 

34 WHITECHURCH LANE, LONDON El 7QR on Saturday 26th October 2013. 

I am a police officer with the Licensing Unit of Tower Hamlets Borough Police. This statement is linked 

to the one timed at 01:30 hours of today. 

On Saturday, 26th October 2013, I was on duty in plain clothes when at approximately 22:05 hours I 

attended at the above premises and met Mr LATIB, who recognised me on entering, greeting me with "I 

AM NEVER GOING TO FORGET YOU". 

I said to him "THERE IS JUST ONE MA ITER I NEED TO CLARIFY WITH YOU FROM THIS 

MORNING AND THAT IS THAT I NEED TO REPORT YOU FOR OPENING LATE AND 

SELLING ALCOHOL AFTER HOURS". 

I then said "I SHOULD POINT OUT THAT IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 136 OF THE 

LICENSING ACT TO CARRY ON OR ATTEMPT TO CARRY ON A LICENSABLE ACTIVITY 

ON OR FROM ANY PREMISES OTHERWISE AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH AN 

AUTHORISATION OR KNOWINGLY ALLOWING A LICENSABLE ACITIVITY TO BE 

CARRIED ON, WHICH BASICALLY MEANS OPENING AFTER TIME AND SELLING 

ALCOHOL AFTER TIME". 

Signature:  f..L~ .. Ur(;,ignature witnessed by: N/A ................. ....... ......... .................. .... ... . 

12006/07(1): MG 11(T)I RESTRICTED (when complete) Page 316



RESTRICTED (when completed) 
Page 2 of2 

Continuation of Statement of Brendan Paul O'ROURKE .............. .. ....... ....... .... ..... .. ... .... ....... ....... .... ... ..... ... .. ... .. . . 

I then gave the 'Now' Caution and said "THE FACTS OF THE MATTER WILL BE REPORTED 

AND YOU MAY BE PROSECUTED". 

He made no reply. I recorded this in an Evidence and Actions Book (EAB). He asked me ifthere was 

any paperwork for this one and I advised no, other than the form he had received this morning. 

I then left the premises. 

Signature: Signature witnessed by: N/A .. .... ... .... ..... ... ... ....... .... ... .......... ..... . 

2003(1) Page 317



Appendix 14 

Page 318



perf 

PRINTER- 4-PART NCR- Top COPY (WHITE) 

Book 694 
METROPOLITAN 

POLICE TOTAL POLICING Venue Copy 

Notification of alleged offences under the Licensing Act 2003 

ven"e N'me' . .• {Y..f~. ~t_S .. 'L0- .... ~-(.~·T··-.. ··c-~ -·· -· ..... REF' (CAD/CRIS eto.) ......... ... - .. - •. -. 

Address . .. •.. ?::> .... ~--"l" · · · ········ · ·hJ-~. \. ....... e. .... , .... ..... C .... , .. V .... J .b .... , ..... . .. Ji! .... ~ .. -- ... -... _ ... _)·······y --·--·-- ······ .. ·····- --.. -··--~--- - · · 
... w .. r.:::t.~ .. V.cL .... _ ........ f:. ..... L. ...... ): .. Q.~.-... -............... £; .......... -............ _ ........ --... --..... ~ Date:d:.b .. JJtl ).1 ..... Time: . .9 Q_lt _____ _ 
Details of person 1n charge at the relevant l1me: ___ v.:.r.-_ ...... _1_M.L ............ l .. A:...:r:=...\.~ ......... _ ... _ ........ --................. -............. _ .. _ .... ........... .. 
........ - .................... --... - ............................................ --.. -· .. •·-·-- .... -............................................ _ .. ___ .. _, ..................... - ...... - DPS Q"' Personal Licence Holder lW 
Summary of alleged offences identified 

D Section 57(4) Failure to secure premises licence or a certified copy at the premises or to prominently display a 
summary of the Licence. 

D Section 57 (7) Failure to produce a premises licence or a certified copy. 

D Section 109 (4) Failure to secure that a copy of the Temporary Event Notice (TEN) is prominently displayed at the 
premises or secure that a copy of the TEN is in the custody of an appropriate person. 

D Section 109 (8) Failure to produce a TEN to a police officer. 

D S)ftion 135 (4) Failure to produce a personal licence to a police officer. 

~ection 136 (1) Carrying on or attempting to carry on a licensable activity on or from any premises otherwise and in_./ 
accordance with an authorisatation or knowingly allowing a llcensable activity to be carried on. (Sec19 issued Y 0 No [lJ..r 

~ion 137 (1) Exposing alcohol for retail without an authorisation. (Sec19 issued YO No~ 
D Section 138 (1) Keeping alcohol on a premises for an unauthorised sale. (Sec19 issued Y 0 No 0) 

D Section 140 (1) Knowingly allowing disorderly conduct on a licensed premises. 

D Section 141 ( 1) Knowingly selling or attempting or allowing alcohol to be sold to a person who is drunk. 

D Section 144 (1) Knowingly keeping or allowing non duty paid goods or unlawfully imported goods to be kept on 
premises. 

D Section 145 (1) Allowing an unaccompanied child on a premises (used primarily or exclusively for the sale of alcohol). 

D Section 146 (1) Selling alcohol to an individual aged under 18. 

D Section 14 7 ( 1) Knowingly allowing the sale of alcohol to an individual under 18. 

D Section 153 (1) knowingly allowing an individual under 18 to make a an unsupervised sale of alcohol. 

D Section 179 (4) Intentionally obstructing any authorised person exercising a power of entry under section 179. 

Details of alleged o~nce(s) X!cludl~g ~elevant Cad iJlnd Crime repmt details: f I 
Q ( ~\ y._"{ \,.,/\ W\{ )'\\..( 0o ~ CA lt tty- ~\Nt I('~ Vfi..J 

r , , I ~ t ( tvl1) . f , ( V'-\ , }4. .\ ~ Lu. tt 
(I "- ~ ~ \..v,....-c c.. 

){ \•\L\vt ~(~(.(tlt ~ ~ ~((v'~) ~c\rq-~ ( 1. 

l) (/~ k-"' 01\,.. 

l~( c lvx~ 

~~~~ 

The purpose of this notice is to inform you that the failure to comply with the Licensing Act 2003 may result in the 
pofice initiating criminal proceedings against the DPS, premises licence holder, or both. This notice may also be 
used in evidence to support a review of the premises licence pursuant to section 51 Licensing Act 2003 and/or an 
application for a closure order under section 20 Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 

pecf 

Page 319



Appendix 15 

Page 320



RESTRICTED- FOR LICENSING AND PROSECUTION ONLY 
(when complete) 

WITNESS STATEMENT 

(CJ Act 1967, s.9; MC Act 1980, ss.5A(3) (a) and 58; MC Rules 1981, r.70) 

MGll 

URN I I I I I L_ __ L_ __ L_ ____ L___J 

Statement of: Alexander Lisowski .. .. .... ........... ... ... .. ......... .... .... ......................... ........... ....... .. ............................ ... . . 

Age if under 18: Over 18 ... ........... (if over 18 insert 'over 18') Occupation: Licensing Officer ... ............. ............. .. 

This statement (consisting of two page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief 
and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated 
anything in it, which I kno"'! to be false, or do not believe to be true. 

Signature: ............... ......................................... . Date4th October, 2013 ......... 

I am a licensing officer for The London Borough of Tower Hamlets. 

The Off Licence, 34 White Church Lane, London, E1 7QR, has a premises licence for the 

off-sale of alcohol. Condition 1, in Annex 3 of the licence states, "The premises will not sell 

any beer, lager or cider that exceeds the strength of 5.6% ABV or higher unless 3 or more 

bottles/cans are purchased together." I present a copy of the premises licence as 

Exhibit AL/1. 

On Tuesday, 2nd October, 2013, I was on duty with Mr lain Waring, a Council environmental 

health officer, and Police Constables Alan Cruickshank and Brendan O'Rourke. At 

approximately 15.42pm Mr Waring went to 34 White Church Lane to make a test purchase. 

The rest of us waited nearby. Mr Waring returned with a can of "Skol Super" lager which he 

told me he had purchased, on it's own, at the off-licence (Exhibit AL/2). The alcoholic strength 

of the lager was shown on the can as 9% ABV. On both sides of the can, in the middle, are 

the words, "Skol Super''. Underneath that is the phrase "Ale 9% Vol". 

We all then went to the off-licence. Behind the counter at the off-licence was a man I now 

know to be Homaon Rashid. Mr Waring identified Mr Rashid as the man who had sold him the 

Signature: 

2004(1) 

Signature witnessed by: 

Page 321



RESTRICTED- FOR LICENSING AND PROSECUTION ONLY 
(when complete) 

CONTINUATION OF STATEMENT OF WITNESS 
(Criminal Procedure Rules r27.1(1): Criminal Justice Act 1967, 

S.9; Magistrates Courts Act 1980 58 

can of Skol Super. I pointed out the offence of selling high strength lager, contrary to the 

Gil 

conditions of the shop's premises licence, to Mr Rashid. I then reported and cautioned him for 

the offence, at 15.42pm. He made no reply to caution.  

Witness contact details 

Home address: 

Postcode: 

Home telephone No: Work telephone No: 

Page 322



Appendix 16 

Page 323



RESTRICTED- FOR LICENSING AND PROSECUTION ONLY 
(when complete) 

WITNESS STATEMENT 

(CJ Act 1967, s.9; MC Act 1980, ss.5A(3) (a) and 58; MC Rules 1981, r. 70) 

MGll 

URN I I I I I 
~--L---L-----L-~ 

Statement of: I an Wareing ...................... ... .. ................................. ...... ................ ....... ...................................... ..... . 

Age if under 18: Over 18 ......... .. .. . (if over 18 insert 'over 18') Occupation: Technical Officer, Environmental 
Protection ................................ .... . 

This statement (consisting of one page each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and 
I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated 
anything in it, which I know to be false, or do not believe to be true. 

Signature: ... ...... ............. .... ..... .. ....... ........ ............ ............................. ...... ..... .. .. Date 9th October, 2013 ........ 

I am an Environmental Health Technical Officer employed by the London Borough of Tower 

Hamlets Council. On Tuesday, 2nd October, 2013 at 15.42 I entered an Off Licence at 34 

White Church Lane, London, E1 7QR. As I entered the premises, I noticed a large display 

cabinet on my right hand side. Towards the bottom of the cabinet I saw a can of Skol Super. I 

picked up the can and saw that it was a high strength beer as it had 9% Vol written on it. I 

queued behind a white male and then reached the counter to be served by a slim Asian male 

with a black beard. He appeared to be the only member of staff in the shop. I put the can of 

drink on the counter and he said "one pound forty five please". I gave the man a ten pound 

note; he then returned Eight pounds and fifty five pence. I then left the shop and headed north 

on Whitechurch Lane to meet with my colleagues from the Police, PC Alan Cruickshank and 

PC Brendan O'Rourke, and from London Borough of Tower Hamlets Licensing, Mr Alex 

Lisowski. I explained to them what had just happened. We then all returned to the off licence, 

where I was asked by Alex Lisowski if the man behind the counter was the man that had 

served me and, I confirmed it was the same. 

Signature: 

2004(1) 

Signature witnessed by: 
Page 324



Appendix 17 

Page 325



RESTRICTED- FOR LICENSING AND PROSECUTION ONLY 
(when complete) 

WITNESS STATEMENT 

(CJ Act 1967, s.9; MC Act 1980, ss.5A(3) (a) and 58; MC Rules 1981, r. 70) 

MG II 

URN I I I I I 
Statement of: Andrew Heron ...................................................................................................... ........................... . 

Age if under 18: Over 18 ............... (If over 181nsert 'over 18') Occupation: LICENSING OFFICER .................... .. 

This statement (consisting of 5 page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and 
I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated 
anything in it, which I know to be false, or do not believe to be true. 

Signature: ........• ~ .................. Date . .i.l.:!.s..~.2R.I3 ... L .. 

Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded (supply witness details on rear) 

I am Andrew Heron and I am employed as a Licensing Officer by the London Borough of 

Tower Hamlets. On 4th October 2013 I was working with Metropolitan Police Officer Brendan 

O'ROURKE (PC 291 HT) into the early hours of 51
h October 2013. 

At 00:15 I parked the Tower Hamlet Trading Standards departmental van in Adler Street, E1 

while PC O'ROURKE went to an Off Licence at 34 White Church Lane, E1 7QR to attempt a 

test purchase of alcohol. PC O'ROURKE returned to the van some 5 minutes later and 

showed that he had purchased x1 can Guinness. He then returned to the premises to make a 

further purchase and returned with x1 can 'K' cider with a packet of crisps and advised that 

they had cost £2.24. I moved the van to Coke Street, E1 where the can of 'K' cider was 

placed into Evidence Bag LA035239. I accompanied PC O'ROURKE to the premises. 

We arrived at the off licence at 00:35. I showed my warrant to the IC4 gentleman behind the 

till, who identified himself to be Mr Humaon RASHID. I asked him to close the shop, which he 

did. The door was locked, the 'open' sign was turned around and the illuminated 'open' sign 

was switched off. 

Signature: 

2004(1) 

Signature witnessed by: 

Page 326



RESTRICTED- FOR TRADING STANDARDS AND 
PROSECUTION ONLY 

(when complete) 

CONTINUATION OF STATEMENT OF WITNESS 
(Criminal Procedure Rules r27.1(1): Criminal Justice Act 1967, 

5.9; Magistrates Courts Act 1980 58 

Gil 

Mr RASHID showed us his driving licence which gave a 008: 01/01/1988. He advised that he 

also had a personal licence with London Borough of Tower Hamlets, but that he did not have it 

with him. I asked Mr RASHID what time the premises licence allows them to sell alcohol. He 

advised that they could sell alcohol until 23:30. I pointed to the summary of the premises 

licence that was along from the counter (numbered: 16774) and showed that it states 23:00. I 

advised that PC O'ROURKE had been served past midnight, to which PC O'ROURKE advised 

he had been served by Mr RASHID. 

Another IC4 gentleman came behind the counter. He identified himself as Mr Abdul LATIB, 

the DPS on the licence. I asked him what time he can sell alcohol until, which he replied 

23:30. I advised that PC O'ROURKE had been served after midnight, to which he said he 

didn't know as he hadn't been in the shop, which PC O'ROURKE stated that Mr LATIB had 

been present at the time of the test purchases. Mr LATIB apologised. I asked to see a full 

copy of the licence, which he was able to produce. It was in an envelope behind the counter 

that also contained the decision of the Tower Hamlets Licensing Sub Committee to grant the 

licence, dated 5lh June 2013, signed by myself. I asked if he had read and understood the 

licence and the cover letter, which he reluctantly advised he had. I then took the main licence 

and looked at each condition in Annex 3 to see if there were currently any breaches. 

Condition 1 states: The premises will not sell any beer, larger or cider that exceeds the strength of 

5.6% abv or higher unless 3 or more bottles/cans are purchased together'. I advised that I was 

aware that he had received advice about this over the phone earlier that day with my colleague, 

Licensing Officer Alex Lisowski, which he agreed he had made a phone call to the Council. 

Signature: 

2004(1) 

Signature witnessed by: 

Page 327



RESTRICTED- FOR TRADING STANDARDS AND 
PROSECUTION ONLY 

(when complete) 

CONTINUATION OF STATEMENT OF WITNESS 
(Criminal Procedure Rules r27.1(1): Criminal Justice Act 1967, 

S.9; Magistrates Courts Act 1980 58 

Gil 

advised that not only had they sold after their hours, but that they had sold a single can of high 

strength alcohol. Mr LATIB said that he did not understand the condition, he thought that he had 

the same conditions on the licence as when he had previously owned an off licence across the 

road at 35 White Church Lane. I advised that he and I had been at the Hearing and had received 

the decision letter which clearly stated that this condition had been added. 

Conditions 2 and 3 state: 'CCTV camera system covering both internal and external to the 

premises is to be installed'; 'The CCTV recordings are to be maintained for 30 days and to be 

provided upon request to either a Police Officer or an officer of any other Responsible Authority'. I 

asked if they had CCTV, to which he pointed at cameras mounted on the ceiling. I asked if it was 

working, for which he agreed it was. I asked to see where we could watch the recording, he 

advised that it was in the basement, I asked to see it. As I was shown to the door of the 

basement, he said that it wasn't plugged in. I went downstairs and found that the unplugged 

CCTV monitor was face down on the floor. There was a bundle of wires which were explained to 

be to be for the CCTV system, that they did not yet have installed. I returned to the shop floor. 

Condition 5 states: 'Prominent and clearly legible notices shall be displayed at all exits of the 

premises requesting patrons to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and 

area quietly'. I asked where the signs were and was advised that there weren't any. 

Condition 11 states: 'The trader shall obtain and use a UV detection device to verify that duty 

stamps are valid'. I asked to see the UV light and was shown a system that was designed to be 

used on bank notes. I asked where the one was for use on duty stamps, which he did not 

understand what a duty stamp was. I asked for a large bottle of gin and showed the label, which 

Signature: 

2004(1) 

Signature witnessed by: 

Page 328



RESTRICTED- FOR TRADING STANDARDS AND 
PROSECUTION ONLY 

(when complete) 

CONTINUATION OF STATEMENT OF WITNESS 
(Criminal Procedure Rules r27.1(1): Criminal Justice Act 1967, 

S.9; Magistrates Courts Act 1980 58 

Gil 

they then tried to hold against the UV light, but due to the designed shape of the reader, it did not 

reflect the stamp. I said that I believed that it was inadequate for the purposes of complying with 

Condition 11. 

Condition 18 states: 'All exits and escape routes to those exits (including external escape routes) 

from the premises shall be shall be clearly marked, maintained in good repair, correct working 

order and kept free from all obstructions when the public are on the premises'. I asked where the 

exit signs were, but there were none in the shop. I was shown a door to the rear of the shop that 

led to an external fire exit. The outer fire exit was labelled, but the inner door in the shop was not. 

Condition 25 states: 'There shall be displayed at the entrance to the premises a sign, which is 

clearly visible to members of the public visiting the premises containing details of the trading hours 

under the premises licence'. I asked where the sign was, but Mr LA TIB that there was not one. 

Condition 33 states: 'A notice or notices shall be displayed in and at the entrance to the premises 

where they can be clearly seen and read and shall indicate that it is unlawful for persons under 18 

to purchase alcohol or for any person to purchase alcohol on behalf of a person under 18 years of 

age'. I asked where the sign was, but Mr LA TIB agreed that there was not one. 

Mr LA TIB showed us his personal licence, which had a Licence Number: MVDC594, issued by 

Mole Valley District Council. The address stated on the card (and on the premises licence 

was: 13A Hampstead Road, Dorking, Surrey, RH4 3AF. PC O'ROURKE asked if he still lived 

at that address, to which he advised it was now his cousin's address; that he had moved to 35 

White Church Lane since his shop had changed premises. I advised that he had a duty to 

Signature: 

2004(1) 

Signature witnessed by: 

Page 329



RESTRICTED- FOR TRADING STANDARDS AND 
PROSECUTION ONLY 

(when complete) 

CONTINUATION OF STATEMENT OF WITNESS 
(Criminal Procedure Rules r27.1(1): Criminal Justice Act 1967, 

S.9; Magistrates Courts Act 1980 58 

inform the Council as this is an offence under the Licensing Act 2003 not to keep it updated. 

Gil 

I told Mr LATIB that I had some genuine concerns with his ability to manage the off licence. 

Mr LATIB said that as it was his first mistake, we should let him off. I asked why the premises 

continued to be open and selling alcohol beyond its hours, he replied it was a mistake. 

For the entire duration of our visit to the premises, there was a constant stream of people 

trying to come into the shop, whom expressed annoyance that the premises was closed. In 

particular, there were x2 IC1 young gentlemen that said that they had been to the cash point to 

come back to buy booze, as he had told them to (pointing at Mr RASHID). I expressed 

concern that so many people were still coming to the shop expecting it to be open. 

PC O'ROURKE issued a Section 19 Closure Notice and a Notification of Alleged Offences 

Under Licensing Act 2003 form, giving the caution at 01 :18. 

We departed the premises at 01:20 and returned to the van, at which point the can of 

Guinness that had been purchased earlier was placed into Evidence Bag: LA035242. 

On Monday 7th October 2013, I conducted a Companies House search on NFU London Ltd. 

(company number: 8248216) and found that Abdul LATIB (DOB: 18.09.1985) had resigned as 

Director of the company 06/08/2013. The Director since that time has been Humaon RASHID 

(DOB: 01/01/1 988). I also found that Mr RASHID has a personal licence with Tower Hamlets 

(Licence No. 16812) addressed to 35 White Church Lane, London, E1 7QR. ~ 

Signature: Signature witnessed by: 

2004(1) Page 330



Appendix 18 

Page 331



RESTRICTED- FOR LICENSING AND PROSECUTION ONLY 
(when complete) 

WITNESS STATEMENT 
(CJ Act 1967, s.9; MCAct 1980, ss.5A(3) (a) and 58; MC Rules 1981 , r.70) 

MG II 

URN I I I I I 
Statement of: Kathy Joanne DRIVER .... ........................ ................................. ................ ................................ ..... .. 

Age if under 18: Over 18 ............... (If over 181nsert 'over 18') Occupation: LICENSING OFFICER .................... .. 

This statement (consisting of 3 page(s) each signed by me) Is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and 
I make it knowing that, if it is tendered In evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated 
anything In It, which I know to be false, or do not believe to be true. 

 ....................... . .......... .... . Date .. 2-J .. LuJz.al~ .... :. 
Tick If witness evidence Is visually recorded (supply witness details on rear) 

I am Kathy Joanne DRIVER and I am employed as a Principal Licensing Officer by the London 

Borough of Tower Hamlets in the Licensing Section of Consumer and Business Regulation 

Service. 

On 26th October 2013 I was working in partnership with Metropolitan Police with PC Brendan 

O'ROURKE under Operation Dymock, licensing compliance visits. 

At around 00:25 I arrived outside Low cost food and wine, 34 Whitechurch Lane, London E1 

7QR, as I stopped to observe the shutters were pulled halfway down, I saw an IC4 male open 

the door and let two IC1 males inside, I entered the premises, the shutters were down enough 

for me to gain access to the premises, the door was unlocked and the lights were on inside. 

Two IC1 males were at the counter. As I entered, the counter was on the left nearest to the 

entrance door, there were shelves of wine and beer on display on the right of the premises, I 

picked up a can of pepsi max from the fridge and went to the counter, behind the counter were 

shelves of spirits, I asked the IC4 male, who I now know to be Mr Abdul LATIB, for a small 

bottle of vodka, he asked me which one I wanted, I answered a bottle of Glens Vodka. He 

reached for the vodka and placed it on the counter and I gave him the can of pepsi. He 

charged me £7.99 plus 49p for the pepsi. I gave him £10 note and I received £1 .52 change. 

Signature  
2004(1 ) 

Signature witnessed by: 

Page 332



RESTRICTED- FOR TRADING STANDARDS AND 
, PROSECUTION ONLY 
· (when complete) 

CONTINUATION OF STATEMENT OF WITNESS 
(Criminal Procedure Rules r27.1(1): Criminal Justice Act 1967, 

S.9; Magistrates Courts Act 1980 58 

He placed the items in a small black carrier bag and I left the premises at 00:28. 

Gil 

I returned to the premises accompanied by PC O'ROURKE where the two IC1 males were still 

inside, PC O'ROURKE asked the two males if they had purchased alcohol, one of them 

proceeded to show a bottle of Smirnoff vodka from one of the carrier bags they held including 

other food items items. 

Myself and PC O'ROURKE showed our authorisations and introduced ourselves. PC 

O'Rourke advised the customers that they should not have been sold the alcohol. PC 

O'Rourke requested Mr. LATIB refund the cost of the vodka to the customers and advised he 

would be seizing the bottle as evidence. 

On request Mr. LA TIB was able to produce a copy of the licence which I now produce as 

licence no: 1677 4 I Exhibit WHITE34.001 which has been in place since 16th May 2013. 

I questioned Mr Latib whether the address on the licence was correct and he stated yes. The 

address given was 13A Hampstead Road, Dorking, Surrey RH4 3AF he then gave 

O'ROURKE a different residing address as 35 Whitechurch Lane, London E1 7QR. 

I advised Mr. Latib of the serious nature of our visit and that despite warnings he continued to 

sell alcohol. A number of people were trying to get in the premises whilst on the premises and 

in my view appeared they were somewhat surprised the premises had closed, so much so that 

they were hanging around outside for some time. 

Once O'ROURKE had completed his documentation we then left the premises. 

Signature:  Signature witnessed by: 

2004(1) 

Page 333



(Off Licence) 
34 White Church Lane 
London 
E17QR 

Licensable Activities authorised by the licence 

The sale by retail of alcohol 

See the attached licence for the licence conditions 

I identify this exhibit as that 
referred to in the statement 
signed by me 

Exhibit number: WHITE34.001 
Date: 27/11/201 ~ 
 
 

Signed by John McCrohan   
Trading Standards and Licensing Manager 

Date: 161
h May 2013 

1 
M:\lice"slng\Word97\2003 LlcAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\WhiteChurchlane34.docx 

Page 334



Part A • Format of premises licence 

Premises licence number 116774 

Part 1 - Premises details 
Postal address of premises, or If none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description 

34 White Church Lane 

Post town I Post code 
London E17QR 
Telephone number 
020 7246 0141 

Where the licence Is time limited the dates 

Not applicable 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 

The sale by retail of alcohol 

2 
M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & llcs\Prem Llcs\WhlteChurchlane34.doclt 

Page 335



The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 

Sale of Alcohol (off sales only) 

• Monday to Saturday from 07:00hrs to 23:00hrs 
• Sunday from 09:00hrs to 23:00hrs 

The opening hours of the premises 

• Monday to Saturday from 07:00hrs 23:30hrs 
• Sunday from 08:00hrs to 23:30hrs 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or 
off supplies 

• Off sales only 

3 
M:llicenslng\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Llcs\WhiteChurchlane34.docx 

Page 336



Part 2 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of 
holder of premises licence 

NFU London Ltd. 
35 White Church Lane 
London 
E17QR 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number 
(where applicable) 

8248216 

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor 
where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol 

Abdul Latib 
 

 

 

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by 
designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the 
supply of alcohol 

Licence Number: MVDC594 
Issuing Authority: Mole Valley District Council 

4 
M;\Licenslng\Word97\2003 LlcAcl c:erts & lics\Prem Lics\WhileChurchlane34 .docx 

Page 337



Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions 

No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence-

a} at a time where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the 
premises licence, or 

b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal 
licence or his personal licence is suspended 

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised 
by a person who holds a personal licence 

1. 

(1} The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall 
ensure that an age verification policy applies to the premises in 
relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible 
person to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be 
specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served 
alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a 
holographic mark. 

2. The responsible person shall ensure that; 

(a}where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for 
consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or 
supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply 
in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the 
following measures-

(i) beer or cider:% pint; 

(ii)gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and 

(b)customers are made aware of the availability of these measures. 

Annex 2 • Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 

None Applicable 

5 
M:\llcensing\Word97\2003 LlcAct certs & lics\Prem Llcs\WhiteChurchLane34.docx 

Page 338



Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 

1. The premises will not sell any beer, larger or cider that exceeds the strength of 
5.6% abv or higher unless 3 or more bottles/cans are purchased together; 

2. CCTV camera system covering both internal and external to the premises is to 
be installed; 

3. The CCTV recordings are to be maintained for 30 days and to be provided 
upon request to either a Police Officer or an officer of any other Responsible 
Authority; 

4. At all times when the premise is open, a person who can operate the CCTV 
system must be present on the premises; 

5. Prominent and clearly legible notices shall be displayed at all exits of the 
premises requesting patrons to respect the needs of local residents and to 
leave the premises and area quietly; 

6. No nudity or semi nudity permitted; 

7. Alcohol shall only be sold in sealed containers; 

8. The premises licence holder and any other persons responsible for the 
purchase of stock shall not purchase any goods from door to door sellers 
other than from established traders who provide full receipts at the time of 
delivery; 

9. The premises licence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods bought 
include the following details: 

i. Seller's name and address 
ii. Seller's company details, if applicable 
iii. Seller's VAT details, if applicable 
iv. Vehicle registration detail, if applicable 

10. Legible copies of the documents referred to in 9) shall be retained on the 
premises and made available to officers on request; 

11 . The trader shall obtain and use a UV detection device to verify that duty 
stamps are valid; 

12. Where the trader becomes aware that any alcohol may be not duty paid they 
shall inform the Police of this immediately; 

13. Every incident of crime or disorder in the premises shall be reported to the 
Police by the Designated Premises SupeiVisor (DPS) or a nominated member 

6 
M·\licenslng\Word97\2003 LlcAct earls & lics\Prem Lics\WhileChurchLane34.docx 

Page 339



of staff. The DPS and all members of staff shall ensure that all lawful and 
reasonable instructions and/or directions given by the Police are complied 
with; 

14. Before the premises are opened for the purposes authorised by the licence an 
inspection shall be carried out to ensure that the premises are safe for use; 

15. Emergency light and smoke detector system shall be installed at the locations 
marked, "emergency light" and "smoke detector" on the plan of the premises; 

16. Emergency Lighting will be tested in accordance with BS 5266 Part 1, 1999 
Emergency Lighting. The results of the tests will be recorded in a logbook; 

17. The fire alarm detection system will be tested in accordance with BS 5839 
Part 1 2002 Fire Detection and Fire Alarm Systems for buildings. The results 
of the tests will be recorded in a log book; 

18. All exits and escape routes to those exits (including external escape routes) 
from the premises shall be shall be clearly marked, maintained in good repair, 
correct working order and kept free from all obstructions when the public are 
on the premises; 

19. Fire fighting equipment shall be provided throughout the premises at suitable 
locations and be appropriate to the risk to comply with BS 5306 Part 8, 
Selection and Installation of Portable Fire Extinguishers; 

20. Fire fighting equipment shall be examined regularly by the manufacturer or 
other competent person and maintained and tested in accordance with BS 
5306 Part 3, 2000; 

21. All members of staff will be familiar with the operation of the fire fighting 
equipment; 

22. All staff shall be instructed and trained to ensure that they understand the fire 
precaution measures in the premises and the procedure and action to be 
taken in the event of fire; 

23. The electrical installation will be inspected annually; 

24. Any gas boiler, calorifier or other gas appliance will be tested on a regular 
basis. 

25. There shall be displayed at the entrance to the premises a sign, which is 
clearly visible to members of the public visiting the premises containing details 
of the trading hours under the premises licence; 

26. All staff shall be instructed and trained to ensure customers are discouraged 
from congregating outside the premises; 

7 
M:\Lieensing\Word97\2003 LicAct carts & lies\Prem Ucs\WhiteChurchLane34.docx 

Page 340



27. There shall be provided at the premises containers for the storage and 
disposal of waste foods and other refuse from the premises. Those containers 
shall be constructed, maintained and located so that access to them by vermin 
and unauthorised persons is prevented and arrangements shall be made for 
the regular lawful disposal of their contents; 

28. The premises will only be open to the public between the hours as set in this 
application; 

29. All staff shall be instructed and trained to ensure no deliveries of stock are 
made to the premises between 22:00hrs and 08:00hrs on any day; 

30. All staff shall be instructed and trained to ensure that external illumination 
signs are switched off when the premises are closed for licensable activities; 

31. All staff shall be instructed and trained to ensure the sale or supply of alcohol 
is prohibited to any person who is intoxicated; 

32. There shall be in place for the premises a written policy to prevent the sale or 
supply of alcohol to persons under 18 years of age. That policy shall require 
any person who appears to be under the age of 18 years to produce a 
recognised proof of age card accredited under the Proof of Age Standards 
Scheme (PASS), a citizen card supported by the Home Office, a photo driving 
licence, a passport or official HM Forces or EU 10 card bearing photo and date 
of birth; 

33. A notice or notices shall be displayed in and at the entrance to the premises 
where they can be clearly seen and read and shall indicate that it is unlawful 
for persons under 18 to purchase alcohol or for any person to purchase 
alcohol on behalf of a person under 18 years of age. 

Annex 4 • Plans 

The plans are those submitted to the licensing authority on the following date: 

141
h January 2013 (Drawing Number: 2012/ 014/003) 

8 
M;\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & tics\Prem Lics\WhiteChurchLane34.docx 

Page 341



I Part B - Premises licence summary 

Premises licence number 116774 

Premises details 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description 

34 White Church Lane 

Post town Post code 
London E17QR 

Telephone number 
 

Where the licence is time limited the 
dates 

Licensable activities authorised by the 
licence 

Not Applicable 

The sale by retail of alcohol 

9 
M:lllcensing\Woro97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\WhiteChurchlane34.docx 

Page 342



The times the licence authorises the 
carrying out of licensable activities 

The opening hours of the premises 

Name, (registered) address of holder 
of premises licence 

Where the licence authorises supplies 
of alcohol whether these are on and I 
or off supplies 

Registered number of holder, for 
example company number, charity 
number (where applicable) 

Sale of Alcohol (off sales only) 

• Monday to Saturday from 07:00hrs 
to 23:00hrs 

• Sunday from 09:00hrs to 23:00hrs 

• Monday to Saturday from 07:00hrs 
23:30hrs 

• Sunday from 08:00hrs to 23:30hrs 

NFU London Ltd. 
35 White Church Lane 
London 
E17QR 

I Off sales only 

18248216 

Name of designated premises I 
supervisor where the premises licence Abdul Lat1b 
authorises for the supply of alcohol 

~----------------------------~ 

State whether access to the premises I 
by children is restricted or prohibited L_N_o_r-es-t-ri-ct-io_n_s ____________________ ...J 

10 
M \Licenslng\Word97\2003 LicAcl certs & lics\Prem Lics\WhileChurchlane34.docx 

Page 343



Appendix 19 

Page 344



METROPOLITAN 
POLICE 

Mr Abdul LATIB 
13 A Hampstead Road 
Dorking 
Surrey 
RH43AF 

Dear Mr Latib, 

TOTAL POLICING 

Tower Hamlets Borough 
Licensing Office 

Limehouse Police Station, 
West India Dock Road, 
London, 
E14 8EZ 

Office: 020 7275 4950/4911 
Mobile :07B25 850 906 

Email: 
Brendan.O'Rourke@met.pnn.police.uk 

Your ref: 
Our ref: LIC/301013/13 

30th October 2013 

Re: Section 19 Closure Notice- issued 05/10/13 for 34, White Church Lane, LONDON E1 7QR 

Further to the Section 19 Closure Notice -Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 -that police issued to 
you on 05/10/13 at 00:45 hours - it is without further notice cancelled and withdrawn by police. 

In regards to the alleged breach of this Section 19 Closure Notice on 26/1 0/13 at 00:25 hours that 
matter is therefore also concluded and there will be no action at Thames Magistrates Court this week, 
(as advised last Saturday 26/10/13 in regards the alleged breach). 

If you have any questions about this, please don't hesitate to contact me. 

 
Brendan O'Rourke 
PC 291 HT 

Page 345



Appendix 20 

Page 346



METROPOliTAN 

POLICE 

Mr Abdul LATIB 
13 A Hampstead Road 
Dorking 
Surrey 
RH4 3AF 

Dear Mr Latib, 

TOTAL POLICING 

Tower Hamlets Borough 
Licensing Office 

Limehouse Police Station, 
West India Dock Road, 
London, 
E14 8EZ 

Office: 020 7275 4950/4911 
Mobile:07825 850 906 

Email: 
Brendan.O'Rourke@met.pnn.police.uk 

Your ref: 
Our ref: LIC/011113/13 

1st November 2013 

Re: Request under Sec 51 Licensing Act for a Review of Premises Licence 
Low Cost Food and Wine, 34, White Church Lane, LONDON E1 7QR. 

Please find attached a copy of the application police have made to review your premises licence. 

If you have any questions about this, please da,(l't hesitate to contact me. 

Brendan O'Rourke 
PC 291 HT 

Page 347



--· ----· ---·-· --· ---· -·--· --· -· 
........ --"· ·---· -· -

• •••• ••••••,.-utrn"'lfll"tr"'t-tUnurtrt tll 
t It I I' I I 1 I I It I It i • 

1111 11111111111111111111111111 IIIII d 111111 
If It If I I I I j It I I I 1 1 

1111 1111111111111111111111 11 ·111111111111 11 
I I I I I I I If I I I I I I I • 1 1 I 

1111 111111111111111111111' 1111111111111111 
j I I I I I I It I I I , • I 1 -I 1 t 

1111 1111111111111111111 111111111) 11111111 
,~,,·, irl

1

11
1

llrr'rr'rl
1

ll'r t u itr'r lr il'u ir II r'1 ir 
I I I f I f I I I j 1 I I I I I 1 4 4 1 

1111-u.JIIIIIIIIIIIII l IIIIIIJIII II 111111 II II 
I I I I I It I I I 1·'1 I I I • 1' I 

l
1
ll,ll,ll

1
ll,l,I:J,I:_U f

1
1 1,1 l,ll,ll

1
ll

1
11,11,11

1
11

1
11}1.11

1
ll

1
ll

1
1 

1111111111 Ill llll.lt#VIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII 
l'rt'r!'ttll II~,,, ir V 1i ih~~ It '11

1

11'1 irt
1

11,tlll'r 
l11'1r'1 ir 1 irrjl11 irr'rr

1

111 ~~" ' 'r r'rr'rrr i1 
,·, r'r ir 111 11 Mr r'r i1r'r !

1

11'1 r'rt'rr'111r'ru11 ·r i· 111 
ir ir ir irr'r 1!'1 itl

1

1 i1 irr'1r'rr'r ir r'1 ,~,,·,,·1 irr'rfl'l', 
I I I I I I ' I , I I ' I I I I I I I • I 
1111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111 
~ I I I I I I I I I I I I i' I I I I I I I I I 

llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll 
I I I I I I I I r I I I I f I I I I I I I I 

llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll ll 
1 I I I I I I I I I I I 1 I I I I I I If I I 

1111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111 
I I I I 4 I I I I I I I I I I f I I If I I 

1111111111111111111111 1111111111111111111111 
I It I I I I I I I I I If . I I I I I I I 

1111111111111111111111 1111111111111111111111 
I I I I I I I I I I I I l I It I I I I I I 

llllllllllllllllllllll llllllllllllllllllll ll 
I I I I I I I I I I I It I I If I I I I I 

llllllllilllllllllllll llllllllllllllllllllll 
I J I I j I I I I I I f I I It I I I I I I 

llllllllilllllllllllll lllllfllllllllllllllll 
J I It I I I I I, I I I I I I J t I I I I 

llllll llllllllllllllll llllllllllllllllllllll 
I I 1ft I I I I I I I It I I I I I I I I I 

IIII IIIIIIIJIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII 

6~6~~666~~6611~66~~~~~~~ 
I It I I I I It • I r f I I <1/ It I It I p 
'lllllllllllllllt llllltllllllllltllllllllll' 

.,, 

' . 

'I 
' 1\ 

' II 
' ., .. 

' :,\ 

II. 

- ·---

1\ . 

. ~ 
I 

;;t . 

il '>· 

f.l 
l 
I 

I 

' I~ 

I, '•, 
ll!l l •• -; ... 

Page 348



Appendix 21 

Page 349



METROPOLITAN 
POLICE 

Mr Abdul LATIB 
13 A Hampstead Road 
Dorking 
Surrey 
RH4 3AF 

Dear Mr Latib, 

TOTAL POLICING 

Tower Hamlets Borough 
Licensing Office 

Limehouse Police Station, 
West India Dock Road, 
London, 
E14 SEZ 

Office: 020 7275 4950/4911 
Mobile:07825 850 906 

Email: 
Brendan.O'Rourke@met.pnn.police.uk 

Your ref: 
Our ref: LIC/011113/13 

5th November 2013 

Re: Request under Sec 51 Licensing Act for a Review of Premises Licence 
Low Cost Food and Wine, 34, White Church Lane, LONDON E1 7QR. 

Further to the letter sent to you on 1st November and a copy of the application to review your 
premises licence. 

I apologise for not making clear what sanction t~e police seek- which is the revocation of your 
premises licence. 

If you have any questions about this, please don't hesitate to contact me. 

Yours sincerely, 

 
Brendan O'Rourke 
PC 291 HT 

Page 350



Appendix 22 

Page 351



METROPOLITAN 
POLICE 

Mr Abdul LATIB 
Low Cost Food and Wine, 
34, White Church Lane, 
LONDON 
E1 7QR. 

Dear Mr Latib, 

Re: Your correct address? 

TOTAL POLICING 

Tower Hamlets Borough 
Licensing Office 

Limehouse Police Station, 
West India Dock Road, 
London, 
E14 BEZ 

Office: 020 7275 4950/4911 
Mobile:07825 850 906 

Email: 
Brendan.O'Rourke@met.pnn.police.uk 

Your ref: 
Our ref: LIC/011113/13 

5th November 2013 

As police have several different addresses for you, including the address as shown on your premises 
licence of 13 A Hampstead Road, Dorking, Surrey RH4 3AF and another local address of 35 White 
Church Lane, London E1 7QR. 

Could you please confirm which is the correct address for correspondence? 

For continuity, I have enclosed copy correspondence recently sent to you at the address you have 
given on your premises licence in Surrey. 

If you have any questions about this, please don't hesitate to contact me. 

 
Brendan O'Rourke 
PC 291 HT 

Page 352



Appendix 23 

Page 353



Commun~ 
Ug~~l S.rvl<e 

5 

miramar legal 

T +44 [0)203 328 1600 

F +44 (0)203 328 1601 

Oakwood House 

422 Hackne~ Road 

London E2 7SY 

PC 291 HT Brendan O'Rourke 
Licensing Unit 

info~miramarlegal co uk 

www miramarlegal co uk 

ox 40900 

Bethnal Green 

Date: 27 November 2013 
Our ref: 
Your ref: LIC/011113/13 
DDI:  Limehouse Police StatiQn 

West India Dock Road 
London E14 BEZ 

Email:  

Sent by post and e-mail: 
Brendan.O'Rourke@met.pnn.police.uk 

Dear Sir, 

Re: Request under Sec 51 Licensing Act for a Review of Premises License 
Low Cost Food and Wine, 34, White Church Lane, London El 7QR 

We refer to your letter dated 5th November 2013. 

Mr. Abdul Latib has instructed us in respect of the revocation of his premises licence and 
wishes to settle this matter before the hearing takes place at the Magistrates Court on the 
5th December 2013. 

We would be grateful if you could kindly contact us as soon as possible. 

Yours faithfully 

  
MIRAMAR LEGAL 

.,.~ 

~.,·~~ 

~• ,!i''l'fmmlgratlon 
'!1( Law . 

•. 

www.miramarlegal.co.uk 
Authorised and regulated by the SoliCitors Regulation Authority under registration number 510620 

We do not accept service by fax or email 

Mohit Chopra 

Adam Myeroff 

Paul Levy 

Page 354



Appendix 24 

Page 355



RESTRICTED (when complete) IMo 11 ml 

CJ Act 1967, ,.9; MC Act~!o~~~~(~ ~~! I!~~~:L Rules 2005, Rule 27 (!:) 
Statement of Brendan Paul O'ROURKE........ .... .......... URN: I 01 I HT / j 13 

~----~-----L----------~---4 

Age if under 18 Over 18 .. ........... . (if over 18 insert 'over 18') Occupation: Police Officer 230222 ............ . 

This statement (consisting of: .... 3 ...... pages each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and I 
make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated anything in it 
which I know to be false, or do not believe to be true. 

Signature: Date: 08/12/2013 ................... ..... . 

Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded U (supply witness details on rear} 

This statement is in relation to breaches of the Licensing Act 2003 

at 34 WHITECHURCH LANE, LONDON E1 7QR 

I am a police officer with the Licensing Unit of Tower Hamlets Borough Police. 

On Thursday, 5th December 2013, I attended Thames Magistrates Court and was present when Mr 

Abdul LATIB, DOB 18/09/1985, of35, WHITECHURCH LANE, LONDON E1 7QR pleaded guilty to 

offences under the Licensing Act 2003 -the Magistrates sentenced him to a fine of £385 and suspended 

his personal licence for one month. 

On Saturday, 7th December 2013, I was on duty in full police uniform in the company of Inspector 

WEEDEN conducting licensing patrols within Tower Hamlets. 

At approximately 19:35 hours, I was in a marked police vehicle that parked outside the premises of 34, 

WHITECHURCH LANE and saw Mr LATIB exit quickly walking away. I said "HELLO MR LATIB, 

WE ARE HERE TO TALK TO YOU". 

He replied "I AM NOT WORKING, 1 HAVE BEEN HERE TWO MINUTES, I AM SMOKING". 

He then walked away. 

I entered the shop and recognised the two members of staff inside and said to the male behind the 

counter, "HELLO WE ARE JUST CONDUCTING A LICENSING VISIT". 

I then said "CAN YOU CONFIRM YOUR NAME AND DATE OF BIRTH PLEASE"? 

/ 

N/A .................................. ........................ . 

12006/07(1): MG li(T~ RESTRICTED (\\IH.'Il complete) 
Page 356



RESTRICTED (when completed) 
Page 2 of2 

Continuation of Statement of Brendan Paul O'ROURKE ..................................... ........... ....... ... .. .. ......... .............. . 

He replied "HOMAON RASHID, 01/01/1988". 

I said "AND WHAT IS YOUR ADDRESS PLEASE"? 

He replied "35 WHITECHURCH LANE LONDON El 7QR". 

I said "AND ARE YOU NOW THE DPS"? 

He replied "NO, BUT I HAVE A PERSONAL LICENCE". 

He then produced it from his wallet and I made a note. It had his photo on it, with his name and address, 

it was issued by LBTH, number 16812, expiring 22/05/23. 

I said "DO YOU HAVE A COPY OF YOUR PREMISES LICENCE PLEASE"? 

He produced from behind the counter from an envelope a copy of part A, but four pages were missing, 

which appeared to be all the mandatory conditions, so it was not possible to clarify the exact wording. 

Only pages 1 to 4 and 9 to 10 where there, with pages 5 to 8 being removed. 

I then asked Mr. RASHID to play back to CCTV for me, but he could not. 

I said "DO YOU KNOW HOW TO WORK IT"? 

He replied "NO". 

I said "SO IF SOMEONE HAD JUST BEEN STABBED OR ASSAULTED IN YOUR SHOP RIGHT 

NOW AND THE POLICE WANTED TO LOOK AT THE SUSPECT YOU COULD NOT SHOW 

ME"? 

He replied "NO". 

I said "I'M CERTAIN THAT IS A PART OF YOUR LICENCE CONDITIONS, I'M JUST GOING 

TO BRICK LANE POLICE STATION TO GET A COPY AND WILL COME BACK LATER". 

I then said "IT'S REALLY IMPORTANT THAT YOU ASK MR LATIB TO SHOW YOU HOW TO 

WORK THE CCTV OR ASK THE PEOPLE WHO INSTALLED IT TO TRAIN YOU. IF ANYONE 

HAD BEEN ASSAULTED OR INJURED, WE WOULD WANT TO LOOK AT IT STRAIGHT 

AWAY SO WE COULD TRY AND IDENTIFY AND SUSPECTS, IT'S TO PROTECT YOU AND 

THE STAFF HERE TOO, NOT JUST YOUR CUSTOMERS". He said that he would and understood 

why it was important. 

At approximately 22:30 hours I returned with Inspector WEEDEN and Mr RASHID was still there. I 

showed him the full premises licence and showed him the various paragraphs (Annex l.b; 3.4) that I 

had been talking about and again explained why they were so important and that they had only been put 

on the premises licence on 16th May 2013. 

Signature: N/A ......... .. ................ .. ........ .. ..... ........ .. 

2003(1) 
Page 357



RESTRICTED (when completed) 
Page 3 of3 

Continuation of Statement of Brendan Paul O'ROURKE ..... .... ................. .... ......... ....... ....... ..... ....... ... .. ......... ... ... . 

I said to him "DO YOU HAVE A TEN? A TEMPORARY EVENT NOTICE OR HAVE YOU 

APPLIED TO VARY YOUR LICENCE AND BECOME THE DPS"? 

He replied "NO, I JUST HOLD MY PERSONAL LICENCE". 

I then said "IF YOU LOOK HERE AT ANNEX 1 IT SAYS NO SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL MAY BE 

MADE UNDER THE PREMISES LICENCE UNDER A AT A TIME THERE IS NO DESIGNATED 

PREMISES SUPERVISOR IN RESPECT OF THE PREMISES LICENCE OR UNDER B WHEN THE 

DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR DOES NOT HOLD A PERSONAL LICENCE OR HIS 

PERSONAL LICENCE IS SUSPENDED. MR. LA TIB HAD HIS PERSONAL LICENCE 

SUSPENDED ON THURSDAY AT THAMES MAGISTRATES COURT YOU SHOULD NOT BE 

SELLING ALCOHOL AS YOU ARE NOT THE DPS". 

He did not reply. 

I then completed Met Police Licensing Form 'Book 694' "Notification of alleged offences under the 

Licensing Act 2003 ". 

At 22:40 hours, I said to Mr. RASHID "I SHOULD POINT OUT IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER THE 

LICENSING ACT 2003 TO COMMIT THE FOLLOWING OFFENCES: 

• 'UNDER SECION 57 (7) FAIL TO PRODUCE A PREMISES LICENCE OR A CERTIFIED 

COPY' 

• 'UNDER SECTION 109 (8) FAIL TO PRODUCE A TEN TO A POLICE OFFICER' 

• 'UNDER SECTION 136 (1) CARRYING ON OR ATTEMPTING TO CARRY ON A 

LICENSABLE ACTIVITY ON OR FROM ANY PREMISES OTHERWISE AND IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH AN AUTHORISATION OR KNOWINGLY ALLOWING A 

LICENSABLE ACITIVITY TO BE CARRIED ON"' 

I then gave the 'now' caution and said "THE FACTS OF THE MATTER WILL BE REPORTED AND 

YOU MAY BE PROSECUTED", he made no reply. 

The above offences are recorded on the form from Book 694, of which I gave him a copy of and which 

he signed in receipt. I produce a copy in evidence as exhibit BOR/1 -sealed in evidence bag 

D43843353. 

I then left the premises.  ~ ( If./ 
N/A .... ...... .. .. ... .................................. .. . 

Page 358



perf 

PRINTER - 4-PART NCR- Top COPY (WHITE) 

( ctl; ( {. Book 694 
METROPOLITAN 

POLICE TOTALPOUOING 'v_'ei'IUe Copy 

Notification of alleged offences under the Licensing Act 2003 
Venue Name: .... ~.1>. .. ~ ........ .\...<:J?.~ .. . --~~-~- -- t ... Y. .. ~-~-~---·· .... .......................... REF: (CAD/CRIS etc.) ......•....... ··············-

Address: •. 1. ... ~·-·· \: ---~-~--~S .. ~.S .. ~ .. ~~.S..~ ................ ~.rA.':!..L ..................... -........... _ .. ______ .......... J ........ l ............ , ............ _. _____ ...... -......... .. 
.... ............... ...... .L.v.e.!.h.a.~ .................. ... ............. , ___ L ... L ..... 3:.~.~--- · -·-···--· ·- · ···· .. ·· .. ··-·-.. Date:9.. .. 1 J~ .. j .. J .. ~. Time: ....... /::b..~ .. O ... 
Details of person in charge at the relevant time: .J~~~ ... L ..... .Y.L .O.~-~ ... Q_~ ................ & .. l.t ... ~.~ .... !. ... ~ ............................ -........................ .. 

............................................................................... ................. ....... .. ....... , ....................................... ............ .................................. DPS D Personal Licence Holder []..../ 

Summary of alleged offences Identified 

D Section 57(4) Failure to secure premises licence or a certified copy at the premises or to prominently display a 
summary of the Licence. 

Gi'Section 57 (7) Failure to produce a premises licence or a certified copy. 

0 Section 109 (4) Failure to secure that a copy of the Temporary Event Notice (TEN) is prominently displayed at the 
premises or secure that a copy of the TEN is in the custody of an appropriate person. 

~ion 109 (8) Failure to produce a TEN to a police officer. 

0 Section 135 (4) Failure to produce a personal licence to a police officer. 

~ction 136 (1) Carrying on or attempting to carry on a licensable activity on or from any premises otherwise and in 
accordance with an authorisatation or knowingly allowing a licensable activity to be carried on. (Sec19 issued Y 0 No !j,}/ 
0 Section 137 (1) Exposing alcohol for retail without an authorisation. (Sec19 issued YO No 0) 

D Section 138 (1) Keeping alcohol on a premises for an unauthorised sale. (Sec19 issued Y 0 No 0) 

D Section 140 (1) Knowingly allowing disorderly conduct on a licensed premises. 

0 Section 141 (1) Knowingly selling or attempting or allowing alcohol to be sold to a person who is drunk. 

D Section 144 (1) Knowingly keeping or allowing non duty paid goods or unlawfully imported goods to be kept on 
premises. 

0 Section 145 (1) Allowing an unaccompanied child on a premises (used primarily or exclusively for the sale of alcohol). 

0 Section 146 (1) Selling alcohol to an individual aged under 1 B. 

0 Section 147 (1) Knowingly allowing the sale of alcohol to an individual under 18. 

0 Section 153 (1) knowingly allowing an individual under 18 to make a an unsupervised sale of alcohol. 

0 Section 179 (4) Intentionally obstructing any authorised person exercising a power of entry under section 179. 

Details of alleged offence(s) includln~ relevant Cad and Crime report details: On OS IJ.. I~ CA 

Pc "\ (I""' I \ I ( tl'l Ct. s. ... -d rc/\. (I ~ for Oil( ""'CI" ~ ~ ~ ~(A ~ () /\.1 c. ' (J"" o1- lt).. h 
tu"J""c\..d ~ C(JW'\(ktf" C(_ ( h r t h- ~ 1'135 .. Mr (t(l-~t.A,b, v-r't~ !AA~.i:,t 
~rv~~c c.... "' ~~A-l l (oP,/ dt vlt (r ....,,~0 l1 tuHL 1 ~ .... ~~~!:,It ~ Cl(lf"-~L \lhc (( 't V 

w\..v.. f"'( ~IA(\V~t ~ 0 (v"'~ -,\.. . (\..\. \1-.t bP~ fCI'ICI"'t( ll(fn'L ll S1.1jfCrt 

~Vt ~J C.:6ftt.rlk 1,#\-~tJ ~" {)< J_ (Pt~J \...1\IJ__ f}f'11.c.1- ]. 4 ((TV) 

Issuing officer: .............................. lt.~.l .. ....... L ........ _ .. _ ..................... Print: ....... Q~ ......... q_ .. ~-~.!:5::.~ ......... :.. ....... -... -.... -.......... . 
I acknowledge receipt of this form: (venue) .... ~..  ........................................................... - ... --··-----·----.... - ............ _ ............. _. 

The. purpose of this notice is to inform you that the failure to comply with the Licensing Act 2003 may result in the 
police initiating criminal proceedings against the DPS, premises licence holder, or both. This notice may also be 
used in evidence to support a review of the premises licence pursuant to section 51 Licensing Act 2003 and/or an 
application for a closure order under section 20 Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 

... 

Page 359



Appendix 25 

Page 360



perl 

PRINTER - 4-PART NCR- Top COPY (WHITE) 

( (j / ; (' G Book 694 
METROPOLITAN 

POLICE TOTAL POLICI.NG -Ver·me-Copy 

Notification of alleged offences under the Licensing Act 2003 
Venue Name: .... ~.<1. .. ~ .......... \.?.\:>.~ .......... ~~ .. ~ .... t .... Y.} .. ~~ .. ~ ........................................ REF: (CAD/CRIS etc.) ........................................... . 

Address: ... 1. ... ~ .... \: .. .. ~~.~S .. ~ .. ~·~·~·~S.~ ... ........... l A.~L ....... · .......... ·· ................................ 1 ......... ) .................................................................. . 
............................. L.(I.d~.o.c.J .......................................... f... .... \.. ........ 3: .. fi: .. ~ .......................................... Date:O .. =.J.. J.;b. .... 1..~. Time: ...... 1b..~ .. O .. . 
Details of person in charge at the relevant time: .... ~ .. L. ....... \r\....o..~ ... ~ ... Q .. ~ ................. 1\ .. A ... S..~ .. ..'. .. h ................................................. . 
.............................................................................................. ................... ..... . ....................................................................... ................ DPS D Personal Licence Holder [}].../ 

Summary of alleged offences identified 

D Section 57(4) Failure to secure premises licence or a certified copy at the premises or to prominently display a 
summary of the Licence. 

Cia"Section 57 (7) Failure to produce a premises licence or a certified copy. 

D Section 109 ( 4) Failure to secure that a copy of the Temporary Event Notice (TEN) is prominently displayed at the 
premises or secure that a copy of the TEN is in the custody of an appropriate person. 

~ion 109 (8) Failure to produce a TEN to a police officer. 

D Section 135 (4) Failure to produce a personal licence to a police officer. 

~ction 136 (1) Carrying on or attempting to carry on a licensable activity on or from any premises otherwise and in 
accordance with an authorisatation or knowingly allowing a licensable activity to be carried on. (Sec19 issued Y 0 No~ 
D Section 137 (1) Exposing alcohol for retail without an authorisation. (Sec19 issued Y 0 No 0) 

D Section 138 (1) Keeping alcohol on a premises for an unauthorised sale. (Sec19 issued Y 0 No 0) 

0 Section 140 (1) Knowingly allowing disorderly conduct on a licensed premises. 

D Section 141 (1) Knowingly selling or attempting or allowing alcohol to be sold to a person who is drunk. 

0 Section 144 (1) Knowingly keeping or allowing non duty paid goods or unlawfully imported goods to be kept on 
premises. 

0 Section 145 (1) Allowing an unaccompanied child on a premises (used primarily or exclusively for the sale of alcohol). 

0 Section 146 (1) Selling alcohol to an individual aged under 18. 

0 Section 147 (1) Knowingly allowing the sale of alcohol to an individual under 18. 

D Section 153 (1) knowingly allowing an individual under 18 to make a an unsupervised sale of alcohol. 

0 Section 179 ( 4) Intentionally obstructing any authorised person exercising a power of entry under section 179. 

DetCJils of alleged offence(s) includinf] relevant Cad and Crime report details: On OS IJ- I~ tA 

P<') (11'£\ l \I (fl\ Cl S.vt ~ fC"~' ~ ror OI'IC. ""CI"~ "'~ ~c...~() M c.. (}of\ 61 h.~- h 
tu"JI.A.t\...t( C\ cv""'(k""ct. (hrtk-- cf- 1~35 _ Mr fll+~~>~•h. """""~ l..v\."J.,t 

~rv~IA(L,. 0\ ~vtfl (U~/ dt v\..c, f'l Mn(} lt(UHC.... I 1.4"CIIl:,lt ~ Ct(lfc;Je.._ \ll..c (('tV 

w\.v.. ...-c ;.rt \\.-~. t ~ o (v"'lt ·, ~ _ A-~ "'t b P~ fct1e~""' ( liC f"'L il Svr ~ f(;\ 
~vt ~J C...:bff£1\k ~~if Pr-nv .1- (~tc,.,._) ~...~,LL. 4,..~~~ 3·4 {(Tv) 

Issuing officer: . ..... f~ ..... ~.l. ....... J ......................... . . o' o c.. fl.kL_;_ .. .. Pnnt: ........................................................................ . 

I acknowledge receipt of this form: (venue) .... J<.; .. .... ................................................................ .... .. ........................................ .. 

The_ purpose of this notice is to inform you that the failure to comply with the Licensing Act 2003 may result in the 
police initiating criminal proceedings against the DPS, premises licence holder, or both. This notice may also be 
used in evidence to support a review of the premises licence pursuant to section 51 Licensing Act 2003 and/or an 
application for a closure order under section 20 Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 

pe<f 

Page 361



Appendix 26 

Page 362



RESTRICTED (when complete) 

WITNESS STATEMENT 
CJ Act 1967, s.9; MC Act 1980, ss.5A(3)(a) and 5B; Criminal Procedure Rules 2005, Rule 27.1 

Statement of Brendan Paul O'ROURKE ...................... URN: j 01 j HT I I 13 
~----~----~~----------~--~ 

Age if under 18 Over 18 ............ .. (if over 18 insert 'over 18') Occupation: Police Officer 230222 ........... .. 

This statement (consisting of: .... 1...... pages each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and I 
make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated anything in it 

whioh I know to be f o< do no::: e true. (_ ~ 1.. / 

Signatw'e:  .. , .. J .... .. ,,, .. , .. , .. ,L Dare: 1111212013,,,, .......... .. , , 

Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded D (supply witness details on rear) 

Statement in relation to exhibiting photographs taken at Low Cost Food & Wine, 

34 WHITECHURCH LANE, LONDON El 7QR on 07112/13. 

On Wednesday, lOth October 2013, I was on duty, when I attended at the above premises and took the 

following photographs, which I produce in evidence as follows: 

BOR/1 -External photo showing premises frontage. 

BOR/2 - Fridge containing beer (has a shutter) 

BOR/3- Display shelf of wines (no shutter) 

BOR/4 -Display shelf of spirits etc (behind the counter, no shutter) 

BOR/5 -Overall view fmm rear of prern  ~~ ~ ( 

/ 

Signature: N/A .. ... ........... ......... .. .. .. ... .. .... .......... .. .. .... . 

12006/07(1): MG 1\(T)I RESTRICTED (when complete) Page 363



Page 364



Page 365



Page 366



Appendix 27 

Page 367



 MG 11 (T) 

Signature:  ....................................................  Signature witnessed by:  ..................................................................  

2006/07(1): MG 11(T) 

RESTRICTED (when complete) 

RESTRICTED (when complete) 

WITNESS STATEMENT 
CJ Act 1967, s.9; MC Act 1980, ss.5A(3)(a) and 5B; Criminal Procedure Rules 2005, Rule 27.1 

Statement of Colin REED 17HT .....................................  URN: 

Age if under 18 Over 18 .............  (if over 18 insert ‘over 18’)   Occupation: Police Sergeant P203973 .......  

This statement  (consisting of:  .... 1 .....  pages each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and I 
make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated anything in it 
which I know to be false, or do not believe to be true. 

Signature:  .............................................................................  Date:  .............................................  

Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded (supply witness details on rear) 

This statement refers to the licensing visit conducted at Low Cost Food and Wine, 34 White Church St, 

E1, on Friday 13th December 2013. 

I am the above named officer and have worked for the Metropolitan Police Service for approximately 

thirteen years.  On that day I was working with my team, Weavers Ward NPT, and was tasked under 

Operation Condor to undertake licensing visits, in the company of the UK Border Agency. 

We called at Low Cost Food and Wine at approximately 2015 hours.  The licensee Abdul LATIB was 

not on the premises, however, a Mr Mohammed Homoan ROSHID DOB 01/01/1988 was contacted by 

phone by the two persons present and he arrived on premises a short time later, stating that he was 

having a nap at number 35.  He was asked to show his personal licence which he had to leave and 

retrieve, but did produce a personal licence issue number 16812.  There were two males present when 

we first arrived on scene, Mr Noman AHMED DOB 02/06/1974 and Mr Sultan MAHMUD DOB 

19/06/1990.  Mr AHMED, of 57 SPEY STREET E14 6PP, stated that he was an Italian national and 

was on a weeks free trial at the shop, that he was receiving benefits but was not being paid.  Today 

was the fourth day of his free trial.  Mr MAHMUD who was behind the counter when entering stated that 

he was 'volunteering' at the shop, was not being paid.  Unfortunately immigration checks showed that 

he was an over stayer in the UK, and so he was arrested and now faces deportation.  Mr ROSHID was 

asked why he had not conducted proper checks of Mr MAHMUD before employing him, he explained 

that MAHMUD had come in to the shop about 1700 hours, and was on a trial only basis.  I pointed out 

that he was extremely trusting to leave his shop with a man he met two hours previously, but maybe 

not the actions of a responsible licence holder.  Immigration also informed Mr ROSHID that employing 

a foreign national without making the necessary checks could render him liable to prosecution.

Page 368



Appendix 28 

Page 369



METROPOLITAN 
POLICE 

Ms Kathy Driver, 
Principal Licensing Officer, 

TOTAl POLICING 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets, 
Licensing Section, 
Mulberry Place, 
5 Clove Crescent, 
London, 
E14 2BG 

Dear Ms Driver, 

Tower Hamlets Borough 
Licensing Office 

Limehouse Police Station, 
West India Dock Road, 
London, 
E14 8EZ 

 
 

 

Your ref: 
Ourref: LIC/011113/13 

18th January 2014 

Re: Additional evidence - In the matter of: Request under Sec 51 Licensing Act 

for a Review of Premises Licence Low Cost Food and Wine, 34, White Church 

Lane, LONDON El 7QR. 

Further to my letter dated lith December 2013, submitting the suppmiing evidence in 

this matter. There has been one more significant incident which occuned on 13/12/13 

at the premises, which I would wish to bring to the Committee's attention. 

On 13/12/13 police conducted 'Operation Condor' - a London-wide licensing 

enforcement operation with external partners. During the operation a police sergeant 

visited Low Cost Food & Wine with officers from the United Kingdom Border 

Agency (UKBA). In shmi a person working on the premises was arrested for being an 

illegal immigrant (overstaying his visa) and was conveyed to a UKBA Detention 

Centre, pending depmiation. 

Suppmiing statements (attached fl"om PS Reed and Ms Khay from UKBA [A WAITS]) 

fully outline the circumstances. 

But in shoJi, due to Mr Latib having had his personal licence suspended for one month 

by Magistrates sitting at Thames Magistrates Court on 05/12/13 and Mr Roshid being 

'acting DPS' (from 10/12/13 with a pending application to vary DPS). Whilst Mr 

Author PC 291 HT Brendan O'Rourke, Tower Hamlets Police Licensing Unit Page 370



Re: Low Cost Food & Wine, 34, White Church Lane, LONDON E1 ?QR 

Rashid was not actually on the premises when police and the UKBA arrived at 20: 15 

hours, he was in charge of the premises at the time. 

This shows a senous error of judgement on his behalf and quite frankly the 

explanation given to the police sergeant is not plausible, one quote from PS Reed's 

statement is: 

"Mr. ROSHID was asked why he had not conducted proper checks of Mr. MAHMUD 

[male arrested] before employing him, he explained that MAHMUD had come in to the 

shop about 1700 hours, and was on a trial. I pointed out that he was extremely 

trusting to leave his shop with a man he met two hours previously". 

In regards to this, I would invite the Committee to additionally consider the following 

from the Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 -

issued by The Home Office June 2013 

11.27 There is certain criminal activity that may anse m connection with 

licensed premises which should be treated particularly seriously. These are the 

use of the licensed premises: 

• for knowingly employing a person who is unlawfully in the UK or who 

cannot lawfully be employed as a result of a condition on that person's 

leave to enter; 

Enclosures: 

• MG11 from PS REED (dated 18/12/13) 

• Email from Mr John McManus, UKBA (dated 09/01/14 re: 06/04/13) 

If you have any further questions about the above, please don't hesitate to contact me. 

Yours sincerely, 

Brendan O'Rourke 

PC 291 HT 

Author PC 291HT Brendan O'Rourke, Tower Hamlets Police Licensing Unit 
Page 371



Appendix 29 

Page 372



Page I of I 

O'Rourke Brendan P - HT 

From: McManus John  

Sent: 09 January 2014 14:59 

To: O'Rourke Brendan P - HT 

Subject: Immigration 

Brendan 

Abdul LATIB 18/09/1985 was arrested on 06/04/2013 when we visited Low Cost Food and Wine, 34 
White Church Lane E1 7QR. He claimed to have last entered the UK in 2006 legitimately. However, 
no trace of his lawful entry was found in Home Office indices. He produced his Bangladeshi passport 
which contained a counterfeit 'visa' and immigration stamp. LATIB was initially detained but he then 
submitted a new application for leave to remain so was released while his case is considered. As a 
condition of his release he has to report to an immigration officer fortnightly and is prohibited from 
taking employment. No record can be found of LATIB ever having been granted leave to enter 
therefore he has never had the right to take employment in the UK. 

Regards 

John 
John McManus 
Immigration Officer 
FlO Tower Ham/Ms 
Home Office 
Operational Intelligence Directorate 

 

********************************************************************** 
This email and any files transmitted with it are private and intended 
solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. 
If you have received this email in error please return it to the address 
it came from telling them it is not for you and then delete it from your system. 
This email message has been swept for computer viruses. 

********************************************************************** 

********************************************************************** 

•· 
Page 373



Appendix 30 

Page 374



Author PC 291HT Brendan O’Rourke, Licensing Officer, Limehouse Police Station, 27, West India Dock Road, London E14 8EZ   Page  1 of 2

SCHEDULE OF INCIDENTS AND SUPPORTING EVIDENCE  
LOW COST FOOD & WINE, 34, WHITE CHURCH LANE, LONDON E1 5NG 

Item 
# 

Date Time Day Reference Incident / Event Details 

1 06/04/13 - - UKBA Right to Work Mr LATIB cannot work in the UK this day 
onwards 

2 06/04/13 - - UKBA UKBA John McManus, UKBA 
3 16/05/13 - - LBTH Premises Licence Issued Mr LATIB becomes premises licence holder and 

DPS 
4 06/08/13 - - Companies House Directorship Mr LATIB ceases his directorship of NFU 

London Ltd (8248216) 
5 31/08/13 20:17 Saturday CAD 9418/31AUG13 Civil Dispute Call to police regarding a customer refusing to 

leave claiming being overcharged (Not produced 
- but a redacted copy available at the Committee 
hearing) 

6 02/10/13 15:42 Wednesday LBTH / Police Test Purchase & Breach of 
Premises Licence 

LBTH official purchases single can of alcohol 
above 5.6% abv - Mr ROSHID makes the sale. 

7 “ MG11 from Mr Ian WAREING, LBTH 
8 “ MG11 from Mr Alex LISOWSKI, LBTH 
9 “ MG 11 from PC 291HT O’ROURKE 

10 05/10/13 00:05 Saturday Police Test Purchase & Breach of 
Premises Licence 

Police purchase a single can of Guinness (4.2% 
abv), more than 1hour after sales should cease. 
Mr ROSHID makes the sale. 

11 05/10/13 00:15 Saturday Police / LBTH Test Purchase & Breach of 
Premises Licence 

Police purchase a single can of K cider (8.4% 
abv), more than 1¼ hours after sales should 
cease. Mr ROSHID makes the sale. People are 
seen to be knocking on the door of the premises 
as late as 01:25 hrs 

12 “ 01:25 Saturday LBTH Further Breaches of 
Premises Licence 

LBTH official reports Mr ROSHID for further 
breaches of the premises licence 

13 “ “ MG 11 from PC 291HT O’ROURKE 
14 “ “ MG 11 from Mr Andrew HERON, LBTH 

P
age 375



Author PC 291HT Brendan O’Rourke, Licensing Officer, Limehouse Police Station, 27, West India Dock Road, London E14 8EZ   Page  2 of 2

Item 
# 

Date Time Day Reference Incident / Event Details 

15 “ “ Copy Section 19 Closure Notice - Criminal 
Justice and Police Act 2001 - with corrective 
advice. 

16 “ “ Copy Form - Book 694 - Notification of alleged 
offences under the Licensing Act 2003 

17 26/10/13 00:20 Saturday LBTH / Police Test Purchase LBTH official purchases a bottle of vodka at 
00:20 hours; with an additional sale of another 
bottle of vodka witnessed at 00:28 hrs - some 1 
hour 20 minutes to 1 ½ hour after sales should 
cease. 

18 “ “ MG 11 from PC 291HT O’ROURKE x 3 
19 “ “ MG 11 from Ms Kathy DRIVER, LBTH 
20 “ “ Copy Form - Book 694 - Notification of alleged 

offences under the Licensing Act 2003 
21 30/10/13 - - Police Letter to Mr LATIB Withdrawing the above Sec 19 
22 05/12/13 - Thursday Thames Magistrates 

Court 
Prosecution for offences 
committed on 26/10/13 only 

Mr LATIB pleads guilty and is fined £165; £200 
costs & £20 victim surcharge. His personal 
licence is suspended immediately for 1 month. 

23 07/12/13 19:35 Saturday Police Breach of Premises Licence Mr ROSHID was present, but was not the DPS, 
was unable to produce a full copy of the 
premises licence (the mandatory conditions had 
been removed), nor could he operate or playback 
the CCTV recording system. 

24 “ “ MG 11 from PC 291HT O’ROURKE x 2 
25 “ “ Copy Form - Book 694 - Notification of alleged 

offences under the Licensing Act 2003 
26 13/12/13 20:15 Friday Police / UKBA UKBA arrest employee UKBA arrest a male at the premises for being an 

illegal immigrant. Mr ROSHID warned he could 
be fined up to £10,000 by UKBA. 

27 “ MG 11 from PS HT REED 
28 “ MG 11 from Ms KHAY, UKBA (AWAITS) 
29 Misc - - Police Exhibits BOR/1 -5 Photographs of premises 

P
age 376



Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 6.1
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST
	3 RULES OF PROCEDURE
	4.1 Application for a New Premises Licence for Subway, 222 Brick Lane, London, E1 6SA
	Subway Appendices Only

	4.2 Application for a Review of a Premises Licence for JB Food Store, 97b Brick Lane, London, E1 6SE
	JB Food Store Appendices Only

	4.3 Application for a Review of a Premises Licence for Cost Price, 41 Brick Lane, London, E1 6PU
	Cost Price Appendices only

	4.4 Application for a Review of a Premises Licence at Low Cost Food and Wine, 34 White Church Lane, London, E1 7QR
	Low Cost Review Appendices Part 1
	Low Cost Review Appendices Part 2
	Low Cost Review Appendices Part 3

	6.1 Application for a Variation of Designated Premises Supervisor for Low Cost Food and Wine, 34 White Church Lane, London, E1 7QR
	Low Cost Variation Appendices Only (restricted)




